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          1                    USCG/BOEM MARINE BOARD OF INVESTIGATION
                               INTO THE MARINE CASUALTY, EXPLOSION, FIRE,
          2                             POLLUTION, AND SINKING 
                                   OF MOBILE OFFSHORE DRILLING UNIT 
          3                       DEEPWATER HORIZON, WITH LOSS OF LIFE
                                 IN THE GULF OF MEXICO 21-22 APRIL 2010
          4                              Monday, July 19, 2010

          5          

          6                              *   *   *   *   *   *

          7          
                               The transcript of The Joint United
          8          States Coast Guard/The Bureau of Ocean Energy
                     Management, Regulation and Enforcement
          9          Investigation of the above-entitled cause,
                     before Dorothy N. Gros, a Certified Court
         10          Reporter, authorized to administer oaths of
                     witnesses pursuant to Section 961.1 of Title
         11          13 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950,
                     as amended, reported at the Radisson Hotel,
         12          2150 Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Kenner,
                     Louisiana, 70062, on Monday, July 19, 2010,
         13          beginning at 8:00 a.m.

         14   

         15   

         16   

         17   

         18   

         19   
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          1          APPEARANCES:
                     MEMBERS OF THE BOARD:
          2          CAPT HUNG M. NGUYEN, CO-CHAIR                  
                     UNITED STATES COAST GUARD                       
          3          
                     DAVID DYKES, CO-CHAIR
          4          THE BUREAU OF OCEAN ENERGY MANAGEMENT,
                     REGULATION AND ENFORCEMENT
          5          
                     JASON MATHEWS
          6          THE BUREAU OF OCEAN ENERGY MANAGEMENT,
                     REGULATION AND ENFORCEMENT
          7          
                     JOHN McCARROLL
          8          THE BUREAU OF OCEAN ENERGY MANAGEMENT,
                     REGULATION AND ENFORCEMENT
          9          
                     ROSS WHEATLEY
         10          UNITED STATES COAST GUARD

         11          LTR ROBERT BUTTS, COURT RECORDER
                     UNITED STATES COAST GUARD
         12          
                     REPORTED BY:  DOROTHY N. GROS, CCR
         13                         CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER

         14   

         15   

         16   

         17   

         18   

         19   
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          1                              P R O C E E D I N G S

          2                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          3                                   Good morning.  The Joint United

          4                    States Coast Guard and Bureau of Ocean

          5                    Energy Management Regulation

          6                    Enforcement Investigation is now in

          7                    session. 

          8                                   For those of you who were not

          9                    present during the previous two

         10                    sessions, my name is Captain Hung

         11                    Nguyen.  I am the Chief of Prevention

         12                    for the Coast Guard 14th District.  To

         13                    my left is Mr. David Dykes, who will

         14                    also serve as co-chair, and to his left

         15                    is Mr. Jason Mathews and Mr. John

         16                    McCarroll.  To my right is Captain Ross

         17                    Wheatley and Lieutenant Robert Butts. 

         18                    The six of us made up the Joint Board

         19                    of Investigation for this casualty.
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         20                                   The scope of this five-day session

         21                    will focus on technical verification.

         22                    The objectives are as follows: 1) To

         23                    determine the most probable source of

         24                    ignition, rig fire and vessel

         25                    stability; 2) To examine why the backup
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          1                    and standby generator did not work as

          2                    intended; 3) To determine the adequacy

          3                    of the well plan; 4) To determine

          4                    adequacy of drilling procedures and

          5                    equipment testing; 5) To determine

          6                    adequacy of emergency safeguards of the

          7                    drilling system; 6) To determine well-

          8                    control issues; 7) To determine crew

          9                    well-control actions; and, 8) To

         10                    receive testimony and evidence from

         11                    Parties In Interest in support of the

         12                    above objectives.  

         13                                   In the interest of time and

         14                    efficiency, I respectfully request

         15                    Parties In Interest to honor the scope

         16                    of those five days as we examine other

         17                    areas in future sessions.  During these

         18                    five days of testimony we are expecting

         19                    personal appearances by each person
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         20                    listed on the witness list which is

         21                    posted on our website.  About ten

         22                    minutes ago I was notified by the

         23                    attorney for Mr. Wyman Wheeler due to

         24                    medical reasons that he would not

         25                    appear today.  So we have four
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          1                    witnesses as of right now to appear

          2                    before the Board here today.

          3                                   As a reminder prior to receiving

          4                    witness testimony, witnesses will, with

          5                    the exception of the Parties In

          6                    Interest, will be excused from the room

          7                    and moved to a separate designated

          8                    waiting area.  This waiting area shall

          9                    be far removed from the primary hearing

         10                    location so that witnesses cannot hear

         11                    or be aware of any testimony presented

         12                    to the Board.

         13                                   At the closing of the last session,

         14                    the Joint Investigation Team designated

         15                    Captain Curt Kuchta and Mr. Jimmy

         16                    Harrell and while adjourned, we also

         17                    designated Mr. Mike Williams as Parties

         18                    In Interest.

         19                                   I would like to request the
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         20                    cooperation of all persons present to

         21                    minimize any disruption influence on

         22                    the proceedings in general and on the

         23                    witnesses in particular.  We will

         24                    continue to allow full media coverage,

         25                    as long as it does not interfere with

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (14 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:15 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                        8

          1                    the rights of the parties to a fair

          2                    hearing and does not unduly distract

          3                    from the solemnity, decorum and dignity

          4                    of the proceedings.  

          5                                   The use of laptops, PDAs, or cell

          6                    phones, Iphones to capture video or

          7                    stills during the proceeding is

          8                    prohibited.  There will be only one

          9                    official transcript for these

         10                    proceedings developed by the Board. 

         11                    Any other transcript developed by any

         12                    other parties are for informational

         13                    purposes only.  

         14                                   The Joint Board Members and court

         15                    reporter are reminded you are still

         16                    under oath and have committed to

         17                    examine without partiality.  Also as a

         18                    reminder, no part of a report of marine

         19                    casualty investigation conducted under
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         20                    Title 46 U.S. Code Section 6301,

         21                    including findings of facts, opinions,

         22                    recommendations, deliberations or

         23                    conclusions shall be admissible as

         24                    evidence or subject to discovery in any

         25                    civil or administrative proceeding
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          1                    other than administrative proceeding

          2                    initiated by the United States.

          3                                   At this time, I would like to call

          4                    on Mr. Stephen Bertone, chief engineer

          5                    for Transocean MODU, DEEPWATER HORIZON.

          6                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

          7                                   Before we start, my name is Kyle

          8                    Schonekas.  I represent Captain 

          9                              Kuchta - 

         10                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         11                                   Sir, I understand.  I acknowledge

         12                    and as I indicated to you --

         13                              MR. SCHONEKAS:

         14                                        You've never spoken to me, sir.

         15                              CAPT NGUYEN:

         16                                        I spoke to you right before

         17                              the hearing started.  

         18                              MR. SCHONEKAS:

         19                                        No, sir.
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         20                              CAPT NGUYEN:

         21                                        And as I indicated, what you are

         22                              about to do is not part of the

         23                    proceeding.

         24                    MR. FANNING:

         25                                   You spoke to me.  You didn't speak
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          1                    to Mr. Schonekas.  

          2                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          3                                   Well, the representative of Mr.

          4                    Jimmy Harrell   

          5                              MR. FANNING:

          6                                        That would be me.

          7                              CAPT NGUYEN:

          8                                        This is not part of the proceeding,

          9                              and as I indicated, I respectfully

         10                    request that you respect the protocol

         11                    of this proceeding.

         12                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

         13                                   I'd like to make an offer, sir, or

         14                    proffer of two letters that I wrote to

         15                    you objecting to the late designation 

         16                    Captain Kuchta as a Party In Interest. 

         17                    This should have been done --

         18                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         19                                   I understand and there was a
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         20                    response from the Joint Board that this

         21                    is part of the Joint Board protocol. 

         22                    So you have received a response from

         23                    the United States Government.

         24                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

         25                                   And I just want to make this a part
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          1                    of the record, sir, and preserve my

          2                    objection, which is a letter to you

          3                    dated June 25th and my letter dated

          4                    July 12th as Kuchta 1 and 2.  I'd like

          5                    to offer those.

          6                              MR. FANNING:

          7                                        And likewise, sir, on behalf of Mr. 

          8                              Harrell  

          9                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         10                                   Your correspondence is part of the

         11                    United States record already so it's

         12                    there.  I can assure you of that.  

         13                    MR. FANNING:

         14                                   Well, we'll give it to the court

         15                    reporter and ask her to make that part

         16                    of the record as our objections are

         17                    here, sir.  Also, sir, I would like to

         18                    ask you to reconsider the ruling on the

         19                    document production we asked.  The
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         20                    response that we got was that you were

         21                    going to treat this as an FOIA request,

         22                    which we all know means we won't get

         23                    any documents for at least a year.  The

         24                    purpose of the request is so we can get

         25                    documents to use during the remaining
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          1                    sessions of the hearing.  To tell us

          2                    that we have asked for that in

          3                    connection with this proceeding and

          4                    that you'll give it to us long after

          5                    the hearings are over is totally

          6                    unsatisfactory to my client, sir.

          7                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          8                                   We will provide whatever documents

          9                    that we provide to all the Parties In

         10                    Interest to you.

         11                    MR. FANNING:

         12                                   Well, my Party In Interest is in a

         13                    little different situation, sir, since

         14                    you failed to designate him at the

         15                    outset as you should have.

         16                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         17                                   No, I --

         18                    MR. FANNING:

         19                                   -- required by law and you did not,
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         20                    which deprived him of substantial

         21                    rights such as participation -- 

         22                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         23                                   By law, there was no presumption of

         24                    guilty or innocence before the hearings

         25                    proceed.  As we go along -- as the
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          1                    hearings progress, we identify some

          2                    information that necessitated

          3                    designation of Mr. Harrell, Jimmy

          4                    Harrell, as a PII.

          5                    MR. FANNING:

          6                                   Sir, are you telling me that --

          7                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          8                                   Sir, we can have this conversation

          9                    outside of this hearing.  That is not

         10                    part of the protocol.

         11                    MR. FANNING:

         12                                   This need to be part of the record,

         13                    sir --

         14                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         15                                   No, it's not part of the record. 

         16                    It's not part of this hearing.

         17                    MR. FANNING:

         18                                   It is part of the record.  You

         19                    failed to designate the OIM of the
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         20                    vessel as a Party In Interest when the

         21                    statute clearly calls for you to

         22                    designate any licensee whose actions

         23                    are being investigated.  You designated

         24                    a mechanic on the rig as a Party In

         25                    Interest and not the OIM and not the
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          1                    master of the vessel.  My client was

          2                    deprived of substantial rights by that

          3                    action.  That is, he was unable to have

          4                    counsel ask questions of witnesses; he

          5                    was unable to have his own attorney

          6                    make objections on his behalf; and it

          7                    is outrageous that you didn't afford

          8                    him that opportunity at the very

          9                    beginning of these hearings, sir.

         10                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         11                                   Noted.  Let's move on.

         12                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

         13                                   Move to strike the prior testimony

         14                    on that basis.

         15                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         16                                   Noted.  Let's move on.

         17                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

         18                                   I'll offer these.  Kuchta #1 would

         19                    be my letter of June 25, 2010 and

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (27 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:15 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20                    Kuchta #2 would be my letter of July

         21                    12.  Harrell #1 is Mr. Fanning's letter

         22                    of June 14, 2010.

         23                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         24                                   The Board will compare what you

         25                    provided with what you provided
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          1                    previously until we determine whether

          2                    we enter that into the record or not. 

          3                    At this time, it is not accepted into

          4                    the record right now.

          5                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

          6                                   Thank you.

          7                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          8                                   Thank you.

          9                    MR. KOHNKE:

         10                                   Captain, let me say something here

         11                    and I think I'm speaking on behalf of a

         12                    number of the Parties In Interest.  I

         13                    don't know who developed this practice,

         14                    but in the beginning of these hearings

         15                    we would start the hearing and an

         16                    exhibit or a document would be used by

         17                    the witness and we would ask for a copy

         18                    and get a copy during the hearing.  To

         19                    rectify that, a homeport website was
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         20                    created to give us access to the

         21                    documents before the hearing.  Well, we

         22                    have been given about a foot-high stack

         23                    of documents we got on Friday for a

         24                    hearing to start on Monday.  And there

         25                    is no reason that I can think of why we
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          1                    should be getting these so soon to the

          2                    beginning of the hearing.  What I would

          3                    ask is that for the next hearing that

          4                    we be able to get these documents at

          5                    least two weeks in advance.  I know

          6                    that Lieutenant Commander Bray has said

          7                    for any exhibits that you want to have

          8                    considered by the Board, you have to

          9                    have them in approximately a month

         10                    before.  So given that lead time that

         11                    we're expected to give the Board, we

         12                    would ask that the Board give us more

         13                    lead time than simply a weekend to look

         14                    over what might be a thousand or two

         15                    documents.  And I will also note that

         16                    among those documents there is a report

         17                    from a John R. Smith dated July 1st. 

         18                    We didn't get it until this past

         19                    Friday.  If the final report was dated
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         20                    July 1st, why didn't we get it on July

         21                    2nd?  And these are the problems that

         22                    we're facing.  And as a consequence I

         23                    try to follow the examination of the

         24                    direct's witnesses, whoever the

         25                    witnesses will be over here, I'm going
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          1                    to have to fish through and ask that

          2                    the Board delay until I get to that

          3                    document because I'm just not familiar

          4                    with it.  And I know that I've talked

          5                    to at least two Parties In Interest who

          6                    haven't seen them at all.  So I'd ask

          7                    that we change that.  Can we do that

          8                    for the next hearing in the interest of

          9                    fairness?

         10                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         11                                   Well, let me reply to a couple of

         12                    comments here.  Number one is that

         13                    providing documents ahead of time to

         14                    the Parties In Interest is not a

         15                    requirement of the Board.  We do -- as

         16                    we indicated to you in previous

         17                    correspondence, that is something that

         18                    we'd like to facilitate this process. 

         19                    And as you know, that the Parties In

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (33 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:15 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20                    Interest have changed their mind in

         21                    terms of people who appear in terms of

         22                    witnesses, in terms of, you know, other

         23                    changes that take place right before

         24                    the hearing.  So I believe that the

         25                    Board has gone beyond our duty in terms
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          1                    of trying to facilitate a process.  And

          2                    at the same time, a lot of -- it's a

          3                    very dynamic process.  And Number two

          4                    is that this is not the only hearing. 

          5                    So if we have documents that we provide

          6                    to you at the last minute and you don't

          7                    have time to review them, you can

          8                    correct the record at the next session

          9                    of hearings and follow up with the

         10                    question that you have regarding those

         11                    documents.  So as you know, it's not a

         12                    one session hearing.  This is the third

         13                    session in this hearing.

         14                    MR. KOHNKE:

         15                                   Well, I don't expect that the John

         16                    R. Smith report will be used with any

         17                    other witness other John R. Smith who

         18                    is going to be testifying at this

         19                    hearing.  Now, if you tell me that I
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         20                    can re-call him at the next hearing,

         21                    then I'll make that request right now

         22                    because I cannot prepare to cross-

         23                    examine him over the course of a

         24                    weekend when I had other work to do.

         25                    CAPT NGUYEN:
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          1                                   Well, as you know, Transocean asked

          2                    for the Board to consider certain

          3                    witnesses.  So if you want Mr. John R.

          4                    Smith to testify on his report at the

          5                    next session, you are welcome to do so.

          6                    MR. KOHNKE:

          7                                   Can we defer him until the next

          8                    session?

          9                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         10                                   No, sir.  

         11                    MR. KOHNKE:

         12                                   Well then you've taken away -- as I

         13                    read the CFR, Parties In Interest have

         14                    a right, not a gift, a right, to cross-

         15                    examination.  You take away that right

         16                    of cross-examination when you call a

         17                    witness and you give a report days

         18                    before that requires at least a week or

         19                    two that I know the Board has had at
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         20                    least two weeks, given the date of the

         21                    report.  The Board has had over two

         22                    weeks to study the report and prepare

         23                    their questions.  Now, our right of

         24                    cross-examination is hindered unless we

         25                    get this report timely.  I understand
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          1                    that you believe that you're not

          2                    required to give this to us.  But this

          3                    is a fact finding exercise and I do not

          4                    believe it's an adversarial exercise. 

          5                    I think we're expected, as Parties In

          6                    Interest, to participate, not to be

          7                    adversaries.  But by withholding these

          8                    reports, we become your adversary.

          9                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         10                                   We are not holding up the documents

         11                    and we're not denying your right to

         12                    cross-examine the witnesses.  As I say

         13                    -- as I indicated, these are multiple

         14                    sessions of hearings.  So if you don't

         15                    get an opportunity to address this

         16                    witness at -- not ready to cross-

         17                    examine this witness at this time, for

         18                    whatever reason, you will have an

         19                    opportunity to request the Board to
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         20                    consider.

         21                    MR. KOHNKE:

         22                                   I understand I'll have a chance to

         23                    ask.

         24                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         25                                   Yes, sir.
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          1                    MR. KOHNKE:

          2                                   Will you grant that request if I

          3                              ask?

          4                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          5                                   Sir, like I say, we're not denying

          6                    your right to cross-examine the

          7                    witness.

          8                    MR. KOHNKE:

          9                                   So if I ask to have him called at

         10                    the next hearing, I'll be able to

         11                    cross-examine him at that time?

         12                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         13                                   I have to take a look at what he

         14                    has ----

         15                    MR. DYKES:

         16                                   We can do that.

         17                    MR. MATHEWS:

         18                                   Just one more thing.  I want to

         19                    correct Mr. Kohnke.  The Board -- I
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         20                    think the July 1 date was government

         21                    contract, the one that was due.  The

         22                    Board never received it until Tuesday

         23                    of this week and we tried to get it to

         24                    you all as quickly as possible.  I know

         25                    the schedules change continuously and
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          1                    we weren't certain of who was actually

          2                    testifying.  So instead of giving you

          3                    five data dumps of potential stuff, we

          4                    just wanted to do it at one time so.

          5                    MR. FANNING:

          6                                   Capt Nguyen, in connection with my

          7                    client's previous testimony, I've been

          8                    over his transcript with him and he has

          9                    pointed out to me several errors in the

         10                    transcript, primarily having to do with

         11                    terms that would be used in well-

         12                    control situations and on rigs that the

         13                    court reporter was not familiar with. 

         14                    I'd ask the Committee to allow me to

         15                    supplement the record by having him

         16                    make the corrections to his transcript. 

         17                    I will point out that that's a common

         18                    practice in depositions as all these

         19                    lawyers know we do read and sign.
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         20                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         21                                   Yes, sir.  You're welcome to do

         22                    that.

         23                    MR. FANNING:

         24                                   Thank you very much.  And the final

         25                    thing, sir, I looked at the witness
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          1                    list prior to Friday, and again on

          2                    Friday and I notice that there's like

          3                    five BP witnesses who have been removed

          4                    from the witness list.  I ask if you

          5                    can give us an explanation as to why

          6                    that occurred because it may have some

          7                    influence on my conduct going forward. 

          8                    If you'd like, I can call the names out

          9                    to you.

         10                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         11                                   No, sir.  We try as best we can to

         12                    facilitate a process and as I indicated

         13                    to Mr. Kohnke, that's last-minute

         14                    changes.  We will try again -- people

         15                    have their rights -- their different

         16                    reasons why people cannot appear before

         17                    the Board.  

         18                    MR. FANNING:

         19                                   Also, sir, Transocean has provided
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         20                    its employees to you often without

         21                    representation of their own and they

         22                    have all come forward without taking

         23                    off, calling in sick or taking the 5th

         24                    Amendment as BP has in the past.

         25                    MR. GODFREY:
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          1                                   Objection.  I would ask --

          2                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          3                                   I think we -- if you want to have

          4                    any objections, please put it in

          5                    writing to the Board and let's move on

          6                    here.  Noted.

          7                    MR. FANNING:

          8                                   Well I don't know what the reasons

          9                              are, how would I put it in writing --

         10                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         11                                   Well, that's fine.  Noted your

         12                    objection, sir.  And again, I

         13                    respectfully request that you observe

         14                    the dignity and the order of this

         15                    proceeding.  If we have an objection,

         16                    note it outside the proceedings here

         17                    that will be part of the government

         18                    records and we will respond

         19                    accordingly.
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         20                    MR. FANNING:

         21                                   Are you saying we can't object for

         22                    the court reporter on the record?  

         23                    MR. GODFREY:

         24                                   Captain, I simply want to say I

         25                    thought that the Board established
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          1                    procedures virtually each one of which

          2                    has been violated by rude counsel to my

          3                    left.  I don't think it's appropriate

          4                    to engage in these kinds of colloquies

          5                    with the Board in this session.  So, I

          6                    object to that. I intend to get my

          7                    client, BP, to adhere to the Board's

          8                    procedures, but I do want to note my

          9                    objection.  I think some of my other

         10                    colleagues who have been here think

         11                    this is not appropriate format for

         12                    objections.  The Board has set its

         13                    format out and it was very clear at the

         14                    last hearing and the hearing before

         15                    that and we intend to comply with it

         16                    but I think we need to make this

         17                    objection because if this is the way

         18                    it's going to proceed moving forward,

         19                    this is going to, unfortunately,
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         20                    generate a series of objections that

         21                    impede your ability to determine what

         22                    the truth is.

         23                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         24                                   I agree with the BP counsel and as

         25                    a reminder any disruptions to this
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          1                    proceeding, as I deem inappropriate, I

          2                    would have the representative removed

          3                    from the hearing room.  Thank you.

          4                                   Let's move on with our proceeding. 

          5                    I would like to call Mr. Stephen

          6                    Bertone.

          7                                   Mr. Bertone, would you please raise

          8                    your right hand?

          9                    THE WITNESS:

         10                                   (Witness complies.)

         11                              *   *   *   *   *   *

         12                                       STEPHEN BERTONE,

         13          after being first duly sworn in the cause,

         14          testified as follows:                           

         15                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         16                                   Thank you, sir, for being here. 

         17                    Please be seated.

         18                    MR. LONDON:

         19                                   Captain, I would like to start
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         20                    before questioning begins just to

         21                    identify myself for the record.  I am

         22                    Stephen London and I am attorney for

         23                    Mr. Bertone.  I would like to know if

         24                    the Committee at the outset of this

         25                    questioning anticipates naming Mr.
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          1                    Bertone as a person of interest at this

          2                    time, if you know that before we begin

          3                    any questioning.

          4                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          5                                   No, sir.  The Board has not

          6                    designated Mr. Bertone as a Party In

          7                    Interest.

          8                    MR. LONDON:

          9                                   I know he's not designated.  I

         10                    would just like to know whether you

         11                    anticipate that designation and whether

         12                    that's been decided prior to this

         13                    questioning?

         14                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         15                                   No, sir.  The Board has not

         16                    anticipated or decided on Mr. Bertone

         17                    as a Party In Interest.

         18                    MR. LONDON:

         19                                   Thank you.
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         20                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         21                                   Yes, sir. 

         22                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         23          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         24               Q.   Mr. Bertone, for the record, could you

         25          please state your full name and spell your
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          1          last?

          2               A.   Stephen Ray Bertone, B--E--R--T--O--

          3          N--E.

          4               Q.   And by whom are you employed, sir?

          5               A.   Transocean.

          6               Q.   And what position do you currently

          7          hold with Transocean?

          8               A.   Chief engineer.

          9               Q.   Prior to being a chief engineer, did

         10          you hold any other positions within

         11          Transocean?

         12               A.   I was an electrical supervisor.

         13               Q.   And how long were you an electrical

         14          supervisor, sir?

         15               A.   Seven years.

         16               Q.   Was that all onboard the DEEPWATER

         17          HORIZON?

         18               A.   No, sir.

         19               Q.   What other rigs did you work on?
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         20               A.   I've been on the F100 and the

         21          Transocean MARIANAS.

         22               Q.   So you had experience outside of

         23          Transocean on Global Sante Fe?

         24               A.   When I started in the oilfield, I

         25          started with Falcon Drilling and they were
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          1          purchased by Reading and Bates, and then

          2          Reading and Bates was again purchased by

          3          Transocean.

          4               Q.   How long have you been assigned to the

          5          DEEPWATER HORIZON?

          6               A.   Since 2003.  

          7               Q.   How long had you been the chief

          8          engineer?

          9               A.   Since November of 2008.

         10               Q.   2008?

         11               A.   Yes, sir.

         12               Q.   Prior to April 20th, how long had you

         13          been on your hitch?

         14               A.   I was there 18 days.

         15               Q.   Was there any safety problems of

         16          interest on the DEEPWATER HORIZON considering

         17          your job responsibilities prior to the

         18          incident?

         19                    MR. LONDON:
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         20                                   Could you be a little more --

         21                    MR. MATHEWS:

         22                                   Yes, sir.  I was going to try to

         23                    have an open question and see if he had

         24                    any stuff that he had on his mind

         25                    before I went into detail.
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          1                    MR. LONDON:

          2                                   I prefer if you --

          3                    MR. MATHEWS:

          4                                   Okay.  We can do that.

          5          BY MR. MATHEWS:

          6               Q.   Do you know what an A-chair, a B-

          7          chair, a C-chair is?

          8               A.   Yes, sir.

          9               Q.   Was there any problems with any of

         10          those?

         11               A.   I don't recall.

         12               Q.   Was there any problems specifically

         13          with the A-chair during a well-control

         14          incident where there was loss of power?

         15                         A.    I don't --

         16                         Q.    Can you define what the A-chair is?

         17                    MR. LONDON:

         18                                   Can he answer the question first?

         19          BY MR. MATHEWS:
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         20               Q.   Can you define what the A-chair is?

         21               A.   The A-chair is where the driller sits.

         22               Q.   What is occurring where the driller

         23          sits?  What is he monitoring?

         24               A.   He's monitoring the block placements,

         25          top drive torque, the depth of the well, mud
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          1          pumps and so forth.

          2               Q.   Was there ever any incidents

          3          associated with the A-chair with loss of

          4          electrical power?

          5               A.   During the event or prior to?

          6               Q.   Prior to.

          7               A.   Yes, there was.

          8               Q.   And when were those, the latest one?

          9               A.   I don't recall.

         10               Q.   Was there any problems with the Number

         11          4 thruster?

         12               A.   Yes.

         13               Q.   How long had that been going on?

         14               A.   Roughly, I would say about eight

         15          months.

         16               Q.   Eight months?

         17               A.   Yes, sir.

         18               Q.   Were any alarms bypassed for the

         19          activation of any general or visual alarms for
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         20          any high gas situations?

         21               A.   I don't know.

         22               Q.   Were any alarms bypassed on the

         23          DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         24               A.   I don't know.  

         25               Q.   You're the chief engineer and you

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (62 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:15 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                       32

          1          don't know if any alarms were bypassed?

          2               A.   I'm not in control of those alarms?

          3               Q.   Who's in control of those alarms?

          4               A.   The DP operators.

          5               Q.   DP operators?

          6               A.   Yes, sir.

          7               Q.   Who are the DP operators?

          8               A.   Do you want the names?

          9               Q.   Yes, please.

         10               A.   The ones during the actual event?

         11               Q.   On April 20th.

         12               A.   Yancy Keplinger and Andrea Fleytas.

         13               Q.   If there was an alarm that was

         14          bypassed, would it have to be under your

         15          approval?

         16               A.   No, sir.

         17               Q.   Let's go to April 20th.  I have your

         18          witness statement in front of you if you want

         19          to refer to it.  Can you just please give us a

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (63 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:15 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20          detail of that day and up to the incident?

         21               A.   From the time in the morning when I

         22          woke up?

         23               Q.   Yes, sir.

         24               A.   We had a 6:30 meeting between the OIM,

         25          the captain, senior toolpusher, the RSTC and
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          1          myself.  That was a phone call to town where

          2          we spoke to James Kent, the asset manager, and

          3          Paul Johnson, the performance manager.  After

          4          that, at approximately 8:30, we always have

          5          our supervisors' meeting where all the

          6          supervisors are required to attend.  After

          7          that, I went back to my office and was working

          8          on the upcoming rig move and the second

          9          upcoming rig move, also preparing the

         10          budgetary items and such for the BP officials

         11          and Transocean officials that were arriving

         12          later that day.  I went to lunch at

         13          approximately 11:30, 11:45.  I went back to my

         14          office and continued working on these

         15          documents and at approximately 3:30, 4

         16          o'clock, we had a meeting with the BP

         17          officials and the Transocean and it was deemed

         18          that we would go on a tour of the rig.  We

         19          toured several different spaces and made our
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         20          way up to the rig floor.  When we got to the

         21          rig floor, we went into the drill shack.  At

         22          that point, I was the last one into the drill

         23          shack.  It was standing room only.  At that

         24          point, I knew there was something going on,

         25          but I have no knowledge of what it was.  I was
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          1          asked by either Jimmy or Randy, Jimmy Harrell

          2          or Randy Ezell, that was on that tour with us

          3          to please continue the tour without them, that

          4          they needed to stay up there.  We went down

          5          and showed them a few more items -- went down

          6          into the pump rooms, showed them the thrusters

          7          and then went to dinner at approximately 6:30. 

          8          After dinner, we had a pre-scheduled meeting

          9          of all supervisors in the conference room,

         10          along with the BP and Transocean officials. 

         11          That lasted until approximately 9, 9:15. 

         12          After that, I went and had a cigarette and

         13          went to my state room, took a shower and got

         14          in the bed.

         15               Q.   And after that, up to the time you

         16          were on the DAMON BANKSTON?

         17               A.   I had just opened up my book and

         18          started reading the first sentence of the

         19          paragraph when I heard what sounded like the
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         20          tensioners being bled off.  I thought that was

         21          kind of strange because I had just spoken with

         22          Chris Pleasant and he had said that they were

         23          finish bleeding off the tensioners.  As it

         24          progressively got louder, it sounded like a

         25          freight train coming through my bedroom and
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          1          then there was a thumping sound that

          2          consecutively got much faster and with each

          3          thump, I felt the rig actually shake.  Then

          4          there was an initial boom.  The lights went

          5          out.  I jumped out of the bed, ran to my door

          6          because I knew that there were emergency

          7          lights out there so I'd be able to see to get

          8          dressed.  When I opened up the door, I

          9          actually smelled some sort of a fuel, as well

         10          as tasted it.  When I turned to go grab my

         11          clothing, the second explosion occurred, which

         12          threw me across my room.  I jumped up, grabbed

         13          my clothes, put my -- slipped my work boots

         14          on, grabbed my life vest and my hard hat.  I

         15          ran out into the hallway, to the center

         16          stairwell.  At that point, I observed about

         17          four or five people just standing there,

         18          froze, looking up at the stairwell.  When I

         19          looked at the stairwell itself, I don't know
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         20          if the stairs were there or not because there

         21          was so much debris.  It was completely

         22          impassable.  I hollered out to head to the

         23          port forward or starboard forward spiral

         24          staircase and go to your emergency stations. 

         25          I ran to the port spiral staircase and made my
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          1          way to the bridge.  Once I arrived on the

          2          bridge, I went to my station, which is the

          3          port side back computer, Simrad station

          4          system.  At that point, I observed that we had

          5          no engines, no thrusters, no power whatsoever. 

          6          I picked up the phone which was right there

          7          and I tried calling Extension 2268, which is

          8          the engine control room.  There was no dial

          9          tone whatsoever.  I hung the receiver up

         10          several times thinking that maybe somebody had

         11          left it off the hook; picked it back up; there

         12          was no phones.  I hollered out, "We have no

         13          coms."  At this point, I ran over to the

         14          starboard window of the bridge and looked back

         15          to the derrick.  Prior to this, for whatever

         16          reason, the second explosion and everything

         17          had not registered with me.  I initially

         18          thought that the block, the wire had parted

         19          and that thumping sound was the block coming
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         20          down the derrick.  I was fully expecting to

         21          see steel and pipe and everything on the rig

         22          floor.  When I looked out the window, I saw

         23          fire from derrick leg to derrick leg and as

         24          high as I could see.  At that point, I

         25          realized that we had just had a blowout.  I
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          1          ran back to my station thinking that the

          2          engine should be starting up because in

          3          approximately 25 to 30 seconds two engines

          4          start up, come online and automatically start

          5          closing the 11 KB feeder breakers, as well as

          6          starting up thrusters.  There was still no

          7          power of any kind.  No engines starting; no

          8          indication of engines starting.  I heard the

          9          water-tight door bang.  It was directly to my,

         10          on my left, behind me, and I heard somebody

         11          say the engine room ECR and pump room are

         12          gone.  They are all gone.  I turned around.  I

         13          didn't recognize who it was at the time

         14          because he was covered in blood, and I asked

         15          him, "What do you mean gone?"  He said,

         16          "They've blow up.  They're all gone.  They've

         17          blow up."  I looked at him, and I recognized

         18          his voice and it was Mike Williams, the chief

         19          ET.  At that point, I ran over to him and he
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         20          had a laceration over across his forehead.  I

         21          hollered out where the medical supplies were. 

         22          They said in the restroom, which is on the

         23          back of the bridge.  I ran to there, tried to

         24          find some kind of a gauze or something.  The

         25          only thing I could find was a roll of toilet
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          1          paper.  I ran back, stuck it to his head and

          2          said, "Hold this there."  I went back to my

          3          station, still not truly believing that these

          4          engines were gone.  I just couldn't fathom

          5          that.  Upon looking at the screen, there was

          6          still nothing, no engines starting, no

          7          thrusters running, nothing.  We were still

          8          dead ship.  I heard the water tight doors slam

          9          again.  When I turned back around, I noticed

         10          an individual holding a rag on the back of his

         11          left, head.  He hollered out to me, "I'm hurt. 

         12          I'm hurt bad, Chief.  I'm hurt real bad."  At

         13          that point, I recognized his voice because he

         14          was covered in blood, as well.  I ran back and

         15          looked -- pulled the rag away from his head

         16          and looked at his wound.  I immediately put

         17          the rag back to his head and hollered out for

         18          a medic.  I ran over to the -- just in case

         19          there was a medic on the bridge, which there
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         20          was not at the time.  I ran over to the

         21          starboard water tight door and hollered down

         22          to the lifeboats, "We need a medic up here

         23          now."  I ran back to my station and still

         24          hoping that engines would start.  There was

         25          nothing.  When I turned and looked back at
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          1          Brent, I noticed standing behind him Chris

          2          Pleasant, the subsea supervisor was standing

          3          at the BOP panel.  I hollered out to Chris

          4          Pleasant, "Have you EDSed?"  He said he needed

          5          permission to EDS.  When I turned to my left,

          6          Daun Winslow, the performance operations

          7          manager for Transocean was standing right next

          8          to me.  I asked him if we could EDS.  He said,

          9          "Yes."  When I turned to look back at Chris

         10          Pleasant, somebody on the bridge hollered out,

         11          "He cannot EDS without the OIM's approval."  I

         12          spun back around and saw Jimmy Harrell, the

         13          OIM, running across the bridge by the DP

         14          consoles.  I hollered out for Jimmy, "Can we

         15          EDS?"  He said, "Yes, EDS, EDS."  When I

         16          turned back to Chris, he was in the panel

         17          pushing a button.  I hollered to Chris, "I

         18          need confirmation that we have EDSed."  He

         19          said, "Yes, we've EDSed."  I said, "Chris, I
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         20          need confirmation again.  Have we EDSed?"  He

         21          said, "Yes."  I said, "Chris, I have to be

         22          certain.  Have we EDSed?"  He said, "Yes," and

         23          he pointed at a light in the panel.  At that

         24          point, I turned to the forward of the bridge

         25          and hollered out for Curt for permission to go
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          1          to the standby generator room and manually

          2          start it.  My thinking at that point was the

          3          BOP had unlatched, what remaining fuel would

          4          be in the riser it would burn away and we were

          5          going to need power, as well as fire pumps. 

          6          Curt said, "Yes, go."  The chief mate came

          7          running over to me with a radio.  We looked at

          8          the radios, turned them on, tried to get coms

          9          through the radios.  For whatever reason, we

         10          could not get coms through the radios, the VHF

         11          radios, standing five feet from each other. 

         12          We verified we were on the proper channel,

         13          same channel.  Again, we had no coms.  I said,

         14          "Don't worry about it," and I laid the radio

         15          down.  When I left the bridge, I went to close

         16          the water tight door, for whatever reason, and

         17          Mike Williams pushed the door back and he

         18          said, "You're not going alone, Chief."  I

         19          said, "Well, come on."  Paul Meinhart, the
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         20          motorman, also fell in line and we ran towards

         21          the standby generator.  As I was running to

         22          the standby generator, I looked up at the

         23          derrick where the crown should approximately

         24          be and I could see nothing but flames way past

         25          the crown.  I remember looking down at the
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          1          deck because it was very slick and I saw a

          2          substance that had a consistency of snot.  I

          3          can remember thinking to myself why is all

          4          this snot on the deck.  It was approximately,

          5          I would say, an inch to an inch and a half

          6          thick.  As I made my way -- as we made our way

          7          to the standby generator room, we had to come

          8          pass right by the BOP house, which has a huge

          9          door that's approximately, I'd say, 80, 90

         10          feet tall and probably 50 foot wide that you

         11          can actually look down into the moon pool. 

         12          When I looked into that space, I saw nothing

         13          but flames.  I could see no equipment

         14          whatsoever.  It was solid flames.  When we

         15          walked into the standby generator room, myself

         16          and Mike Williams ran to the starting panel. 

         17          I flipped the switch from automatic to manual,

         18          hit the reset button and the start button. 

         19          There was absolutely no turning over of the
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         20          engine.  I tried it again, the reset button

         21          and the start.  Again, nothing happened.  Mike

         22          Williams had hollered out because there was a

         23          voltage meter on the panel itself.  We have 24

         24          volts.  I stood there for a second.  Paul

         25          Meinhart was standing over by the water tight
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          1          door.  I looked at him and told him to shut

          2          the door because he was standing there with

          3          the door open looking at the flames.  At that

          4          point, I thought maybe if the engines are

          5          completely gone, all the 11 KV switchboards,

          6          maybe there's some kind of electrical

          7          interference or something that's not allowing

          8          this generator to start.  So I turned, and

          9          right behind the panel that I was at is the

         10          480 volt switch gear for the standby generator

         11          room.  I ran to it.  I opened, or closed the

         12          breaker, the main feeder breaker from the

         13          generator and then re-opened it.  I also

         14          turned the switch for the automatic sync on

         15          the standby generator to the panel to manual, 

         16          from automatic to manual.  I ran back to the

         17          panel and again, tried the reset and the

         18          start.  There was no turning over of the

         19          engine whatsoever.  I believe it was Mike that
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         20          hollered out, "Try the second battery bank,

         21          just in case."  I want to say it was Paul that

         22          actually flipped the switch.  I can't be sure,

         23          though.  But we did -- after the second

         24          battery bank was turned on, we tried it again. 

         25          There was absolutely nothing.  The engine did
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          1          not turn over whatsoever.  At that point, I

          2          said, "That's it.  Let's go back to the

          3          bridge.  It's not going to crank."  When we

          4          opened up the water tight door to go back out

          5          to the bridge, that's the first time that I

          6          actually felt the heat and it was very, very

          7          intense.  We ran to the bridge.  We came in

          8          through the portside door, water tight door. 

          9          I observed Yancy and Andrea were still at the

         10          radios.  I ran across the bridge to the other

         11          water tight door on the starboard side.  Curt

         12          was standing with the door open outside the

         13          bridge and he was looking down at the lifeboat

         14          station.  When I ran over there I looked down

         15          and I saw the Lifeboat #1 driving away,

         16          pulling away from the rig.  Lifeboat #2 was

         17          already gone.  At that point, I turned to Mike

         18          and Paul and I hollered out, "That's it,

         19          abandon ship.  Let's go."  They ran across the

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (85 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:16 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20          bridge and passed by me.  I turned and looked. 

         21          Yancy and Andrea were still at the radios and

         22          I hollered to them, "That's it.  Abandon ship. 

         23          Let's go, now."  When I saw them take off

         24          running to where we were, I turned and went

         25          out the water tight door.  Captain Curt was in
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          1          front of me.  We made our way to the lifeboat

          2          deck.  As we were coming down the stairs, I

          3          observed a man on a gurney at the bottom of

          4          the stairs with three people trying to get his

          5          life vest on him.  The three people were Stan

          6          Carden, Chad Murray and Randy Ezell.  At this

          7          point, I did not know who was in that gurney. 

          8          As we made it to the bottom of the stairs we

          9          turned and went to the davit for the life

         10          rafts.  We hooked the life raft up and

         11          proceeded to crank it up out of its lift,

         12          rotated around to the side of the rig and then

         13          drop it -- drop it out so that you could

         14          inflate the raft and you could be clear of the

         15          rig.  There was a rope attached to the

         16          shackling device that went from the shackle

         17          device to the boom down to the davit itself

         18          and it had two metal hooks that the rope was

         19          wrapped around and then shackled to the front
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         20          of it.  I do not know what this rope was for,

         21          but it hindered the life -- the davit and the

         22          life raft from clearing the rig.  At that

         23          point, we hollered out for a knife.  Nobody

         24          had one.  Mike Williams found the shackle;

         25          tried to unscrew it by hand.  He could not. 
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          1          He poured out a pair of -- we call them ET

          2          dykes.  They're basically nail clippers on

          3          steroids.  He proceeded to unscrew it, the

          4          shackle.  When that popped off, the life raft

          5          moved out over the side of the rig.  We

          6          started pulling the painter line.  At that

          7          point, I looked over to where the man on the

          8          gurney was.  There was one gentleman standing

          9          there.  I do not know who that was, but I

         10          jumped up and ran over there, grabbed the

         11          gurney and said, "Let's get him to the life

         12          boat," or the life raft.  When I got back to

         13          the life raft, I was on my knees right at the

         14          opening.  There was two people in the life

         15          raft; one of them was David Young.  I do not

         16          know who the other person was, but I made eye

         17          contact with David Young.  The raft was

         18          slightly turned from the opening where you

         19          would step off of the rig into the life raft
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         20          and it was slowly rotating around.  Once it

         21          rotated around, I shoved Wyman into the life

         22          raft and followed him directly afterwards.  As

         23          I entered the life raft, there was -- well,

         24          prior to that, I'm sorry, there was a lot of

         25          explosions still going on, smaller explosions,
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          1          and immense heat.  All the flames and heat

          2          from the rig floor were coming down the

          3          forward part of that deck, as well as all of

          4          the flames and the heat from under the rig. 

          5          They were meeting, I guess, in like a vortex

          6          or something right there at the life raft.  As

          7          I jumped in, I had my leather work gloves on. 

          8          I don't recall when I put them on, but I can

          9          remember feeling the intense heat through

         10          those gloves and on my knees.  I went to the

         11          far side of the life raft and I heard the

         12          injured person on the gurney start hollering,

         13          "My leg, my leg."  I also heard Andrea

         14          screaming, "We're going to die.  We're going

         15          to die."  At that point, I honestly thought

         16          that we were going to cook right there.  The

         17          life raft, I guess from hurriedness and

         18          jumping in there and so forth, it actually

         19          fell.  At that point, the life raft actually
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         20          dipped forward and back.  It started rocking

         21          back and forth.  There was smoke in the life

         22          raft and the next thing I knew the life raft

         23          was descending and as we got closer to the

         24          water, the smoke cleared out.  When we touched

         25          the water, I heard somebody holler out, "Where
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          1          are the paddles?"  I was right there by the

          2          door, the exit door.  I jumped out of the life

          3          raft and grabbed hold of the rope on the side

          4          of the life raft and started swimming, trying

          5          to pull the life raft away.  I know that Chad

          6          Murray jumped out and was right behind me. 

          7          Paul Meinhart jumped out of the life raft and

          8          he was right in front of me.  I was swimming

          9          on my side looking up at the rig, I would say

         10          25, 30 feet above me.  There was a tremendous

         11          amount of smoke bellowing out from under the

         12          rig.  At that point, I saw a person's boots

         13          and his clothing and stuff come shooting

         14          through the smoke.  Just before he landed, I

         15          noticed that it was Curt.  He landed

         16          approximately five feet from me.  Within

         17          seconds, a half a second later, another pair

         18          of boots and person came flying out of the

         19          smoke and he was approximately ten feet from

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (93 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:16 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20          me.  Just before he hit the water, I noticed

         21          it was Yancy Keplinger.  As we're swimming,

         22          trying to pull this life raft away from the

         23          rig, I got to a point where I could see the

         24          helideck.  I witnessed an individual running

         25          at full speed across the helideck.  When he
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          1          jumped off the end of the helideck, he was

          2          still running.  Just before he splashed into

          3          the water, he was actually looking over at us

          4          and that was Mike Williams.  I noticed that

          5          shortly after that, that we were not going any

          6          further from the rig.  About that time,

          7          somebody hollered out, "Oh, my God, the

          8          painter line is tied to the rig."  I looked

          9          back over my shoulder past the life raft and

         10          noticed the white painter line going up into

         11          the smoke. At that point, I heard Chad Murray,

         12          which was right behind me, started screaming

         13          for help, "Help.  We need help over here."  I

         14          looked out to see and I would have to say

         15          probably 50, 60 yards away there was the fast

         16          rescue craft, the FRC, from the DAMON

         17          BANKSTON.  I saw two flashing lights in the

         18          water.  Just as I looked at it, one of those

         19          was getting hauled into the boat and seconds
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         20          later, the second person was hauled into that

         21          boat.  The fast rescue craft started driving

         22          towards us and we were hollering, "We need a

         23          knife.  We need a knife."  When they got

         24          probably ten or 15 feet from us, an individual

         25          came up to the bow of the boat with a very
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          1          large, foldable pocket knife.  Curt swam out,

          2          grabbed the knife and swam to the back of the

          3          life raft.  I followed Curt to the back of the

          4          life raft to assist if he needed it.  He cut

          5          the rope.  I swam back to the front of the

          6          life raft and immediately started swimming,

          7          pulling the life raft again.  Chad Murray, and

          8          I believe Paul, were tying up the fast rescue

          9          craft to the life raft and then the life raft

         10          backed us away from the rig after that point. 

         11          When we got to the actual boat, we were all

         12          still in the water, the ones that had got out

         13          of the life raft.  The only people, to my

         14          knowledge, that were still in the life raft

         15          was Randy Ezell, Stan Carden and the injured

         16          person on the gurney.  When we exited the

         17          water, I stayed on the fast rescue craft and

         18          assisted getting the injured person out of the

         19          life raft, which at that time I learned that
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         20          it was Wyman Wheeler.  Once on deck -- once

         21          all the life boats and life rafts and

         22          everything was empty, we had our -- the first

         23          muster that I had witnessed.  At that point,

         24          it was determined that 11 individuals didn't

         25          make it.  From there, I went and started
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          1          checking to make sure that all my people were

          2          accounted for.  I did not find the one, Brent

          3          Mansfield.  I had learned that there was a, I

          4          guess the hospital, or makeshift hospital on

          5          the vessel, which was on the main deck itself. 

          6          I made my way into there; found Brent.  He was

          7          laying on the floor.  He had bandages and

          8          gauze all over his head.  He had oxygen on his

          9          mouth and he also had a neck brace.  He was --

         10          his head was kind of facing a man that was on

         11          a bunk, a bed.  I stepped inbetween Brent and

         12          the man in the bunk and was trying to keep

         13          Brent from going to sleep.  He kept wanting to

         14          go to sleep and I kept waking him up and

         15          adjusting his oxygen mask.  The man on the

         16          actual bed was Buddy Trahan.  And I tried

         17          talking to him, as well, to keep him awake. 

         18          When the Coast Guard arrived, the rescue

         19          swimmer, he came in back there and he asked,
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         20          "Who's the critical?"  At that point, Troy

         21          Hadaway and Bill, the medic -- Troy Hadaway is

         22          the RSTC, which was the medic on the rig at

         23          one point in time.  And Bill, I don't remember

         24          his last name, stated that Buddy Trahan was

         25          the worst.  At that point, they brought in a

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (100 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:16 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                       51

          1          gurney.  I stepped to the backside of the bed

          2          to assist in getting Buddy on the gurney.  I

          3          had placed my hands on his hip and his

          4          shoulder to roll him to get the gurney under

          5          him.  As I rolled him, he was screaming and

          6          hollering that his leg was hurt real bad.  He

          7          had a severe laceration on his leg.  He also

          8          had a twisted and mangled lower calf on that 

          9          -- on his left leg.  His fingernails were

         10          gone.  He had a hole in the side of his neck. 

         11          He had multiple lacerations all over him.  As

         12          I rolled him and went to go get a second

         13          position to roll him a little further, Bill

         14          was standing on the other side of the bunk

         15          from me and he said, "Oh, my God."  And I

         16          looked back and Buddy's back was burned from

         17          belt to head.  Once we got him on the gurney,

         18          they took him out.  I continued helping Brent

         19          as best I could.  They came back.  I don't
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         20          recall if it was Wyman that went next or Brent

         21          Mansfield, but we stayed -- I stayed there

         22          with him until they did come get Brent.  When

         23          I left there, again, I checked on all my guys

         24          and seen how they were doing and made my way

         25          up to one of the upper levels and sat there
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          1          and watched the rig burn.

          2               Q.   Thank you.  Thank you for the detailed

          3          summary.

          4               A.   Yes, sir.

          5               Q.   In the statement you just gave us you

          6          said that there was standing room only in the

          7          driller's shed.  About what time was that at;

          8          do you recall?

          9               A.   It was approximately 5:30.

         10               Q.   Was it common to have standing room

         11          only in the driller's shed at any time?

         12               A.   Generally during like tour change or

         13          something of that nature, which is around

         14          11:30 -- between 11:30 and 12.

         15               Q.   Was there additional people in the

         16          driller's shed at that time, at 5:30, because

         17          of the people that were onboard the rig from

         18          the beach, from BP and Transocean?

         19               A.   Yes.  There was -- there was several
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         20          additional people in there.

         21               Q.   Was there any activity going on on the

         22          rig floor at that time that should have had --

         23               A.   I don't recall.

         24               Q.   During your conversation with Chris

         25          Pleasant that you were just discussing, you
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          1          said that he said, "Yes, we have, multiple

          2          times," when you asked him if he had performed

          3          the EDS.  At any time did he mention anything

          4          to you about we have no hydraulics?

          5               A.   No, sir.

          6               Q.   At any time did he point to the camera

          7          panel and indicate any problems?

          8               A.   No, sir.

          9               Q.   In your written statement you had --

         10          you wrote down, "the Captain was screaming at

         11          Andrea for pushing the distress button."  Do

         12          you know --

         13                    MR. LONDON:

         14                                   I'd like to lodge an objection to

         15                    that question.  This statement, and I

         16                    believe you're referring to the

         17                    statement that was given on the

         18                    BANKSTON?

         19                    MR. MATHEWS:
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         20                                   Yes, sir.

         21                    MR. LONDON:

         22                                   This statement was given after he

         23                    had been detained on that BANKSTON for

         24                    26 hours without any ability to contact

         25                    anyone, including his family or counsel
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          1                    and I would object to the statement

          2                    stands for what the statement says and

          3                    we're not going to be cross-examined on

          4                    the minusha contained within the

          5                    statement.  So I would instruct the

          6                    client not to answer that question.

          7                    MR. DYKES:

          8                                   What we're asking him to do is

          9                    either to confirm what's on the

         10                    statement or to set the record

         11                    straight.

         12                    MR. LONDON:

         13                                   Mr. Dykes, the statement is what

         14                    the statement is.  And that's -- we're

         15                    not going to sit here and say, "No,

         16                    that's not what's in the statement. 

         17                    That's not what's in the statement or

         18                    it isn't.  The statement speaks for

         19                    itself."
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         20                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         21                                   The statement was taken not under

         22                    oath.  So he's under oath now.  He can

         23                    confirm or deny the accuracy of that

         24                    statement and I think that's a fair

         25                    call.
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          1                    MR. LONDON:

          2                                   Captain, on 1001 Title 18 of the

          3                    United States Code, lying to a federal

          4                    officer, is a felony. Anything you --

          5                    if I say, "Good morning" -- I may be a

          6                    little facetious here -- But, if I say

          7                    Good morning to you and it's afternoon,

          8                    I'm subject to prosecution under that. 

          9                    We're not going to go there.

         10                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         11                                   Mr. Bertone, your counsel advised

         12                    you that --

         13                    MR. LONDON:

         14                                   I'm advised by my client they did

         15                    take an oath on that vessel.

         16                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         17                                   What's that?

         18                    MR. LONDON:

         19                                   I'm advised by my client that they

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (109 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:16 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20                    did take an oath on that vessel.

         21                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         22                                   Okay.  I understand.

         23          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         24               Q.   Does Andrea have the authority to

         25          activate the EDS or distress?
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          1               A.   I don't know.

          2               Q.   Mike Williams is a subordinate of

          3          yours, correct?

          4               A.   Correct.  

          5               Q.   And on the chain of command, how do

          6          you communicate with the DPO?  Does he

          7          communicate through you to the DPO or does he

          8          communicate directly to the DPO?

          9               A.   Can you clarify that question?

         10               Q.   The dynamic position -- earlier you

         11          told me that the people that monitor the

         12          alarms that would be aware of any alarms that

         13          were bypassed would be the DP officer,

         14          correct?

         15               A.   Correct.  

         16               Q.   If he had any concerns with that,

         17          would he address it to you or would he address

         18          it to the dynamic position officer?

         19               A.   Generally, the dynamic position
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         20          officer, as they get any kind of erroneous

         21          alarms, they would call either the electrical

         22          supervisor or the chief ET on tour directly.

         23               Q.   During the -- when you were in your

         24          room reading your book, was there any

         25          notification to you to evacuate? 
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          1               A.   Not to evacuate, no.

          2               Q.   To muster?

          3               A.   As I opened up -- as I was running to

          4          the door and opened up the door, I did hear

          5          Yancy Keplinger announcing, "Fire, fire, fire,

          6          we have fire" and he started naming off engine

          7          rooms, ECR, multiple locations.  After the

          8          second explosion, I didn't hear anymore PA

          9          announcements.

         10               Q.   And that was just an audio to the

         11          whole rig?

         12               A.   Yes, sir.

         13               Q.   If there were a gas alarm, that had

         14          detected two high gas in one zone, would it

         15          trip a general alarm?

         16               A.   Yes, sir.

         17               Q.   Did you hear a general alarm?

         18               A.   I don't recall.

         19               Q.   Would you hear the general alarm from
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         20          where you were located at on the rig?

         21               A.   Yes.

         22               Q.   At any time during the evacuation,

         23          were you told to leave anyone behind?

         24                    MR. LONDON:

         25                                   Objection to that one.  I think,
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          1                    Mr. Mathews, you're trying to

          2                    circumvent my former objection,

          3                    previous objection concerning him

          4                    testifying relative to the specifics of

          5                    this statement. If it's in the

          6                    statement, whatever is in the statement

          7                    will stand on the statement.  Other

          8                    than that, I am instructing my client

          9                    not to answer those questions.

         10          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         11               Q.   Which engines were running at the time

         12          of the incident, sir?

         13               A.   I'm sorry?

         14               Q.   Which engines were running at the time

         15          of the incident?

         16               A.   I'm not certain.  I know there was two

         17          operational. 

         18               Q.   Are you familiar with the engines?

         19               A.   Yes, sir.
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         20               Q.   Were there any safety devices to

         21          prevent engine overspeed on them?

         22               A.   Yes, sir.

         23               Q.   And which are those?

         24               A.   Your overspeed device.

         25               Q.   Is it mechanical, electronic?
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          1               A.   It's both mechanical and electronic.

          2               Q.   Do you know when they were last tested

          3          or inspected?

          4               A.   A week prior.

          5               Q.   Was that during the MODU spec?

          6               A.   Yes, sir.

          7               Q.   Did you witness that inspection?

          8               A.   No, sir, not personally.

          9               Q.   Who would have witnessed that?

         10               A.   The first engineer.

         11               Q.   And who is the first engineer?

         12               A.   Brent Mansfield.  It would have either

         13          been Brent Mansfield or the engineer on tour.

         14               Q.   What was the frequency of inspecting

         15          those devices?

         16               A.   I don't recall.  

         17               Q.   Were you responsible for that?

         18               A.   For --

         19               Q.   The inspection of those devices, or
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         20          who was responsible for the inspection of the

         21          safety devices, the overspeed devices, on the

         22          actual engines?

         23               A.   The engineers, the first engineer,

         24          second and third engineer.

         25               Q.   And do they report to you?
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          1               A.   They report through the RMS system. 

          2          If there's any problems or so forth, then they

          3          notify me.

          4               Q.   So you don't know what the inspection

          5          frequency of the devices that -- 

          6               A.   I don't recall.

          7                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          8                                   Mr. Bertone, there's a difference

          9                    between "I don't know" and "I don't

         10                    recall."  You understand that, right?

         11                    THE WITNESS:

         12                                   Yes, sir.

         13                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         14                                   Okay.

         15          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         16               Q.   Have you ever seen any inspectors on

         17          the rig inspecting those devices, the

         18          overspeed devices, outside of the MODU spec

         19          auditors?
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         20               A.   Yes, sir.

         21               Q.   Who are they?

         22               A.   The Coast Guard, as well as BP

         23          auditors and such.

         24               Q.   DNV?

         25               A.   BP.
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          1               Q.   Oh, BP, sorry.  Do you know if there's

          2          an emergency shutdown system in the engine

          3          control room?

          4               A.   Yes.

          5               Q.   Was there ever any notification to

          6          those in the engine room to shut down their

          7          engines?

          8               A.   I do not know.

          9               Q.   Do you know if there is a policy in

         10          place during a well-control scenario for the

         11          people in the engine room to shut down if

         12          they're given any type of warning?

         13               A.   No, sir, I do not.

         14               Q.   Earlier you had mentioned that you

         15          heard some stuff about they had a discussion

         16          in the drilling shack.  How familiar are you

         17          with well operation?

         18               A.   Very, very limited.

         19               Q.   Do you recall any of that conversation
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         20          when you said there was standing room only?

         21               A.   No, sir.

         22               Q.   Who was leading that conversation; do

         23          you know?

         24               A.   I do not know.

         25               Q.   In relation to -- are you familiar
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          1          with the air intake system for the engine

          2          rooms?

          3               A.   Yes, sir.

          4               Q.   I have a blown up map over there, but

          5          I think I also have one that's right in front

          6          of you that's not to scale as that.  It's

          7          Bates number BP-HZN-MBI00131951.

          8               A.   Yes, sir.

          9               Q.   Is that the intrinsic area around the

         10          rig floor that's detailed on that image, sir?

         11                    MR. KOHNKE:

         12                                   Can you hold up, Mr. Mathews?

         13                    MR. MATHEWS:

         14                                   Yes, sir.

         15                    MR. KOHNKE:

         16                                   This is the problem that I

         17                    envisioned.  I'd like to get the

         18                    exhibit in front of me that you are

         19                    using and the witness is using.
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         20                    UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

         21                                   Can we get the number again,

         22                    please?

         23                    MR. MATHEWS:

         24                                   No problem.  BP-HZN-MBI00131951.

         25                    MR. KOHNKE:
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          1                                   That's a document with a Bates

          2                    number; is that correct?

          3                    MR. MATHEWS:

          4                                   Yes.

          5                    MR. KOHNKE:

          6                                   Among perhaps thousands. Do you

          7                    have --

          8                    MR. MATHEWS:

          9                                   I'll give you one.

         10                    MR. KOHNKE:

         11                                   Thank you.

         12          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         13               Q.   Is the grayed out area the intrinsic

         14          area of the rig floor?

         15               A.   Yes, sir.  Well, it's the hazardous

         16          area.

         17               Q.   Hazardous area.  And how far away from

         18          that area are the air intake systems for the

         19          engine room?
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         20               A.   I don't know the actual distance.

         21               Q.   Would you like to show us on the board

         22          where the air intake system is for the engine

         23          room?  If I give you a highlighter, would you

         24          highlight on it?

         25               A.   Do you want me to?
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          1               Q.   Yes, please.

          2               A.   There is multiple intake sites

          3                         Q.    For the Engine Room Number 3.

          4                         A.    (Conversation away from the

          5          microphones.)

          6               Q.   Can you tell the court reporter what

          7          you just told me, please?

          8               A.   I don't know the actual location for

          9          Engine #3.     

         10               Q.   Those are not the same description --

         11                    MR. KOHNKE:

         12                                   I didn't think it was.  Did you

         13                    give me a different document?

         14                    MR. MATHEWS:

         15                                   No, I have -- we have this one.  We

         16                    were referencing.  We just couldn't

         17                    blow this one up to make it a visual

         18                    that would stand out on paper because

         19                    of the quality of the PDF.  But just
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         20                    for fairness, we're all looking at the

         21                    same one, Mr. Kohnke, up here.

         22          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         23               Q.   Do you know how often that they tested

         24          or inspected the air intake systems that

         25          prevented the flow of gas or anything into the
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          1          engine rooms?

          2               A.   I don't recall from the PM system.

          3               Q.   Who would be responsible for that?

          4               A.   Engineers.

          5               Q.   The engineers that you named earlier,

          6          Mr. Mansfield and -- 

          7               A.   Yes, sir.

          8               Q.   Were you aware -- I'm going to

          9          introduce something else into -- it's BP audit

         10          and it's Bates Number BP-HZN-MBI00136211 and

         11          it's entitled DEEPWATER HORIZON follow-up rig

         12          audit marine insurance audit and out-of-

         13          service period September 2009.

         14                    MR. KOHNKE:

         15                                   You're asking --

         16                    MR. MATHEWS:

         17                                   I was introducing it and then I was

         18                    going to follow up with the questions.

         19                    CAPT NGUYEN:
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         20                                   Mr. Kohnke, I'd rather have the

         21                    legal representative for Mr. Bertone

         22                    ask the questions instead of from you.

         23                    MR. KOHNKE:

         24                                   Captain, I'm not asking questions. 

         25                    What I'm trying to do is to understand
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          1                    the question.  I need to understand

          2                    what he was asking is he aware or did

          3                    he have personal knowledge  If he's

          4                    asking if he was aware, then I may have

          5                    an objection because first of all I

          6                    need to understand the question to know

          7                    if I need to object to it.  So I'm not

          8                    asking the question, I'm asking to

          9                    understand the question. 

         10                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         11                                   Yes, sir.  I just want to point

         12                    that out because he does have a legal

         13                    representative and I just want to --

         14                    MR. LONDON:

         15                                   Is this the latest or is this prior

         16                    to the incident?

         17                    MR. MATHEWS:

         18                                   This was prior to the incident. 

         19                    There was one that was done by MODU
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         20                    spec on April 1 through April 14.

         21                    MR. LONDON:

         22                                   And you want to question him about

         23                    this document or you want to ask him

         24                    his personal knowledge?

         25                    MR. MATHEWS:
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          1                                   I was going to ask him if he

          2                    participated in that audit that was

          3                    performed by BP.

          4                    THE WITNESS:

          5                                   Yes.

          6          BY MR. MATHEWS:

          7               Q.   Who's the DEEPWATER HORIZON

          8          maintenance supervisor?

          9               A.   That's -- I'm technically classified

         10          as that, as well.

         11               Q.   Are you responsible for responding to

         12          that audit?

         13               A.   Yes.

         14               Q.   And how do you manage what's

         15          referenced in that audit and actually

         16          completing the recommendations that are made

         17          by BP?

         18               A.   When we receive back the actual audit

         19          itself, we converted it to an Excel
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         20          spreadsheet and certain items were assigned to

         21          different department heads.  Those department

         22          heads reported back to me as to the status of

         23          them and then I updated it and forwarded it on

         24          to the asset manager and performance manager.

         25               Q.   That audit, I have it, if you want to
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          1          open it up.  It actually references when you

          2          were doing the audits and what was being

          3          performed by Transocean personnel that all

          4          repairs -- not all repairs, but repairs that

          5          either deteriorated again or not been suitably

          6          addressed in the final instance.  Were the

          7          repairs that you all were making on the

          8          DEEPWATER HORIZON -- I'm sorry, did you want

          9          to refer to the --

         10                    MR. LONDON:

         11                                   I would ask, Mr. Mathews, we did

         12                    not receive any of these documents

         13                    prior to today.  Did not prepare by

         14                    looking through them.  I would not

         15                    object if you asked him what he knows.

         16                    MR. MATHEWS:

         17                                   Fair enough.

         18                    MR. LONDON:

         19                                   But as far as referring to them --
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         20                    MR. MATHEWS:

         21                                   That's fair enough.  It's a big

         22                    document so I'm sure he hasn't read the

         23                    whole thing anyway.

         24                    MR. LONDON:

         25                                   Correct.
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          1          BY MR. MATHEWS:

          2               Q.   What was presented to you about that

          3          audit?  Was there any problems that BP had

          4          with the deterioration of equipment on the

          5          DEEPWATER HORIZON?

          6               A.   From the initial assessment?

          7               Q.   Yes, sir.

          8               A.   Yes.

          9               Q.   And was the follow-up assessment, we

         10          were looking at it, noted that from the

         11          initial assessment that the problems that they

         12          had addressed were not being properly repaired

         13          or if they were even addressed when they

         14          returned in September of 2009.  Is that

         15          accurate?

         16                    MR. LONDON:

         17                                   If you know.

         18                    THE WITNESS:

         19                                   I don't know.
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         20          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         21               Q.   Can you please briefly, I think you

         22          mentioned RMS?

         23               A.   Yes.

         24               Q.   Can you please elaborate on what that

         25          program is, sir?
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          1               A.   It's the rig maintenance system.  It's

          2          where all the PMs and work orders and ordering

          3          of parts and so forth are carried out.  It's a

          4          Transocean maintenance system.

          5               Q.   Was there any excessive jobs that were

          6          overdue for maintenance on the DEEPWATER

          7          HORIZON?

          8                    MR. LONDON:

          9                                   I would object to the term

         10                    excessive.  That's ambiguous.

         11          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         12               Q.   Were there some problems on the

         13          DEEPWATER HORIZON that were not being

         14          addressed because of the amount of manpower

         15          that was available to Transocean personnel?

         16                    MR. LONDON:

         17                                   Can you answer that?

         18                    THE WITNESS:

         19                                   The thing with the RMS system, that
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         20                    was just implemented back in 2009 at

         21                    the time of that marine assurance

         22                    audit.  There was also a lot of PMs and

         23                    crafts and such that were not

         24                    appropriate to the rig equipment --

         25                    many, many duplicates and we've been in
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          1                    the process of going through and

          2                    eliminating those.  If you look back at

          3                    the history on it, you would see that

          4                    there were a lot of PMs that were not

          5                    done in the allotted time.  But there

          6                    was also a lot of those that did not

          7                    apply to this vessel.

          8                              MR. LONDON:

          9                                        Excuse me one second.

         10                              THE WITNESS:

         11                                        Most of those, as I recall, were --

         12                              there were no major PMs past due. 

         13                    There was more moderate to minor.

         14          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         15               Q.   Well, at the time of the incident, was

         16          there any problems of being behind on planned

         17          maintenance or scheduled maintenance?

         18               A.   I don't know.

         19               Q.   Were there a lot of personnel changes
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         20          in the last two years on the DEEPWATER HORIZON

         21          that occurred that you're aware of?

         22                    MR. LONDON:

         23                                   I would object to the term "a lot

         24                    of."  Can you be more specific?

         25          BY MR. MATHEWS:
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          1               Q.   Were there personnel changes under

          2          your direct supervision?

          3               A.   Yes.

          4               Q.   How many?

          5               A.   I don't know an exact number.

          6               Q.   15, 20?

          7                    MR. LONDON:

          8                                   Don't speculate.

          9                    THE WITNESS:

         10                                   I don't know.

         11          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         12               Q.   Did their turnover personnel actually

         13          have an affect on your maintenance on the

         14          DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         15                    MR. LONDON:

         16                                   Objection.  That's an opinion. 

         17                    He's testifying to facts.  That's the

         18                    oath he took.  The oath he took was to

         19                    testify to facts, nothing but the
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         20                    truth.

         21                    MR. MATHEWS:

         22                                   I think he'll be very well aware of

         23                    the fact that if he had maintenance

         24                    problems and if it was related to the

         25                    personnel that he lost.
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          1                    MR. LONDON:

          2                                   If you ask him was there a

          3                    maintenance problem directly related, I

          4                    don't have any problem with that.  But

          5                    if you ask him does he think that

          6                    there's a problem, I have a problem

          7                    with that.

          8          BY MR. MATHEWS:

          9               Q.   Was there a maintenance problem with

         10          the number of personnel turnover that you had

         11          on the DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         12                    MR. LONDON:

         13                                   If you know.

         14                    THE WITNESS:

         15                                   I don't know.

         16          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         17               Q.   Is there a competency assurance

         18          program on the DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         19               A.   Are you referring to like roles and
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         20          responsibility?

         21               Q.   I'm talking about a program that

         22          insures your competency as to the job you're

         23          performing.

         24               A.   Yes, sir.

         25               Q.   Did Transocean have a pool of

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (146 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:16 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                       74

          1          personnel that weren't permanent employees to

          2          the DEEPWATER HORIZON that would come when

          3          there was behind schedule maintenance to

          4          perform jobs?

          5               A.   Yes.

          6               Q.   Were they qualified to do their jobs

          7          per your review of their work?

          8               A.   Yes.

          9               Q.   The report that I referred to earlier,

         10          it cited that the marine -- the maintenance

         11          supervisor, who you said was yourself, had

         12          told the auditors that a lack of manpower as

         13          the reason of no progress on these engines,

         14          talking about Engine #1 and Engine #6 as

         15          having some delayed maintenance.  Is that an

         16          accurate statement?

         17                    MR. LONDON:

         18                                   If you would rephrase that, Mr.

         19                    Mathews, and ask him does he know that
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         20                    to be true?

         21          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         22               Q.   Do you know that to be true?

         23               A.   I don't recall.

         24               Q.   Do you know who the auditors were?

         25               A.   I don't recall their names.
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          1               Q.   Did you participate in the MODU spec

          2          audit?

          3               A.   I was there during the MODU spec, yes.

          4               Q.   And who -- well, did you actually

          5          participate in it at the engine room level?

          6               A.   No, sir.

          7               Q.   The report indicated that the test

          8          were successful on the overspeed devices on

          9          the engines in the engine room.  Do you know

         10          what that meant?  What was successful?

         11                    MR. LONDON:

         12                                   Objection to that.  We haven't read

         13                    the report and don't know what they're

         14                    talking about in context.  If you have

         15                    a specific question, not whether he

         16                    knows the test was successful or

         17                              not.

         18          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         19               Q.   Do you know how the engines were
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         20          tested when they performed their audit on the

         21          MODU spec engine rooms?

         22               A.   They were manually oversped.

         23               Q.   Did they shut down?

         24               A.   To my knowledge, yes.

         25               Q.   Was that from some relay of
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          1          information to you and who relayed that to

          2          you?

          3               A.   That would be from my engineers that

          4          relayed it back to me.

          5               Q.   Was the DEEPWATER HORIZON scheduled to

          6          go to the shipyard?

          7               A.   Yes. 

          8               Q.   When was that?

          9               A.   It was supposed to be the early part

         10          of 2011.

         11               Q.   Do you know how long that it was going

         12          to be in the shipyard for?

         13               A.   I don't recall the exact amount of

         14          days.

         15               Q.   Was there any information passed to

         16          you along the lines of maintenance issues

         17          being the reason to go into the shipyard?

         18                    MR. LONDON:

         19                                   I would object.  That's vague --
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         20          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         21               Q.   Were you ever in any meetings with

         22          management or any BP personnel or Transocean

         23          personnel that scheduled rig maintenance and

         24          said, "We're going to the shipyard because we

         25          have a lot of maintenance to take care of"?
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          1                    MR. LONDON:

          2                                   Again, I object.  Can you give a

          3                    time frame?  Is that -- how long

          4                              before -- 

          5                    MR. MATHEWS:

          6                                   MODU spec audit.

          7                    MR. LONDON:

          8                                   If you know.

          9                    THE WITNESS:

         10                                   I did not hear them talking about

         11                    it.

         12          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         13               Q.   What was the plan for the shipyard

         14          visit?

         15               A.   There were many items that were

         16          planned, but I don't have all the specifics as

         17          to what it was.

         18               Q.   Were you aware that -- obviously you

         19          were aware of the visit on April 20th by the
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         20          Transocean and BP personnel.  At any time, did

         21          they discuss rig maintenance with you or

         22          anybody on your staff?

         23                    MR. LONDON:

         24                                   That's a compound question.  Do you

         25                    want to just know his personnel
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          1                    knowledge?

          2                    MR. MATHEWS:

          3                                   Yes.

          4                    MR. DYKES:

          5                                   Let's back up to the first

          6                    question.  As chief engineer, what is

          7                    most important for the shipyard visit

          8                    from your standpoint?  What is most

          9                    important to get done as far as

         10                    maintenance when it goes to the

         11                    shipyard?

         12                    MR. LONDON:

         13                                   Mr. Dykes, on that particular

         14                    visit?

         15                              MR. DYKES:

         16                                        Yes.

         17                    THE WITNESS:

         18                                   That would be your thrusters, your

         19                    engines, your seawater systems, your
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         20                    ballast systems and then your drilling

         21                    systems.

         22                    MR. DYKES:

         23                                   Based on that and based on your

         24                    knowledge of the rig, what work needed

         25                    to be performed when it went to the
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          1                    yard?

          2                    THE WITNESS:

          3                                   I don't know.  I don't want to

          4                    speculate on it.

          5                    MR. DYKES:

          6                                   But you're the chief engineer.  You

          7                    don't know what's --

          8                    MR. LONDON:

          9                                   He answered the question, Mr.

         10                    Dykes.

         11                    MR. DYKES:

         12                                   But I'm trying to make sure I

         13                    understand this.  Did you have a

         14                    punchlist of items that you had

         15                    prepared for when it went to the

         16                    shipyard?

         17                    THE WITNESS:

         18                                   Yes.

         19                    MR. DYKES:
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         20                                   What was on that punchlist?

         21                              MR. LONDON:

         22                                        If you remember?  Do you remember?

         23                    THE WITNESS:

         24                                   Thrusters, seawater systems,

         25                    ballast systems, engines and drilling
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          1                    equipment.

          2                    MR. DYKES:

          3                                   Thank you.

          4          BY MR. MATHEWS:

          5               Q.   On April 20th, did you discuss with

          6          any BP or Transocean management that showed up

          7          on the rig, rig maintenance?

          8               A.   Yes.

          9               Q.   What did you discuss?

         10               A.   We discussed the out-of-service

         11          period between wells for the upcoming rig

         12          move, as well as the next upcoming rig move.

         13               Q.   What was scheduled to be fixed or

         14          repaired during that out-of-service time

         15          period?

         16               A.   It was multiple items.  I don't recall

         17          all of them.

         18               Q.   Any one of any relevance that was high

         19          priority?
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         20                    MR. LONDON:

         21                                   Objection to the -- of any

         22                    relevance to what?

         23                    MR. MATHEWS:

         24                                   To what was the most critical to be

         25                    maintained or repaired.
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          1                    MR. LONDON:

          2                                   I believe he just answered he

          3                    doesn't know the list of items.

          4          BY MR. MATHEWS:

          5               Q.   One last question.  You had been on

          6          the DEEPWATER HORIZON since 2003, correct?

          7               A.   Correct.

          8               Q.   Was it a practice to have able-bodied

          9          seaman in the bridge to go into areas that had

         10          high gas alarms go off with gas detectors in

         11          lieu of an electric alarm that sends off a

         12          general alarm.

         13                    MR. LONDON:

         14                                   Objection.  Are you asking was it a

         15                    practice or has it ever happened?

         16                    MR. MATHEWS:

         17                                        A practice first.

         18                    MR. LONDON:

         19                                   So he knows the terms a practice
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         20                    would be that that's just a continual

         21                    ongoing thing that's done?

         22                    MR. MATHEWS:

         23                                   Yes, sir.

         24                    MR. KOHNKE:

         25                                   Can you rephrase your question? 
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          1                    I'm not following what you're trying to

          2                    ask.

          3          BY MR. MATHEWS:

          4               Q.   Earlier I had asked you some questions

          5          about the electrical alarms that would, or

          6          high gas alarms that if they had two high gas

          7          alarms go off in one zone on the DEEPWATER

          8          HORIZON it would initiate a general or a

          9          visual alarm that would have lights go off; is

         10          that true?

         11               A.   That's correct.

         12               Q.   In your seven years on the DEEPWATER

         13          HORIZON, did you ever see, or in your meetings

         14          with the DPOs, discuss having an able-bodied

         15          seaman on the bridge monitor high gas alarms

         16          that have multiple alarms going off in one

         17          zone in lieu of having an alarm that goes off

         18          and automatically trips an audio or visual

         19          alarm?
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         20               A.   Can you please clarify that, break it

         21          down?

         22               Q.   Yes.  You have able-bodied seamen in

         23          the bridge monitoring multiple gas alarms; is

         24          that true?

         25               A.   Yes.
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          1               Q.   You have a gas detection system that

          2          monitors for high gas?

          3               A.   Yes.

          4               Q.   If a high gas alarm goes off within --

          5          two high gas alarms go off in one zone, does

          6          it trip an audio or visual alarm?

          7               A.   Yes.

          8               Q.   Is it a Transocean practice on the

          9          DEEPWATER HORIZON to bypass that alarm and

         10          have the able-bodied seamen go down once they

         11          see the two high gas alarms from the bridge

         12          with the gas detection system?

         13                    MR. LONDON:

         14                                   I don't think he can answer what

         15                    the practice is.  I think he can answer

         16                    you from his direct knowledge if it's

         17                    ever happened.  But I don't think he

         18                    can testify as to what particular --

         19          BY MR. MATHEWS:
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         20               Q.   Did you see any able-bodied men

         21          monitoring high gas alarms from the bridge and

         22          go back to the area, in the zones, where the

         23          high gas alarms were tripped with gas

         24          detection systems?

         25                              MR. LONDON:
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          1                                        Do you understand the question?

          2                    THE WITNESS:

          3                                        Are you referring to two --

          4                              MR. MATHEWS:

          5                                        Yes, sir.

          6                              THE WITNESS:

          7                                        -- items in one zone?

          8                              MR. MATHEWS:

          9                                        Yes, sir.

         10                              THE WITNESS:

         11                                        No, I have not.

         12          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         13               Q.   Did you ever know if two zones went

         14          off within the same -- two alarms went off in

         15          one zone, if that alarm was actually bypassed

         16          to have a visual and/or audio alarm go off?

         17               A.   I do not know.

         18                    MR. MATHEWS:

         19                                   Thank you.  I have no further
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         20                    questions.

         21                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         22          BY MR. McCARROLL:

         23               Q.   Just a couple of quick follow-up

         24          questions on the ABS.  When ABS comes onboard,

         25          do you meet with them?
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          1               A.   Yes, sir.

          2               Q.   When is the last time ABS came

          3          onboard?

          4               A.   I don't recall the exact date.

          5               Q.   Within the last year?

          6               A.   Yes, sir.

          7               Q.   Do you recall any punchlist they may

          8          have given you as to items that need to be

          9          repaired?

         10               A.   Yes, sir.

         11               Q.   Did any of those items involve the

         12          engine?

         13               A.   Yes.

         14               Q.   Did any of those items involve the

         15          engine overspeed?

         16               A.   No.

         17               Q.   Do you know if the ABS has checked the

         18          engine overspeed when they've come onboard?

         19               A.   I don't recall.
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         20               Q.   Are you aware that the ABS does an

         21          annual inspection?

         22               A.   Yes.

         23               Q.   Do you know what's checked on the

         24          annual inspection?

         25               A.   I know vaguely, yes.
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          1               Q.   Could you give us more specific

          2          details on what's checked specifically to the

          3          engine room?

          4               A.   I know they go through and inspect the

          5          injectors, the air boxes, the ventilation and

          6          multiple other items, but I don't recall what

          7          they all are.

          8               Q.   And when they meet with you at the end

          9          of the inspection, do they have a detailed

         10          list of what they checked that they present to

         11          you?

         12               A.   Yes, sir.

         13               Q.   And do you recall anything specific

         14          that was related to the engine overspeed that

         15          was not working?

         16               A.   No, sir.  I don't recall.

         17                    MR. McCARROLL:

         18                                   Thank you.

         19                    MR. WHEATLEY:
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         20                                   Good morning, Chief.  I just have a

         21                    few questions here for you.

         22                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         23          BY MR. WHEATLEY:

         24               Q.   If I heard your testimony correctly,

         25          you took over as chief engineer in November of
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          1          2008; is that correct?

          2               A.   That's correct.

          3               Q.   As part of your assumption of those

          4          duties, were you required to read the

          5          DEEPWATER HORIZON Operations Manual?

          6               A.   Yes, sir.   

          7               Q.   Did you read the section which

          8          described the duties of the chief engineer?

          9               A.   Yes, sir.

         10               Q.   Are you familiar with those duties as

         11          described in the manual?

         12               A.   For the most part, yes.

         13               Q.   And isn't part of that responsibility

         14          for the maintenance of the engineering plan

         15          onboard that vessel?

         16               A.   Yes, sir.

         17               Q.   Now, in your assessment you also

         18          indicated that the DEEPWATER HORIZON was in

         19          the process of implementing a new RMS
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         20          maintenance management system, if you will; is

         21          that correct?

         22               A.   That's correct.

         23               Q.   Do you know when that first started to

         24          be implemented?

         25               A.   I don't know the exact date of it.  I
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          1          can give you a year.

          2          

          3                              MR. LONDON:

          4                                        We don't -- You don't know the

          5                              date.

          6          BY MR. WHEATLEY:

          7               Q.   To your best recollection, how long

          8          had the process been going on?

          9                    MR. LONDON:

         10                                   I don't want him to speculate if he

         11                    doesn't know.

         12          BY MR. WHEATLEY:

         13               Q.   Had you received any formal training

         14          in the implementation of the RMS system?

         15               A.   Yes.

         16               Q.   Who provided that training?

         17               A.   Transocean.

         18               Q.   Was it a single session or were there

         19          multiple sessions?
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         20               A.   It was a single session in town and

         21          then we also had people that came out when the

         22          system went live to assist us with it. 

         23               Q.   How often do they come out and assist

         24          you in implementing that system?

         25               A.   They were out there approximately
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          1          three weeks.

          2                    MR. LONDON:

          3                                   No approximately.  If you know.  Do

          4                    you know?

          5                    THE WITNESS:

          6                                   No, I don't know.

          7          BY MR. WHEATLEY:

          8               Q.   More than once?

          9                    MR. LONDON:

         10                                   If you don't know, you don't know.

         11                    THE WITNESS:

         12                                   I don't know.

         13          BY MR. WHEATLEY:

         14               Q.   Based on your familiarity with the RMS

         15          system, you'd indicated there were some

         16          discrepancies between the previous maintenance

         17          system and that system.  At the time of the

         18          casualty, how accurate do you believe the

         19          information contained in the RMS system was?
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         20                    MR. LONDON:

         21                                   That's vague so that contains a lot

         22                    of information.  Could you be more

         23                    specific?

         24          BY MR. WHEATLEY:

         25               Q.   Were you aware of discrepancies in the
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          1          RMS system at the time of the accident?

          2                    MR. LONDON:

          3                                   Discrepancies as to what?

          4          BY MR. WHEATLEY:

          5               Q.   Were you aware of any reported

          6          maintenance overdue periods contained in the

          7          RMS system at the time of the casualty which

          8          were incorrect?

          9                    MR. LONDON:

         10                                   Would you please repeat that?

         11          BY MR. WHEATLEY:

         12               Q.   Were you aware of any discrepancies

         13          specifically concerning overdue maintenance

         14          contained in the RMS system at the time of the

         15          casualty?

         16                    MR. LONDON:

         17                                   Discrepancies in the RMS system at

         18                    the time of the -- discrepancies of

         19                    what?
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         20                    MR. WHEATLEY:

         21                                   Reported maintenance or scheduled

         22                    maintenance that was not completed.

         23                    MR. LONDON:

         24                                   Is the question does he know of any

         25                    maintenance in the RMS that was not
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          1                    completed prior to the casualty?

          2          BY MR. WHEATLEY:

          3               Q.   All right.  Let's be real specific. 

          4          The air dampers to the engine room, what is

          5          the frequency in which they were required to

          6          be inspected under the RMS system?

          7               A.   I do not recall.   

          8               Q.   Would it surprise you if it was

          9          supposed to be performed every 14 days?

         10                    MR. LONDON:

         11                                   Objection, as to whether he was

         12                    surprised or not.

         13          BY MR. WHEATLEY:

         14               Q.   So you're the chief engineer and you

         15          don't know the frequency in which those

         16          dampers  -

         17                    MR. LONDON:

         18                                   I object to that.  You ask a

         19                    question and he'll give you an answer. 
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         20                    I don't want him badgered.

         21          BY MR. WHEATLEY:

         22               Q.   Chief, how often did you review the

         23          RMS system for maintenance issues?

         24               A.   Daily.

         25               Q.   Excuse me?
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          1               A.   Daily.

          2               Q.   You reviewed it daily.  So you would

          3          become aware of any discrepancies as they

          4          occurred?

          5               A.   Correct.

          6               Q.   If you noted a particular maintenance

          7          item in the RMS system which was overdue, what

          8          actions would you take?

          9               A.   We had periodic meetings with

         10          different department heads going over any

         11          overdue maintenance and when they could

         12          actually accomplish those overdue PMs.

         13               Q.   Do you recall any overdue maintenance

         14          relative to the air intakes to the engine room

         15          dampers?

         16               A.   No, I do not recall.

         17               Q.   Let's move on to a different topic

         18          here.  And again, I'm not going to ask him

         19          about his statement.  I'm going to ask him
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         20          about his testimony concerning the events.  If

         21          I recall your testimony concerning the events,

         22          you had gone to the bridge after the first

         23          explosion and you and two other individuals

         24          went to the standby generator room to find out

         25          why it did not start; is that correct?
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          1               A.   We went there to start it, not to find

          2          out why it did not.

          3               Q.   Now, you testified you flipped the

          4          switch to manual when you got there.  Why did

          5          you do that?

          6               A.   Because it was in automatic mode.

          7               Q.   Why would it be in automatic mode?

          8               A.   That's the standard position of it. 

          9          It's always in automatic.

         10               Q.   What does it mean to be in automatic?

         11               A.   That the generator will start on its

         12          own without any intervention.

         13               Q.   So would you refer to that as an

         14          automatic emergency generator?  And the reason

         15          I ask is we've received previous testimony

         16          that this was a standby generator and that it

         17          was not automatic.  I'm trying to clarify the

         18          issue.

         19                    MR. LONDON:
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         20                                   Would the question then be is this

         21                    a standby generator?

         22                    MR. WHEATLEY:

         23                                   That is the issue as it's been

         24                    described as both.  I'm trying to

         25                    understand what was it from the person
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          1                    who was on the rig.  That's my purpose.

          2          BY MR. WHEATLEY:

          3               Q.   So was it your understanding that this

          4          was designed to be an automatic start in the

          5          case of a failure of the main generators?

          6                    MR. LONDON:

          7                                   Do you understand his question?

          8                    THE WITNESS:

          9                                   After a certain period of time,

         10                    yes.

         11          BY MR. WHEATLEY:

         12               Q.   And if I heard your testimony

         13          correctly, that did not happen in this

         14          instance?

         15               A.   I have no recollection of time frames

         16          during that event.

         17               Q.   Now, Chief, you had indicated that you

         18          had been on the rig since 2003.  Do you recall

         19          an instance in August of 2008 in which the
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         20          vessel lost all power and went black in ship?

         21               A.   I don't recall.

         22               Q.   While you were onboard, do you recall,

         23          was there any Transocean guidance concerning

         24          the reporting of maintenance issues to either

         25          ABS, DNV, or the Coast Guard as they occurred,
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          1          any significant ones?  Did you have any

          2          guidance on that?

          3               A.   I don't understand the question.

          4               Q.   As you're going through and you're

          5          seeing various maintenance items come along

          6          and we'll say one day be more significant than

          7          another, did you have any type of guidance at

          8          what point you should advise ABS, DNV or the

          9          Coast Guard of those maintenance issues?

         10               A.   I don't know.

         11                    MR. WHEATLEY:

         12                                   Thank you.  I have no further

         13                    questions.

         14                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         15          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         16               Q.   Back to the written statement that we

         17          were discussing earlier.  Can you please give

         18          me the basis again of why you do not want to

         19          answer any questions for that?
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         20                    MR. LONDON:

         21                                   I'll give the basis of it.  The

         22                    basis is this statement was obtained

         23                    from him while he was held 26 hours

         24                    right immediately after this incident

         25                    which was extremely traumatic, to say
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          1                    the least.  It is what it is.  We're

          2                    not going to be cross-examined on

          3                    something that occurred and that was

          4                    written down at that time.  The

          5                    statement is the statement.

          6                    MR. MATHEWS:

          7                                   Are you advising him to take his 5th

          8                    Amendment right and not answer any

          9                    questions about that document?

         10                    MR. LONDON:

         11                                   No, no.  No, I think I would be

         12                    specific if I were advising him of

         13                    that.  I'm advising him not to answer

         14                    this question because the statement

         15                    speaks for itself.

         16                    MR. MATHEWS:

         17                                   Well, can I ask your client if I

         18                    ask a question, for the record, just to

         19                    bring you up to speed on the procedures
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         20                    that we have.  We can't introduce

         21                    anything into our report that's not

         22                    made available on the public record. 

         23                    This is not a public document.  And

         24                    that's my whole issue.

         25                    MR. LONDON:
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          1                                   You have this document.  This is an

          2                    official document.  

          3                    MR. MATHEWS:

          4                                   Correct.

          5                    MR. LONDON:

          6                                   This is a document that he compiled

          7                    while under oath, at sea, immediately

          8                    after this disaster.  We're not going

          9                    to be cross-examined on it here.  So I

         10                    would instruct upon my client not to

         11                    answer any questions concerning the

         12                    specifics contained within this

         13                    statement.

         14                    MR. MATHEWS:

         15                                   So you're telling him to take his

         16                    5th Amendment right if we ask a

         17                    question on that?

         18                    MR. LONDON:

         19                                   No, no.  I'm telling you that we're
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         20                    not going to answer questions or be

         21                    cross-examined based on that statement

         22                    and that if he is asked specific

         23                    questions about this statement I will

         24                    instruct him, as his attorney, not to

         25                    answer the question.
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          1                    MR. MATHEWS:

          2                                   Well, can I ask the question and

          3                    then we can proceed?

          4                    MR. LONDON:

          5                                   You can ask the question and I'll

          6                    instruct him not to answer.

          7                    MR. MATHEWS:

          8                                   No problem.

          9          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         10               Q.   Did anyone tell you to leave anyone

         11          behind?

         12                    MR. LONDON:

         13                                   Do not answer that question.  It's

         14                    contained -- any information about that

         15                    is contained in his statement.  The

         16                    statement speaks for itself.  You have

         17                    the statement.  There's no purpose. 

         18                    It's not relevant for anything --

         19                    MR. MATHEWS:
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         20                                   The relevance is the --

         21                    MR. LONDON:

         22                                   I'm sorry.  I'm not done yet.  It's

         23                    not relevant to go into that right now. 

         24                    That's not the purpose of this

         25                    proceeding as I understand it.  And if
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          1                    there's any other purpose that I don't

          2                    understand, we're not prepared to

          3                    discuss it.

          4                    MR. MATHEWS:

          5                                   But it's a fact-finding mission and

          6                    we cannot put anything into a public

          7                    document because this is not a public

          8                    record.

          9                    MR. LONDON:

         10                                   This was given under oath to a

         11                    Coast Guard official and if that's not

         12                    a public document, or whatever document

         13                    you want to call it.  You have it.  You

         14                    know what's in it.  It speaks for

         15                    itself and he's not answering any

         16                    questions about it.

         17          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         18               Q.   You said you knew something was going

         19          on when you were in the driller's shed.  How
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         20          did you know something was going on?

         21                    MR. LONDON:

         22                                   Objection.  He said he knew

         23                    something was going on?

         24                    MR. MATHEWS:

         25                                   Earlier in his testimony --
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          1                    MR. LONDON:

          2                                   Can you be more specific?

          3                    MR. MATHEWS:

          4                                   When he was in the driller's shed

          5                    when they were standing room only, he

          6                    said there was -- he knew something was

          7                    going on.

          8                    MR. LONDON:

          9                                   Oh, you mean that there was -- he

         10                    knew there was a meeting?  When you say

         11                    the words, "I know something's going

         12                    on," that has a sinister connotation to

         13                    me.  You're taking that out of context. 

         14                    Can you read back or have the court

         15                    reporter read back what he said in that

         16                    testimony?

         17          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         18               Q.   Earlier did you not testify to the

         19          fact that there was standing room only in the
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         20          driller's shed?

         21               A.   Yes, there was standing room only.

         22               Q.   Did you mention anything on the fact

         23          that you knew something was going on?

         24                    MR. LONDON:

         25                                   Objection to that.  Something -- 
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          1                    THE WITNESS:

          2                                   It was standing room only.  There

          3                    was a lot of people in that driller's

          4                    shack, but I do not know what was going

          5                    on.

          6                    MR. MATHEWS:

          7                                   Thank you.

          8                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          9                                   Mr. Bertone, before I open it up to

         10                    the Parties In Interest, I just want to

         11                    caution you on one thing. This is a

         12                    fact gathering investigation hearing,

         13                    here and as part of fact gathering we

         14                    are evaluating your knowledge, skill

         15                    and performance.  So I understand that

         16                    you have legal counsel and he advised

         17                    you on what to answer and what not to

         18                    answer, but I just wanted you to be

         19                    aware of that.  When there is basic
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         20                    knowledge that is required of your duty

         21                    and you indicate that you either don't

         22                    know or don't recall, that brings to

         23                    question as far as your performance and

         24                    your knowledge and skill.  So I just

         25                    wanted to make sure you understand
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          1                    that.

          2                    THE WITNESS:

          3                                   Yes, sir.

          4                              UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

          5                                        I object to the instruction.

          6                    MR. KOHNKE:

          7                                   Captain, that has no part in this. 

          8                    What you're trying to do is to

          9                    intimidate this witness.

         10                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         11                                   I'm not intimidating him.  I just

         12                    wanted to make sure that he

         13                    understands.  Do you feel intimidated,

         14                    Mr. Bertone?

         15                    MR. KOHNKE:

         16                                   Yes, I do.

         17                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         18                                   I'm not talking about you.  I'm

         19                    talking about Mr. Bertone.  
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         20                    MR. KOHNKE:

         21                                   I am a Party In Interest and this

         22                    is an employee of ours.

         23                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         24                                   You are not representing Mr.

         25                    Bertone, Mr. Kohnke.
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          1                    MR. KOHNKE:

          2                                   I want to add something, Captain. 

          3                    When you had the DNV guy on the record,

          4                    and you challenged him because he

          5                    wanted to read a Rule, I thought that

          6                    was wrong.  If that had been my

          7                    witness, I would have stopped you. 

          8                    Now, I think what you're doing now is

          9                    wrong.  You're trying to challenge this

         10                    witness to intimidate him because he

         11                    said at various times, "I can't

         12                    recall."

         13                              UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

         14                                        I join in that objection.

         15                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         16                                   I understand what you're saying. 

         17                    Fine.  Mr. Bertone, I just want to make

         18                    sure that -- it's my duty to make sure

         19                    that you are well informed of the
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         20                    process and procedure of this hearing

         21                    and I just want to make sure you

         22                    understand that.

         23                    MR. LONDON:

         24                                   Captain, I'm going to make a

         25                    statement regarding that.  I believe
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          1                    when we began this you gave him an oath

          2                    and the oath was to tell the truth

          3                    about what occurred out there.  The

          4                    truth deals with facts.  Is that not

          5                    correct?  It doesn't have anything to

          6                    do whether he feels intimidated; it

          7                    doesn't have anything to do with

          8                    whether he can remember something.  If

          9                    he truthfully can't remember something

         10                    then I don't see why you would be

         11                    sitting here threatening him by not

         12                    being able to remember something that

         13                    he might face some potential jeopardy

         14                    over that.  If you want -- if this

         15                    Committee wants the truth, he gave

         16                    truthful answers.  Now, if he didn't

         17                    give truthful answers, then we may have

         18                    to address that.  But I don't

         19                    appreciate an admonition when it has
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         20                    absolutely nothing to do -- He appeared

         21                    here.  We're here and we're answering

         22                    questions truthfully -- factual

         23                    questions.

         24                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         25                                   I understand.  And I'm just trying
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          1                    to --

          2                    MR. LONDON:

          3                                   Well, we certainly do understand

          4                    this Committee's role.

          5                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          6                                   I understand.  And I just want to

          7                    make sure Mr. Bertone understands that

          8                    part of the facts gathering is also to

          9                    collect data concerning his knowledge,

         10                    skill and performance.  That's all I'm

         11                    trying to say here.

         12                    MR. LONDON:

         13                                   Fine.

         14                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         15                                   Let's take a five-minute break.

         16          (Whereupon, a short break was taken off the

         17          record.)

         18                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         19                                   Mr. Bertone, I just want to
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         20                    reiterate that the only legal basis for

         21                    objection for not answering question is

         22                    to exercise your 5th Amendment right. 

         23                    Otherwise, if you don't recall, you can

         24                    say you don't recall.  But otherwise,

         25                    provide information as you know.
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          1                    THE WITNESS:

          2                                   Yes, sir.

          3                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          4                                   Also, my understanding is that the

          5                    statement that you provided while you

          6                    were on the BANKSTON, I understand that

          7                    you stand by that statement; is that

          8                    correct?

          9                    MR. LONDON:

         10                                   Captain, I thought we discussed

         11                    that.  The statement speaks for itself.

         12                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         13                                   Yes, sir.  I understand.

         14                    MR. LONDON:

         15                                   The statement speaks for itself. 

         16                    The statement was given under

         17                    circumstances less than ideal.  The

         18                    statement speaks for itself.

         19                    CAPT NGUYEN:
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         20                                   Yes, sir.

         21                    MR. LONDON:

         22                                   We're not going to answer specific

         23                    questions about what's in the

         24                    statement.

         25                    CAPT NGUYEN:
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          1                                   I understand.  Therefore, we will

          2                    enter the statement as an exhibit in

          3                    the record.  Transocean do you have 

          4                    questions for your witness -- I'm

          5                    sorry, we'll start off with flag state

          6                    first.

          7                    MR. LINSIN:

          8                                   Thank you, Captain.

          9                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         10          BY MR. LINSIN:

         11               Q.   Good morning, Chief.  My name is Greg

         12          Linsin.  I represent the Republic of the

         13          Marshall Islands, the flag state for the

         14          DEEPWATER HORIZON.  I have a few follow-up

         15          questions for you, sir.  You were asked some

         16          questions by the Board regarding maintenance

         17          that was being scheduled for the DEEPWATER

         18          HORIZON for a shipyard visit in 2011.  Do you

         19          recall those questions, sir? 
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         20               A.   Yes.

         21               Q.   And based on your experience aboard

         22          the DEEPWATER HORIZON and the other rigs and

         23          vessels you have served on, is it standard

         24          practice for the engine department to pre-

         25          schedule maintenance items for shipyard
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          1          visits?

          2                    MR. LONDON:

          3                                   Do you understand that question?

          4          BY MR. LINSIN:

          5               Q.   Is that standard practice?

          6               A.   I don't know if that's standard

          7          practice or not.

          8               Q.   Had you been involved in preparations

          9          for shipyard visits prior to the one planned

         10          for 2011?

         11               A.   No.

         12               Q.   You were also asked some questions

         13          about the RMS system aboard the DEEPWATER

         14          HORIZON.  Can you describe please, sir, what

         15          the process was for identifying required

         16          maintenance through that RMS system and how

         17          reports got filed?

         18               A.   The system was basically fully

         19          automated as PMs came up on a rotational basis
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         20          the time frame, they were automatically

         21          generated to the crafts.  The crafts performed

         22          the PMs; the PMs were closed and I got reports

         23          daily of all the closing of PMs and any

         24          maintenance histories.

         25               Q.   So those reports were routinely
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          1          submitted to you; is that correct?

          2               A.   Yes, sir.  They came to my account.

          3               Q.   And if unusual maintenance

          4          requirements arose, how were those handled?

          5               A.   If you're referring to say they did a

          6          PM on a certain piece of equipment and

          7          something was found wrong?

          8               Q.   Yes, sir.

          9               A.   Is that what you're asking?

         10               Q.   Yes.     

         11               A.   At that time, a second work order

         12          would be generated to make the corrections.

         13               Q.   And how would you notify shoreside

         14          personnel concerning the management of these

         15          maintenance obligations aboard the rig?

         16               A.   Daily I had to submit a formal report

         17          that's generated in RMS and it was sent to the

         18          asset manager, as well as the performance

         19          manager.
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         20               Q.   And what was the response of the

         21          shoreside asset manager concerning your

         22          request for assistance to get the maintenance

         23          items handled aboard the rig?

         24               A.   Are you referring to personnel issues

         25          or are you referring to equipment?
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          1               Q.   Actually both, sir.

          2               A.   If, at any time, that it was deemed

          3          that we needed extra personnel, I would submit

          4          an e-mail to both the performance and asset

          5          managers.  And if any was available, they were

          6          sent to the rig to assist in it.  If there was

          7          any major concerns with equipment, it was

          8          discussed between myself, the OIM, Captain, if

          9          deemed it was for him, as well, the asset

         10          manager and performance manager.

         11               Q.   And when equipment was requested --

         12          after those consultations, if equipment was

         13          requested, was it provided to you?

         14               A.   Yes.

         15               Q.   You testified, sir, concerning your 

         16          -- the first explosion that occurred aboard

         17          the rig on the night of April 20th while you

         18          were in bed beginning to read, and then you

         19          testified, also, about a second explosion that
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         20          occurred after you had gone out to the hallway

         21          and were coming back in to retrieve your

         22          clothing.  My question for you, sir, is what

         23          was the approximate time between the first and

         24          that second explosion?

         25               A.   I would have to say seconds, enough
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          1          for me to run ten, 15 feet to the door, open

          2          it and turn, and then the second explosion.

          3               Q.   You were also asked a number of

          4          questions about the overspeed devices on the

          5          engine onboard the rig and I have a couple of

          6          follow-up questions regarding the operation of

          7          those overspeed devices.  You testified, first

          8          of all, there were both mechanical and

          9          electrical overspeed devices on the engine; is

         10          that correct?

         11               A.   Yes, sir.

         12               Q.   And what are those overspeed devices

         13          designed to do?

         14               A.   Essentially shut the fuel to the

         15          engine itself, which would inevitably shut the

         16          engine down, as well as give alarms, and also

         17          trip the main feeder breaker from the

         18          generator itself.

         19               Q.   And they are designed to do those
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         20          things if the engine is revving higher than at

         21          a safe rate; is that correct?

         22               A.   That's correct.  

         23               Q.   Now, based upon your training and

         24          experience, Chief, if an engine overspeed

         25          device failed, what would be the consequences
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          1          for that engine?

          2               A.   Basically, cylinder damage, block

          3          damage, possibly, cranks and so forth.

          4               Q.   So there could be a catastrophic

          5          failure of the engine itself?

          6               A.   Of the engine itself, correct.  

          7               Q.   Would that failure, sir, result in the

          8          type of explosions that you describe in your

          9          earlier testimony?

         10               A.   No, sir.

         11               Q.   If an engine overspeed device worked

         12          as designed, and there was the presence of gas

         13          in the atmosphere in that engine room, would

         14          the engine, nonetheless, continue to run even

         15          though the overspeed device had operated as

         16          designed?

         17               A.   If the fuel content in the air was

         18          sufficient, yes, it could.

         19               Q.   You also testified, Chief, about this 
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         20          as you attempted to deploy the life raft on

         21          the rig that you had some difficulty with this

         22          shackle, in terms of freeing the raft for

         23          deployment.  Could you describe that shackle

         24          in a little more detail?  I was just not clear

         25          where it was located, how it was restraining
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          1          the life raft.

          2               A.   Okay.  The davit itself that actually

          3          locks onto the life raft is on the port

          4          forward side of the life boat deck away from

          5          the main life boat for the life rafts.  The

          6          shackle itself is a self-locking, you stab it

          7          on; it self locks.  Then there's also -- there

          8          was a rope that was attached to that shackling

          9          device that went up to the actual boom of the

         10          davit through like a pulley system up there. 

         11          It came down to the actual davit base and went

         12          around two hooks that were designed to wrap

         13          the rope around and then that was tied to the

         14          front of the base on a padeye with a small

         15          shackle.

         16               Q.   And it was that last shackle you're

         17          describing that was a problem in getting

         18          the -- 

         19               A.   Due to the fact of the weight of the
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         20          life raft, when we actually lifted it up and

         21          started, swung the davit around and boomed it

         22          down so it would clear the rig.  We tried

         23          numerous times to pull it back so that we

         24          could take the rope off of those loops and it

         25          was too heavy.  We were unable to do that. 
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          1          That's when we started looking for a knife. 

          2          Nobody had a knife, and Mike Williams had

          3          found the shackle at the front of the davit. 

          4          He tried removing it with his hands, but he

          5          couldn't, I guess due to the weight on the

          6          shackle.  And then he pulled out his ET dykes

          7          and used that to unscrew the actual shackle

          8          pin.

          9               Q.   If I'm understanding the layout

         10          correctly, in hindsight, Chief, if you had

         11          freed that rope before swinging the life raft

         12          out, would it have been -- do you expect it

         13          would have been simpler to release the rope

         14          from that shackle?

         15               A.   I don't know.

         16               Q.   Did you participate in life-saving

         17          drills aboard the rig prior to the night of

         18          this incident?

         19               A.   Yes, every week.
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         20               Q.   During those drills, did you typically

         21          inflate and attempt to deploy the life raft?

         22               A.   No, sir.  We never inflated the raft

         23          itself, but we did operate the davit to an

         24          extent.  The Chief Mate would go through all

         25          the functionings of it, how to deploy it and

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (228 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:17 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      115

          1          so forth. 

          2               Q.   But during the drills, anyhow, that

          3          was done without the raft actually inflated;

          4          is that correct?

          5               A.   That's correct.

          6                    MR. LINSIN:

          7                                   I have nothing further, Captain. 

          8                    Thank you very much.

          9                              CAPT NGUYEN:

         10                                        Thank you, sir.  Transocean.

         11                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         12          BY MR. KOHNKE:

         13               Q.   Good morning.

         14               A.   Good morning.

         15               Q.   Mr. Bertone, let me go back to that

         16          first and second explosion.  You described

         17          your actions as being -- going approximately

         18          15 feet, opening the door, turning around and

         19          then hearing a second explosion, the first
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         20          explosion being the beginning of your

         21          traveling of those 15 feet; is that correct? 

         22          Are those the events that you described?

         23               A.   That's correct.

         24               Q.   And just as best you can, using the

         25          typical 1,001, 1,002, 1,003, give me, you said
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          1          seconds, let's give a number to how many

          2          seconds would have elapsed between the first

          3          and the second explosion.

          4               A.   I would have to say eight to ten

          5          seconds.

          6               Q.   Now, we heard in these hearings and

          7          you may have brought it up, as well, there is

          8          something called an EDS.  EDS is what?

          9               A.   Electronic disconnect sequence.

         10               Q.   And it is --

         11               A.   Or emergency disconnect sequence, I'm

         12          sorry.

         13               Q.   It is a means by which a rig is

         14          disconnected from the well in an emergency

         15          situation; is that correct?

         16               A.   That is correct.

         17               Q.   And for those people on the bridge --

         18          you didn't get to the bridge and have the

         19          conversation about EDSing for some period of
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         20          time after those initial eight seconds, that 

         21          period of time we can estimate in a minute,

         22          but after the eight seconds, you got dressed,

         23          went out to the hall and counted those three

         24          or four people who were motionless and

         25          speechless, gave them direction and then
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          1          managed to get to the bridge and you had a

          2          conversation about EDSing; is that correct?

          3               A.   Not immediately upon entering the

          4          bridge, but yes.

          5               Q.   After entering you had that

          6          conversation --

          7               A.   Correct.

          8               Q.   -- with Chris Pleasant.  You've gone

          9          through it.  I'm not going to do it again. 

         10          And at that point, the second explosion had

         11          occurred some period of time before you had

         12          the conversation, the second explosion being

         13          eight seconds after the first.  What was the

         14          estimate of time that you would put on the

         15          difference between the second explosion and

         16          your having the conversation about EDSing on

         17          the bridge?

         18               A.   I don't know that exact time frame.  I

         19          have no recollection of time.
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         20               Q.   All right.  But if you would have to

         21          traverse a distance, a certain distance to get

         22          to the bridge, go up, open the door, get into

         23          the bridge and get to your station and that's

         24          when it occurred, whatever that time is,

         25          that's how much time it would have taken?

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (234 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:17 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      118

          1               A.   Correct.  I would have to say roughly

          2          a minute to get from my room to the bridge and

          3          then everything that transpired up there, I

          4          don't have a time frame for that as to when it

          5          was initiated for the EDS.

          6               Q.   Now we know notwithstanding the

          7          conversation you had with Chris Pleasant in

          8          which you asked for confirmation three times

          9          and he gave you confirmation in terms of the

         10          board.  We know that the rig did not EDS;

         11          isn't that correct?

         12               A.   That is correct.

         13               Q.   Subsequent to these conversations

         14          with Chris Pleasant, you and two others went

         15          down to try to start the standby generator; is

         16          that correct?

         17               A.   That's correct.

         18               Q.   And you described in your narrative,

         19          at the outset of your testimony, you describe
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         20          seeing through this very large opening a great

         21          deal of flame; is that correct?

         22               A.   That is correct.  

         23               Q.   Now the controls, the devices by which

         24          an EDS occurs, those -- what physically

         25          enables a rig to disconnect in an emergency
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          1          situation?  What type of lines are there, or

          2          communications to the LMRP?

          3               A.   Inside the moon pool which is a space

          4          that I looked into that was completely

          5          engulfed in flames, contains the yellow and

          6          blue MUX reels, also the hot lines board.  The

          7          yellow and blue MUX reels are your electrical

          8          device, your communication down to your pod,

          9          your yellow and blue pod.  Your hot line is

         10          your fluid to do the action.

         11               Q.   Given your knowledge gained on this

         12          trip when you looked into this moon pool area

         13          and saw the destruction, saw the flames, saw

         14          what you did see, did you reach a conclusion

         15          as to whether the ability to EDS had been

         16          taken out during the second explosion?

         17                    MR. LONDON:

         18                                   Counsel, are you asking in

         19                    retrospect or are you asking what he
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         20                    knew then?

         21                    MR. KOHNKE:

         22                                   Yes.

         23                    MR. LONDON:

         24                                   Can you answer that?

         25          BY MR. KOHNKE:
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          1               Q.   With all the validity and wisdom that

          2          hindsight now offers, and based upon what you

          3          were able to see and think about and learn,

          4          have you reached any conclusions in that

          5          respect?

          6                    MR. GORDON:

          7                                   Captain, I would have to object.

          8                    This is speculation on part of this

          9                    witness.  Well outside --

         10                    MR. KOHNKE:

         11                                   Please answer.

         12                    THE WITNESS:

         13                                   Yes.  I would have to say that --

         14                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         15                                   If the witness is willing to answer

         16                    that question, I'll let it go.

         17                    THE WITNESS:

         18                                   In hindsight looking back with the

         19                    amount of flames that were in that
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         20                    space and the damage that I personally

         21                    seen, I would have to say that there

         22                    was the blue/yellow -- blue pod and

         23                    yellow pod and possibly the hot lines

         24                    boom, they were inactive completely. 

         25                    They probably weren't even in the space
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          1                    anymore.

          2                    MR. KOHNKE:

          3                                   Thank you, sir.  That's all I have.

          4                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          5          BY MR. MATHEWS:

          6               Q.   Just for clarification, just a follow-

          7          up to Mr. Kohnke.  Are you familiar with the

          8          BOP stack operations if it does lose

          9          communication with the blue and yellow

         10          communication lines?

         11               A.   I know that there is a fail-safe that

         12          whenever you do lose all coms and pressures

         13          down to it, it does have a fail-safe shear.

         14                    MR. MATHEWS:

         15                                   Thank you.

         16                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         17                                   Anadarko.

         18                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         19          BY MR. KIRBY:
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         20               Q.   Good morning, Chief Bertone.  My name

         21          is Ky Kirby.  You spell that K-Y, Kirby, K-I-

         22          R-B-Y and I'm representing both Anadarko and

         23          Moex Offshore today.  I want to take you back

         24          to that period of time when you said you were

         25          taking visiting BP and Transocean officials on
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          1          the tour.  Do you recall that area of your

          2          testimony?

          3               A.   Yes.

          4               Q.   You said you got to the drill shack

          5          around 4:35; is that right?

          6               A.   Approximately 5:30.

          7               Q.   5:30?

          8               A.   Yes.

          9               Q.   And at that time the drill shack was

         10          standing room only, correct?

         11               A.   Correct.

         12               Q.   And that is before any of you entered

         13          it; is that right?

         14               A.   No, that's after we entered it.  I was

         15          the last one in the room.

         16               Q.   How many people were in the drill

         17          shack when you got there?

         18               A.   I have no idea.

         19               Q.   Who was there?

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (243 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:17 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20               A.   I can't give all names.

         21               Q.   To the best of your recollection,

         22          please.

         23               A.   I know the on-tour toolpusher, the

         24          driller, the AD.  I know at least one company

         25          man was there, possibly two.  And then there
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          1          was some of the third party vendors in there,

          2          as well, and possibly a few roughnecks.

          3               Q.   When you say third party vendors, from

          4          who?

          5               A.   It would be like Schlumberger and

          6          people such as that?

          7               Q.   M-I SWACO?

          8               A.   I don't recall seeing Swaco there.  I

          9          don't know.

         10               Q.   Halliburton?

         11               A.   I don't know.  I just know it was --

         12          there were third party present, but I don't

         13          know exactly which ones.

         14               Q.   And that was an unusual number of

         15          people for that time of the day?

         16               A.   Yes, that was an unusual occurrence at

         17          that time of day.

         18               Q.   How many people do you generally see

         19          around that time of day?
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         20               A.   Possibly five or six.

         21               Q.   So you had almost twice that amount?

         22               A.   Yes.

         23               Q.   Now, you said earlier in your

         24          testimony that you knew that something was

         25          going on, but you didn't know what; is that
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          1          right?

          2               A.   I had a feeling that something wasn't

          3          right, yes.

          4               Q.   But you didn't get a chance to ask

          5          anybody, "Hey, what's up?"

          6               A.   No.  Like I said, I was at the back of

          7          the driller's shack and there were several

          8          people in front of me and I had just stepped

          9          in, took a look around, seen everybody was

         10          there and that's when it was either Jimmy or

         11          Randy had asked if we could please continue

         12          the tour without them.

         13               Q.   And you went off and did that, right?

         14               A.   Correct.

         15               Q.   Did you have a chance sometime after

         16          that time of the day and before you go to bed

         17          to say to anybody, "Hey, what was going on?"

         18               A.   After our walkaround, we went to the

         19          galley to eat dinner at approximately 6:30.  I
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         20          sat with Buddy Trahan, Daun Winslow and the BP

         21          officials.  I do remember seeing Jimmy in

         22          there, as well.  During the meeting, it was a

         23          very relaxed meeting.  There was no hint or

         24          sign that there had -- there was any other

         25          issue.  I never asked what was going on
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          1          because it was -- by the time I got back from

          2          the walkaround, everything was relaxed so I

          3          figured, "Okay, it was just some minor, little

          4          issue".

          5               Q.   This is the meeting that went on from

          6          like 7 to 9 p.m. that night?

          7               A.   Yes.

          8               Q.   So nobody mentioned anything, any

          9          events of any concern during that meeting?

         10               A.   No, ma'am, none whatsoever.

         11               Q.   You said that after you were up on the

         12          bridge and you were having this discussion

         13          with Chris, possibly Chris, about EDSing, that

         14          you left the bridge and you were going to the

         15          standby generators and you remember looking at

         16          the deck and seeing what looked to be like an

         17          inch or an inch and a half of snot.

         18                    MR. LONDON:

         19                                   Excuse me, one second, Counsel.  I
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         20                    believe you've mischaracterized his

         21                    testimony.  You said he was talking to

         22                    somebody he thought was Chris.

         23                    MS. KIRBY:

         24                                   Yes, I thought I heard you say

         25                    that.
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          1                    MR. LONDON:

          2                                   No, you know it was Chris.

          3                    MS. KIRBY:

          4                                   Feel free to correct me.

          5                    THE WITNESS:

          6                                   I know it was Chris.

          7                    MR. LONDON:

          8                                   He knows it was Chris and that's

          9                    during -- immediately after the

         10                    incident when you're talking about the

         11                    EDS?

         12          BY MS. KIRBY:

         13               Q.   Right after the incident you leave the

         14          bridge, right?

         15               A.   Correct.

         16               Q.   And you go where?

         17               A.   I was enroute to the standby generator

         18          room.

         19               Q.   And you see the snot, as you put it,
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         20          where?

         21               A.   On the deck.  It was approximately an

         22          inch to and inch and a half thick.  It had a

         23          kind of a whitish, milky look to it.

         24               Q.   Was it on fire?

         25               A.   Not in the path that I was going.
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          1               Q.   Did you look around and see any --

          2          what appeared to be any of it on fire

          3          elsewhere?

          4               A.   The only place that I looked as I came

          5          out of the bridge was up to the derrick, of

          6          course, because it was the biggest flame. 

          7          Then I noticed my feet slipping.  I looked

          8          down at the deck and thought to myself what is

          9          all this snot doing on the deck.  At that

         10          point, I looked towards the moon pool and was

         11          coming up to it and looked into the moon pool

         12          itself.  I don't recall looking really

         13          anywhere else other than the path that I was

         14          on the derrick and the moon pool.

         15               Q.   This substance that you were slipping

         16          in, did you get any on your hands or anywhere

         17          where you could feel it?

         18               A.   No, ma'am.

         19               Q.   Did it look like anything you'd seen
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         20          used on the rig before?

         21               A.   No, ma'am.

         22               Q.   Are you familiar with drilling mud,

         23          obviously?

         24               A.   I've seen it; I've touched it, but I'm

         25          not familiar with all the different types and
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          1          such.

          2               Q.   It didn't look like drilling mud?

          3               A.   No, not the drilling mud that I'm used

          4          to seeing, no.

          5               Q.   What about spacer?

          6               A.   I don't know what that is.

          7               Q.   You don't know what it is.

          8                    MS. KIRBY:

          9                                   No further questions.  Thanks. 

         10                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         11                                   Cameron?

         12                    MR. JONES:

         13                                   A couple of questions, Captain. 

         14                    Good morning, Mr. Bertone.  My name is

         15                    David Jones and I represent Cameron. 

         16                    Just a couple of quick questions for

         17                    you.

         18                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         19          BY MR. JONES:
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         20               Q.   Mr. Kohnke asked you some questions

         21          about timing.  I just want to ask the question

         22          a little different, in a little different way. 

         23          Can you estimate the amount of time that you

         24          were on the bridge from the time that you

         25          first went onto the bridge until you saw Mr.
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          1          Pleasant push the button to EDS?

          2               A.   I don't know.  I have no -- I cannot

          3          put times in that instance there.

          4               Q.   Would it have been minutes?

          5               A.   Yes.  It was within minutes.  It

          6          wasn't like 30 minutes to an hour, but it was

          7          in, I would say -- I don't want to speculate

          8          on it, but it was minutes.

          9               Q.   Understood.  You also mentioned that

         10          Mr. Pleasant pointed to a light on the BOP

         11          control panel.  Do you know what light he

         12          pointed to?

         13               A.   I don't know the exact light.  I know

         14          its -- somewhat its physical location on the

         15          panel itself.  We had two doors on the BOP

         16          panel.  He pointed to the right door about

         17          midway down to a white light.

         18               Q.   I'm sorry, it was a white light?

         19               A.   Yes.  That's the light that I remember
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         20          seeing.

         21               Q.   Very good.

         22                    MR. JONES:

         23                                   No other questions.  Thank you.

         24                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         25                                   Thank you, sir.  Halliburton?
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          1                    MR. GODWIN:

          2                                   No questions, Captain.

          3                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          4                                   Yes, sir.  Weatherford?

          5                    MR. LEMOINE:

          6                                   No questions, Captain.

          7                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          8                                   Yes, sir.  M-I SWACO?

          9                    MR. EASON:

         10                                   No, thank you, sir.

         11                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         12                                   Yes, sir.  Drill Quip?

         13                    MR. KAPLAN:

         14                                   No questions, Captain.

         15                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         16                                   Yes, sir.  Douglas Brown?

         17                    MR. GORDON:

         18                                   Good morning.

         19                    THE WITNESS:
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         20                                   Good morning.

         21                    MR. GORDON:

         22                                   I'm representing Doug Brown.

         23                    MR. LONDON:

         24                                   What's your name, sir?

         25                    MR. GORDON:
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          1                                   Steve Gordon.

          2                    MR. LONDON:

          3                                   Steve Gordon.  Thank you.

          4                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          5          BY MR. GORDON:

          6               Q.   Mr. Bertone, this statement may speak

          7          for itself, but I can't read it.  So could you

          8          please, at least, read into the record the

          9          statement that's been entered into --

         10                    MR. LONDON:

         11                                   We're not going to do that.

         12                    MR. GORDON:

         13                                   Captain, is it possible to read

         14                    into the record because I cannot make

         15                    out some of the handwriting.

         16                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

         17                                   I join in the objection.  That's a

         18                    waste of time.  The document speaks for

         19                    itself.
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         20                    MR. GORDON:

         21                                   It does not speak for itself on the

         22                    portion that I cannot read.

         23                    MR. KOHNKE:

         24                                   Show me the document and I'll tell

         25                    you which word because I've read it and
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          1                    I can point it out to you.  Which word

          2                    do you need?  This is a stunt.  This

          3                    isn't that he can't read it.

          4                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          5                                   Mr. Gordon, we can get you a better

          6                    copy of that document.

          7          BY MR. GORDON:

          8               Q.   Can you tell me, sir, how many pages

          9          is the statement because I don't have all the

         10          pages apparently.

         11                    MR. LONDON:

         12                                   We're not answering any questions

         13                    about this document, Mr. Gordon, and I

         14                    think you know that.  You've had the

         15                    statement, count the pages.

         16                    MR. GORDON:

         17                                   Well, is that what has been

         18                    introduced into the record?

         19                    MR. LONDON:
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         20                                   I don't know what this is.  I

         21                    haven't looked at it.  It's sitting

         22                    here at the counsel table.

         23                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

         24                                   It's on the website, he has access,

         25                    Captain.
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          1                    MR. GORDON:

          2                                   May I approach the witness?

          3                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

          4                                   This is a ploy.  The document is

          5                    available to Mr. Gordon.

          6                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          7                                   Mr. Gordon, do you have a question

          8                    for the witness?

          9                    MR. GORDON:

         10                                   I do.  It's about the statement.  I

         11                    cannot read portions of it, but I will

         12                    try and endeavor to get around that.

         13          BY MR. GORDON:

         14               Q.   When you first joined the DEEPWATER

         15          HORIZON, what year was that, sir?

         16               A.   2003.

         17               Q.   And where was she located at that

         18          time?

         19               A.   In the Gulf of Mexico.
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         20               Q.   Do you remember the particular well?

         21               A.   No, I do not.

         22               Q.   Was it for BP?

         23               A.   Yes.

         24               Q.   Can you tell me at that time what was

         25          your job classification?
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          1               A.   Electrical supervisor.

          2               Q.   And how long did you remain as the

          3          electrical supervisor?

          4               A.   Five years.

          5               Q.   Is electrical supervisor part of the

          6          engine department?

          7               A.   If the engineers need assistance on

          8          the electrical aspect of it, then we do take

          9          care of that for them.  Also, we maintain all

         10          the generators, switchboards and so forth.

         11               Q.   But there isn't an engine department

         12          as far as manning, correct?

         13               A.   There's an engineering department.

         14               Q.   Okay, engineering department.

         15               A.   And then you have electrical

         16          department, ET department and mechanical

         17          department.

         18               Q.   When did you switch over to the

         19          engineering department or did you?
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         20               A.   As far as becoming a chief engineer,

         21          taking over as a chief engineer?

         22               Q.   Yes, sir.

         23               A.   That was in November of 2008.

         24               Q.   Can you tell me when you joined the

         25          DEEPWATER HORIZON who was working in the
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          1          engineering department?

          2                              MR. LONDON:

          3                                        Are you talking about years ago

          4                              when he first went?

          5                              MR. GORDON:

          6                                        Yes, sir.

          7                    UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

          8                                   Captain, I'm going to object on

          9                    relevancy grounds.  I don't understand

         10                    what --

         11                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         12                                   I understand your objection.  I'm

         13                    interested in this line of questioning

         14                    because it may demonstrate or document

         15                    the maintenance history or the

         16                    management system here.  So I will

         17                    interrupt the line of questioning if I

         18                    think it's inappropriate, but again,

         19                    let me make that call.
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         20                    THE WITNESS:

         21                                   I do not recall all the personnel's

         22                    names that were in that department at

         23                    that time.

         24          BY MR. GORDON:

         25               Q.   Was a Mr. Paul Deeter (phonetic)
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          1          there?

          2               A.   Yes, Paul Deeter was onboard.

          3               Q.   What was his job title?

          4               A.   Mechanical supervisor.

          5               Q.   How about Mr. Alan Wyndam (phonetic).

          6               A.   Yes, Alan Wyndam was onboard.

          7               Q.   What was his job title?

          8               A.   Chief mechanic.

          9               Q.   Did Paul Deeter ever leave before she

         10          sank?

         11               A.   Yes, he did.

         12               Q.   Do you know why he left?

         13               A.   For a promotion.

         14               Q.   Do you know where he went?

         15               A.   He went onto a --

         16                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         17                                   Mr. Gordon, I understand where he

         18                    went is not relevant here.

         19                    MR. GORDON:
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         20                                   I'll withdraw the question.

         21          BY MR. GORDON:

         22               Q.   Did Alan Wyndam remain a mechanical

         23          supervisor from the time you joined to the

         24          time she sank?

         25               A.   When I joined the rig, Alan Wyndam was
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          1          a chief mechanic.  When it sank he was a

          2          chief, or a mechanical supervisor.

          3               Q.   Do you know when that change occurred?

          4               A.   I don't recall.

          5               Q.   Do you know Mr. Jerry Isaac?

          6               A.   Yes, I do.

          7               Q.   When you joined the DEEPWATER HORIZON,

          8          was he working there?

          9               A.   Yes, he was.

         10               Q.   What was his job title?

         11               A.   Mechanic.

         12               Q.   Did he ever become a mechanic

         13          supervisor?

         14               A.   Yes.

         15               Q.   Do you know when that was?

         16               A.   I don't recall the exact date, but

         17          it's fairly recent.

         18               Q.   Was Doug Brown working there?

         19               A.   Yes.
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         20               Q.   Was Terry Sellers working there?

         21                    MR. LONDON:

         22                                   Captain, I would just ask what is

         23                    the possible relevance of this could

         24                    be?

         25                    CAPT NGUYEN:
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          1                                   Again, Mr. Gordon, I let it go

          2                    here, but I just want to know what's

          3                    your --

          4                    MR. GORDON:

          5                                   I am trying my best to determine

          6                    what the manning was in the engine

          7                    department.

          8                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          9                                   Well, you can ask him the number

         10                    and the time --

         11          BY MR. GORDON:

         12               Q.   When you joined the DEEPWATER HORIZON,

         13          what was the manning as far as numbers in the

         14          engine department?

         15               A.   I do not know the exact numbers, as I

         16          was not attached to the engineering side of it

         17          at that point.  But I do know that we had a

         18          first engineer, a second engineer, a third

         19          engineer and motorman.  The exact numbers of
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         20          those people and positions, I do not know.

         21               Q.   If I ask you do you know if it had two

         22          motormen, you would just say, "I don't know,"

         23          to that?

         24               A.   I don't know.

         25               Q.   And that's per shift or per tour,
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          1          correct?

          2               A.   No, not exactly.  You had one first

          3          engineer that worked days.

          4               Q.   Did that first engineer position

          5          before she sank, ever get removed?

          6               A.   Prior to it, yes.  Several years back

          7          it did.

          8               Q.   Do you know why?

          9                    MR. LONDON:

         10                                   Objection.  Captain, several years

         11                    before the incident?

         12                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         13                                   Let me ask Mr. Bertone something. 

         14                    You know that there was a manning

         15                    requirement per flag state

         16                    requirements, right, for the first

         17                    engineer, second engineer; is that

         18                    correct?

         19                    THE WITNESS:
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         20                                   Correct, once I became chief

         21                    engineer, yes, sir.

         22                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         23                                   I think Mr. Gordon, correct me if

         24                    I'm wrong, was there anytime that the

         25                    manning requirement was not met?
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          1                    THE WITNESS:

          2                                   I don't know.  I don't have that

          3                    information.  That was prior to me

          4                    becoming chief engineer, the questions

          5                    he's asking.

          6          BY MR. GORDON:

          7               Q.   Did you ever, as a chief engineer,

          8          have a watch?

          9                    MR. LONDON:

         10                                   A watch?

         11          BY MR. GORDON:

         12               Q.   Not like a watch.  Like in the

         13          nautical sense, watch.

         14               A.   Did I do rounds?  Is that what you're

         15          asking?

         16               Q.   No, sir.  There's something called a

         17          "watch" and I just want to know if you think

         18          you had one.

         19               A.   If you're referring to the watch that
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         20          the engineers took on --

         21               Q.   Yes, sir.

         22               A.   -- sitting back in the ECR, no, I did

         23          not have a watch while I was on tour.

         24               Q.   That was my question.  Can you tell me

         25          if, when she sank, there was supposed to be a
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          1          first engineer position?

          2               A.   Yes. 

          3               Q.   And was that filled by Brent

          4          Mansfield?

          5               A.   Yes.

          6               Q.   Was there somebody else on the other

          7          tour or shift comparable, licensed?

          8               A.   Not with a first engineer's license,

          9          no.  But the manning mandates one first

         10          engineer onboard.

         11               Q.   Per what?

         12               A.   Just one first engineer.

         13               Q.   That's your belief, sir?

         14               A.   Yes, sir.

         15               Q.   Thank you.  

         16                    MR. LONDON:

         17                                   Captain, I'd ask that you repeat

         18                    that last question, please.  We want to

         19                    make sure we understand.
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         20                    MR. GORDON:

         21                                   I can't remember.

         22                    MR. LONDON:

         23                                   You can't remember your last

         24                    question?

         25                    MR. GORDON:
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          1                                   No, sir.  I can't remember what I

          2                    had for breakfast.  May I move on?

          3          BY MR. GORDON:

          4               Q.   Now, before you testified today, and

          5          perhaps I'm going to get an objection to this,

          6          but did you review any documents?

          7               A.   No.

          8               Q.   I'm sorry?

          9               A.   No.

         10               Q.   When is the last time you reviewed PM

         11          sheets?

         12               A.   April 20th.

         13               Q.   And was that part of the RMS system?

         14               A.   Correct.

         15               Q.   So when you're reviewing them, are you

         16          looking at a computer screen and not a hard

         17          copy?

         18               A.   That's correct.

         19               Q.   Is that computer screen data tied into
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         20          the mainland?

         21               A.   Yes.

         22               Q.   And pardon my ignorance, but the RMS,

         23          is that a software system?

         24               A.   Like --

         25               Q.   I don't know how else to call it.
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          1               A.   It's a maintenance program system. 

          2          It's a program.

          3               Q.   Do you know who developed that?  

          4               A.   I have no idea.

          5               Q.   Regarding the questions on the ABS, do

          6          you recall that one of the notations when the

          7          ABS came out was that there was a leaking

          8          crane or knuckle crane?

          9               A.   I don't recall.

         10               Q.   Regarding the generator questions

         11          that you got, there was an issue of whether it

         12          was supposed to be automatic or you switched

         13          it to manual.  Do you remember that line of

         14          questioning?

         15               A.   For the standby generator?

         16               Q.   Yes, sir.

         17               A.   Yes, I do.

         18               Q.   Okay.  You indicated that it stays in

         19          an automatic position, correct?

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (285 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:17 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20               A.   Correct.

         21               Q.   You also indicated that it

         22          automatically comes on and I think this was

         23          your quote, "after a specific amount of time."

         24               A.   Correct.

         25               Q.   Am I correct?
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          1               A.   Correct.

          2               Q.   What is that time?

          3               A.   Ten minutes.

          4               Q.   And is that a variable set?

          5               A.   No, sir.

          6               Q.   Is that the way it's designed?

          7               A.   That's the way it's designed.

          8               Q.   And that could be overridden by going

          9          to manual and attempting to start?

         10               A.   Correct.

         11               Q.   Earlier you testified on the overspeed

         12          devices.  Do you remember that?

         13               A.   Yes.

         14               Q.   You indicated that it shut off the

         15          fuel.

         16               A.   Correct.

         17               Q.   Are there any overspeed devices that

         18          shut the air off to the engines?

         19               A.   Not an overspeed, no.
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         20               Q.   Are there any safety devices that shut

         21          off the air?

         22               A.   Yes.

         23               Q.   What are those called?

         24               A.   You've got a rig saver, and then

         25          you've also got your ESD panel which shuts off
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          1          your ventilation itself.

          2               Q.   And once again, we don't want to

          3          confuse ESD panel with EDS.

          4               A.   With EDS, correct.  They are two

          5          totally different systems.

          6               Q.   Yes, sir.  And let's talk a little bit

          7          about the rig saver.  When was the last time

          8          you inspected the rig saver?

          9               A.   I don't recall.

         10               Q.   And each engine --

         11               A.   Each engine had its own.

         12               Q.   And you will agree with me, hopefully,

         13          that Engines 3 and 6 were operating on the

         14          time of the explosion?

         15               A.   I don't -- I don't know.

         16               Q.   And where is the rig saver?  Is it

         17          literally on the engine?

         18               A.   It is literally on the engine.

         19               Q.   Can you tell me how the rig saver is
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         20          actuated when it's supposed to work?

         21               A.   From the engine room.

         22               Q.   Yes, sir.  Is it automatic?

         23               A.   No.

         24               Q.   So there is no automated shutdown, to

         25          shut down the air as a safety mechanism to
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          1          those engines?  Is that your testimony?

          2               A.   There is an ESD, which shuts down the

          3          ventilation, closes the dampers, turns off the

          4          fans that supply the engine room.

          5               Q.   And is that automatic?

          6               A.   Yes.  Automatic in a sense when you

          7          push the ESD button for that specific engine

          8          room, it shuts down those fans and closes

          9          those dampers.

         10               Q.   When I push a button, I'm thinking

         11          that's not quite automatic.  That's manual. 

         12          Is that fair?

         13               A.   It automatically -- when you push that

         14          button, it automatically turns off that fan

         15          and shuts those louvers.  You don't physically

         16          run out there --

         17                    MR. KOHNKE:

         18                                   I object.  What he thinks has no

         19                    relevance to this.  If he says my car
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         20                    automatically starts because I turn a

         21                    key, that's what he, you know, that's

         22                    his definition.  Some people might

         23                              say -- 

         24                    MR. GORDON:

         25                                   Mr. Kohnke, I'll withdraw it.  I'll
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          1                    try it a different way.

          2          BY MR. GORDON:

          3               Q.   Unless you push the ESD button, the

          4          rig saver is not going to actuate, correct?

          5               A.   The rig saver is not going to actuate

          6          if you hit the ESD.  The ventilation to the

          7          engine room space will shut off to close the

          8          ventilation dampers.

          9               Q.   Do you know why they would have such a

         10          device like that?

         11                    MR. LONDON:

         12                                   Objection.

         13                    MR. GORDON:

         14                                   Come on, now.  He's chief mechanic

         15                    or chief engineer.

         16                    MR. LONDON:

         17                                   He didn't design the rig.  He

         18                    operates the systems on the rig.  Can

         19                    you give me one moment?
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         20                              MR. GORDON:

         21                                        No problem.  

         22                    THE WITNESS:

         23                                   Could you repeat the question?

         24                    MR. GORDON:

         25                                   Yes, sir.
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          1          BY MR. GORDON:

          2               Q.   Do you know why there is a device that

          3          when it's pressed it shuts down the intake

          4          into the engine rooms?

          5               A.   Yes.  It's a safety device.

          6               Q.   Do you know why that's not like what I

          7          call automated?  In other words, if it senses

          8          a certain, say explosive gas, why that's not

          9          automatic?

         10               A.   I do not know that.

         11               Q.   Has that ever been discussed ever in

         12          your presence with anyone?

         13               A.   No.

         14               Q.   Do you know the source of the first

         15          explosion?

         16               A.   No, I do not.

         17               Q.   The second explosion?

         18               A.   No, I do not.  I was in my room.

         19               Q.   Any explosion?  Any one of them?  Do
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         20          you know the source?

         21                    MR. LONDON:

         22                                   Objection.  Asked and answered.

         23          BY MR. GORDON:

         24               Q.   Do you know if the BANKSTON was the

         25          source?
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          1                    MR. LONDON:

          2                                   He just said he doesn't know.

          3                    THE WITNESS:

          4                                   I don't know.

          5          BY MR. GORDON:

          6               Q.   Okay.  Have you seen a document by

          7          Transocean that says the BANKSTON was the

          8          source of the ignition?

          9               A.   No.

         10               Q.   That would be pretty ludicrous, right?

         11                    MR. LONDON:

         12                                   What was that?

         13                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         14                                   No, Mr. Gordon --

         15                    MR. GORDON:

         16                                   I'm sorry.  I'll move on.

         17          BY MR. GORDON:

         18               Q.   Let's talk about ESD emergency -- I'm

         19          sorry, EDS.  Were you authorized to operate or

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (297 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:17 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20          actuate the emergency disconnect system?

         21               A.   No.

         22               Q.   Do you know if it was a Cameron

         23          product?

         24               A.   I don't know.

         25               Q.   Do you know what an annular is?
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          1               A.   Yes.

          2               Q.   Have you ever seen one?

          3               A.   Yes.

          4               Q.   Do you know how often they are

          5          replaced?

          6               A.   I don't know.

          7               Q.   Do you know how long it had been

          8          before the annular in this BOP had been

          9          replaced?

         10               A.   I do not know.

         11               Q.   Do you know if there were two new

         12          annulars on the DEEPWATER HORIZON not being

         13          used?

         14                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         15                                   Mr. Gordon, I believe Mr. Bertone

         16                    is a marine person, so if it's not

         17                    relating to the marine system I don't

         18                    think he has knowledge or can comment

         19                    on any of that stuff.
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         20                    MR. GORDON:

         21                                   Well, he was asked if by walking by

         22                    a moon pool on whether or not that

         23                    could have somehow stopped the EDS from

         24                    working.  I'd like to know if he

         25                              knows --
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          1                    MR. LONDON:

          2                                   He was never asked if walking by

          3                    the moon pool could stop the EDS from

          4                    working.  That question is patently

          5                    ridiculous.

          6                    MR. GORDON:

          7                                   I think he can answer this

          8                    question.  It's really simple.

          9                    MR. LONDON:

         10                                   He may be able to answer the

         11                    question, it's outside of his area of

         12                    expertise as the Captain said.  I would

         13                    object to it.

         14                    MR. GORDON:

         15                                   So does that mean you're not going

         16                    to let him answer?

         17                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         18                                   Mr. Gordon, again, if it's outside

         19                    his responsibility I would -- Move on.

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (301 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:17 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20                    MR. GORDON:

         21                                   Right.

         22          BY MR. GORDON:

         23               Q.   Did you ever complain, ever to anyone

         24          that you had an insufficient number of men --

         25                    MR. LONDON:
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          1                                   Objection to the complaint.

          2                    MR. GORDON:

          3                                   May I finish the question?  Thank

          4                    you.

          5          BY MR. GORDON:

          6               Q.   Did you ever complain to anyone that

          7          you had an insufficient number of men or

          8          manpower to keep up with the routine, safe

          9          maintenance of the equipment?

         10                    MR. LONDON:

         11                                   Objection. Complaint connotes

         12                    concern.  I think if you rephrased it

         13                    he may be he'll answer that.  If you

         14                    ask him was he ever alarmed?

         15          BY MR. GORDON:

         16               Q.   Did you ever complain to anybody like

         17          a supervisor?

         18                    MR. LONDON:

         19                                   Did he ever mention it to a
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         20                    supervisor?

         21          BY MR. GORDON:

         22               Q.   Yes, like an e-mail or conversation or

         23          meeting.

         24               A.   In the past I had requested additional

         25          personnel to assist.
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          1               Q.   Who did you request it to?

          2               A.   Paul Johnson, Performance Manager;

          3          James Kent, the Asset Manager.

          4               Q.   What specific personnel did you

          5          request be given to you?

          6               A.   Engineers and motormen.

          7               Q.   When did you make that request?

          8               A.   I don't recall.

          9               Q.   2010?

         10                    MR. LONDON:

         11                                   He says he doesn't recall.

         12                    MR. GORDON:

         13                                   I'm trying to narrow it down.

         14                    MR. LONDON:

         15                                   We're not going to narrow it down. 

         16                    He doesn't recall.

         17                    THE WITNESS:

         18                                   Sometime from when I became

         19                              chief --
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         20                              MR. LONDON:

         21                                        Just --

         22          BY MR. GORDON:

         23               Q.   Well, Paul Johnson, he's relatively

         24          new as rig manager, isn't he?

         25               A.   Correct.
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          1               Q.   Can I hear it?

          2               A.   Correct.

          3               Q.   So when did he come onboard?

          4               A.   I don't recall.

          5               Q.   In '09, correct?

          6                    MR. LONDON:

          7                                   He said he doesn't recall.

          8                    THE WITNESS:

          9                                   I don't know the exact date.

         10                    MR. LONDON:

         11                                   Captain, I've got to object to this

         12                    man's continued line of questioning

         13                    here.  We know he's obviously trying 

         14                              -- I don't know what he's doing.  It

         15                    doesn't appear to me he's looking for

         16                    the truth in the matter here.  He's

         17                    trying to insert things and put words

         18                    in the witness' mouth.  He doesn't

         19                    know.  He didn't keep a record.  That's
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         20                    not his job.  He just doesn't know and

         21                    I object to that line of questioning

         22                    and I wish you'd admonish counsel to

         23                    cease from it and get away from it and

         24                    move on.

         25                    MR. GORDON:
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          1                                   I think this is extremely relevant

          2                    to the cause.  I mean, my goodness.

          3                    MR. LONDON:

          4                                   It may be, but not from this

          5                    particular witness.  There may be

          6                    somebody else --

          7                    MR. GORDON:

          8                                   But, you know --

          9                    MR. LONDON:

         10                                   Can I finish?

         11                    MR. GORDON:

         12                                   Sure.

         13                    MR. LONDON:

         14                                   There may be somebody else

         15                    competent to answer those questions.  I

         16                    don't know.  All I'm saying is he's

         17                    not.

         18                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         19                                   Again, if it's not within his
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         20                    responsibility.  But counsel, if it's

         21                    relevant to evaluating the

         22                    effectiveness of the vessel safety

         23                    management system, questions can be

         24                    asked.  So I'm going to strike a

         25                    balance here.
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          1                    MR. LONDON:

          2                                   I understand that, but by asking

          3                    what date somebody came onboard has

          4                    nothing to do with his competence -- it

          5                    has nothing to do with his competency. 

          6                    That's what my objection is.  I don't

          7                    have a problem with asking do you know

          8                    the guys there, do you know the guy who

          9                    works there.  But this continual line

         10                    about when he was employed, what

         11                              date --

         12                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         13                                   Right.  And I already cautioned Mr.

         14                    Gordon on that.  That's fine.  So Mr.

         15                    Gordon, wherever you go to, please be

         16                    specific to this.

         17          BY MR. GORDON:

         18               Q.   I just want to -- I got lost here. 

         19          You said you requested engineers, correct?
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         20               A.   Correct.

         21               Q.   Motormen?

         22               A.   Correct.

         23               Q.   Anybody else?

         24               A.   Not that I recall.

         25               Q.   Did you get those people?

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (312 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:18 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      157

          1               A.   Yes.

          2               Q.   Every time you asked?

          3               A.   When they were available through the

          4          company, yes.

          5               Q.   My client, Doug Brown, told me and

          6          this Board that he had requested additional

          7          help to you.  Did he do that?

          8               A.   I don't recall if he specifically

          9          requested it to me.  I didn't work with Doug

         10          Brown but three days on a hitch.

         11               Q.   Did anybody below you in the engine

         12          room ask you for additional help?

         13               A.   Yes.

         14               Q.   Who?

         15               A.   Brent Mansfield.

         16                    MR. LONDON:

         17                                   Brent or Brad?

         18                    MR. GORDON:

         19                                   It's actually James Brent
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         20                    Mansfield, correct?  That is also my

         21                    client, but not here.

         22          BY MR. GORDON:

         23               Q.   And what did he ask for?

         24               A.   Engineers.

         25               Q.   Engineers?

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (314 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:18 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      158

          1               A.   Yes.

          2               Q.   And when he was a first engineer he

          3          asked this of you, correct?

          4               A.   Correct.

          5               Q.   And he became a first engineer in

          6          October of '09, correct?

          7               A.   I don't know.

          8               Q.   Yes.  So if you'll just assume with me

          9          that he became a first engineer in October of

         10          '09, just assume that.  So sometime, if that's

         11          true, between October of '09 and April 20,

         12          2010, Brent Mansfield, first engineer, asked

         13          you for engineers in the engine department,

         14          correct?

         15                    MR. LONDON:

         16                                   Are you asking him to assume that

         17                    he asked for engineers in the

         18                    engineering department?  What's the

         19                    question?
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         20                    MR. GORDON:

         21                                   Well, I think he asked --

         22                    MR. LONDON:

         23                                   I'd like if you would rephrase the

         24                    question.

         25                    MR. GORDON:
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          1                                   Sure.  I just want to make sure --

          2          BY MR. GORDON:

          3               Q.   You testified that Brent Mansfield

          4          requested engineers, I take it, for the engine

          5          department, correct?

          6               A.   Correct.

          7               Q.   And I want you to assume that he

          8          became a first engineer in October of '09.

          9                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         10                                   Mr. Gordon, I agree with counsel. 

         11                    We shouldn't make an assumption and

         12                    make the witness testify what he knows

         13                    and what he doesn't know based on an

         14                    assumption.

         15          BY MR. GORDON:

         16               Q.   But you're sure he was a first

         17          engineer when he requested it -- made that

         18          request, correct?

         19                    MR. LONDON:
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         20                                   Are you sure of that?

         21                    THE WITNESS:

         22                                   No, I'm not -- I'm not sure of

         23                    that.

         24                    MR. GORDON:

         25                                   It's hard to ask a question about a

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (318 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:18 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      160

          1                    statement you can't refer to anything.

          2                    MR. LONDON:

          3                                   Can you have questions as opposed

          4                    to commentaries.

          5                    MR. GORDON:

          6                                   Are you going to let him testify

          7                    about anything the Captain --

          8                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          9                                   Mr. Gordon, again, please,

         10                    extraneous conversation here.  Please

         11                    limit them.

         12          BY MR. GORDON:

         13               Q.   Did the Captain ever tell you not to

         14          pick up an injured seaman?

         15                    MR. LONDON:

         16                                   Due to my last comments concerning

         17                    the statement I am instructing the

         18                    witness not to answer that question.

         19          BY MR. GORDON:
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         20               Q.   Okay.  Can you please tell me when you

         21          went to the bridge and you observed the

         22          Captain what his demeanor was?

         23                    MR. LONDON:

         24                                   Not going to answer that question

         25                    either.  It's too speculative.  It's
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          1                    too subjective.  How does anybody know

          2                    what somebody's demeanor is?  I can

          3                    look at you right now.  What demeanor

          4                    am I going to say that you have?

          5                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          6                                   Let's get back to the process here. 

          7                    If you have an objection or anything

          8                    you want to advise your client to

          9                    answer or not answer to exercise his

         10                    5th Amendment, please do so.  But let's

         11                    limit this conversation between --

         12                    MR. KOHNKE:

         13                                   Captain, let me then make an

         14                    objection.  I object to any questioning

         15                    that calls upon a lay witness to

         16                    interpret the demeanor of another

         17                    person.  He can say what he heard; he

         18                    can say what he said; he can say what

         19                    he saw.  But if he takes it beyond that
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         20                    without some professional degree, such

         21                    as a psychiatrist or social worker,

         22                    which requires some interpretation of a

         23                    behavior, then I object.  It's

         24                    improper.  And that's what he's asked

         25                    this witness to do.
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          1                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          2                                   Noted.

          3          BY MR. GORDON:

          4               Q.   When you went to the bridge, who was

          5          in charge?

          6                    MR. LONDON:

          7                                   When you went to the bridge who was

          8                    in charge?  Who was in charge on the

          9                    bridge?

         10                    MR. GORDON:

         11                                   Yes.  Let's try it this way.

         12                    MR. LONDON:

         13                                   Hold on a second.

         14                    MR. GORDON:

         15                                   I'll withdraw the question.

         16          BY MR. GORDON:

         17               Q.   When you went to the bridge -- before

         18          you went there, did you know where the chain

         19          of command was?
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         20               A.   Yes.

         21               Q.   When you went to the bridge -- before

         22          you went into the bridge, who in your opinion,

         23          was in charge of the vessel?

         24               A.   When the rig is not underway, the OIM

         25          is in charge.  When the rig is underway, the
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          1          Captain is in charge.

          2               Q.  And let's take that analogy.  Before

          3          you walked into the bridge, who in your

          4          opinion, was in charge of the DEEPWATER

          5          HORIZON?   

          6               A.   The OIM.

          7               Q.   When you went into the bridge, did

          8          that remain true, the OIM was in charge?  Was

          9          he in the bridge, the OIM?

         10               A.   I don't know at that time.

         11               Q.   Was the Captain in the bridge?

         12               A.   Yes.

         13               Q.   So even though the Captain was in the

         14          bridge at that time and the OIM, we don't

         15          know, you did not consider the Captain in

         16          charge of the DEEPWATER HORIZON, correct?

         17                              MR. LONDON:

         18                                        Hold on a second.

         19                              THE WITNESS:
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         20                                        I don't know how to answer that

         21                              question.

         22                    MR. GORDON:

         23                                   I don't have anymore questions. 

         24                    Thank you.

         25                    CAPT NGUYEN:
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          1                                   Did I hear you correctly, you

          2                    didn't want to answer that question?

          3                    THE WITNESS:

          4                                   I don't know how to answer that

          5                    question.

          6                    MR. LONDON:

          7                                   He said he didn't know how to

          8                    answer the question.  The way it's

          9                    phrased, he didn't know how to give an

         10                    answer.

         11                    MR. KOHNKE:

         12                                    He used the words, "in charge",

         13                    Captain. "In charge" is not a term of

         14                    art.  It may mean something to

         15                    different people, different things to

         16                    different people, but it's not a term

         17                    of art used in the maritime community. 

         18                    In charge?  In command, yes.

         19                              E X A M I N A T I O N
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         20          BY CAPT NGUYEN:

         21               Q.   To follow-up on Mr. Gordon's line of

         22          questions.  So how do you know if the vessel

         23          is underway or not underway?

         24               A.   When we're unlatched from the rig

         25          floor.  If we're not on location with intent
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          1          to drill. 

          2               Q.   So that's your understanding?  Is that

          3          written in the company manual or policy or

          4          something?

          5               A.   I don't know if it's in a company

          6          manual or not.  That's just my understanding

          7          of it.

          8               Q.   So at what point -- was there any

          9          point, transition, as far as who was in

         10          command that you are aware of or was the OIM

         11          in charge the entire evolution all the way to

         12          the abandon ship?  Do you know?

         13               A.   I don't know.

         14               Q.   What about in the organizational

         15          manual, the ship's safety management system

         16          manual, any information or guidance in there

         17          as far as at what point there is a transition

         18          between OIM to the Master, do you recall?

         19               A.   The only thing that I know of is when
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         20          we're unlatched and underway command is

         21          released to the Captain.  When we're on

         22          location with intent to drill, we're latched

         23          up, the OIM is in charge.  He's in command.

         24               Q.   So at the point when Mr. Pleasant said

         25          that he has EDS, do you interpret that as a
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          1          transition point from OIM to Master?

          2               A.   Not until we EDS.

          3               Q.   What's that?

          4               A.   Not until we actually EDS.  I asked

          5          the question, "Have we EDS, can we EDS," the

          6          OIM was still in charge.

          7               Q.   But what I'm saying is when Mr.

          8          Pleasant say that he has EDS  

          9               A.   Right.

         10               Q.   So at that point it shifts to the

         11          Master?

         12               A.   That's correct.  That's why I asked

         13          the Captain for permission to start the

         14          standby generator.

         15                    MR. LONDON:

         16                                   Excuse me, one second here.  If I

         17                    may just clarify that, Captain. It's

         18                    his understanding -- if it actually

         19                    separates, he would have no way of
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         20                    knowing that.  Because you push or

         21                    activate the EDS does not mean, and

         22                    obviously in this case, does not mean

         23                    that the actual separation occurred. 

         24                    So I think -- I wanted to be straight

         25                    with you.  I believe it's his position
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          1                    that if it actually separates, the

          2                    Captain is in charge.  But if it is

          3                    still maintained, then the OIM is in

          4                    charge or still in command.  Does that

          5                    make sense?

          6                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          7          BY MR. DYKES:

          8               Q.   Given the situation where it was at,

          9          the rig is on fire, it appears you're still

         10          latched up.  In the absence of the OIM, who

         11          assumes command of the HORIZON up until the

         12          point you unlatch?

         13               A.   The Captain is second in charge in the

         14          event that the OIM is not present or is

         15          injured.

         16                    MR. DYKES:

         17                                   Thank you.

         18                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         19          BY CAPT NGUYEN:
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         20               Q.   Is that written down somewhere?

         21                    A.   I don't know.  I'm sure it is, but I

         22          don't know.

         23               Q.   So there's no way for people to know

         24          when that transition takes place?

         25                    MR. LONDON:
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          1                                   He's just saying he doesn't know.

          2                    THE WITNESS:

          3                                   In the company management system,

          4                    I'm sure it's in there.

          5          BY CAPT NGUYEN:

          6               Q.   But you've never seen it in there?

          7               A.   I don't recall seeing it, personally,

          8          myself.  I'm fairly certain it is in there.

          9               Q.   So how do people know for sure?  How

         10          do you know for sure?

         11                    MR. LONDON:

         12                                   Captain, I would object to that --

         13          BY CAPT NGUYEN:

         14               Q.   How do you know for sure?

         15                    MR. LONDON:

         16                                   He's answering the question the

         17                    best way he can.  He says as far as he

         18                    knows when it's attached the Captain is

         19                    in charge; when it's not the OIM is. 
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         20                    That's all he can answer.  Where he got

         21                    that from and how he can know for sure,

         22                    he can't answer that.  The answer is:

         23                    When it's there, it's the OIM; when

         24                    it's not, it's the Captain.

         25          BY CAPT NGUYEN:
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          1               Q.   But his answer has to be based on

          2          something.  What is it based on?

          3               A.   It would be based on the company

          4          management system, CMS.

          5               Q.   Which you don't remember seeing -- do

          6          you see it in there?

          7               A.   Yes.  Everybody in the company has

          8          access to the CMS manuals.

          9               Q.   But did you see that in the manual?

         10               A.   I --

         11                    MR. LONDON:

         12                                   If you did -- if you remember, you

         13                    remember.  If you don't, you don't.

         14                    THE WITNESS:

         15                                   I don't recall seeing it.

         16                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         17                                   Thank you, sir.  I just want to

         18                    clarify another important issue here in

         19                    terms of who's in command and so people
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         20                    know who to take guidance or direction

         21                    from.  Curt Kuchta?

         22                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

         23                                   No questions, Captain.

         24                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         25                                   Yes, sir.  Jimmy Harrell?
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          1                    MR. FANNING:

          2                                   No questions.  Thank you.

          3                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          4                                   Yes, sir.  Mike Williams.

          5                    MR. PENTON:

          6                                   Yes, Captain.

          7                    MR. PENTON:

          8                                   Good morning, Chief.  I'm Ronnie

          9                    Penton.  I represent Mike Williams.

         10                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         11          BY MR. PENTON:

         12               Q.   Chief, I need to ask a couple of

         13          questions.  Maybe I'm the only one confused

         14          about this overspeed and the engines exploding

         15          and I need to ask you a couple of questions. 

         16          If I get off base and I'm in another area and

         17          it's not your area, please let me know because

         18          I don't want to continue, okay?  The general

         19          alarms, are they connected in some manner,
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         20          electrically and/or mechanically to any

         21          automated systems in the ECR, whether it be

         22          the engines, the air dampers or anything of

         23          that sort?

         24               A.   Could you be more specific on that?

         25               Q.   Yes.  The general alarm system, is it
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          1          a zone based system?

          2               A.   As far as the alarm system?

          3               Q.   Yes.

          4               A.   Yes, there are zones.

          5               Q.   Now, early on in the very beginning of

          6          your testimony I don't think I caught this

          7          answer, but -- and if you would, tell me.  The

          8          alarm system, is that within the purview of

          9          the electrical department?

         10               A.   That would be under the ET Department.

         11               Q.   Which is?  What's the ET Department?

         12               A.   It falls under -- you have an

         13          electrical supervisor, which is over the ETs

         14          and the electricians.

         15               Q.   If someone on the rig was going to

         16          bypass, let's say, the general alarm system,

         17          who on the rig would have that authority?

         18               A.   I don't know that.

         19               Q.   Do you know, on April the 20th,

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (341 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:18 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20          whether or not, in fact, the general alarm

         21          system was bypassed?

         22               A.   I do not know.

         23               Q.   And the people who would know that --

         24          you named a couple of people earlier.  That's

         25          the same people?
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          1               A.   Correct.

          2               Q.   Is it true that when you get two

          3          alarms in any zone on the rig, in any one

          4          zone, that the general alarm will

          5          automatically sound if it is not bypassed?

          6               A.   If the zones are right next to each

          7          other.  If that zone, the spacers are

          8          connected, then yes.

          9               Q.   Let's talk about the ECR.  You said

         10          that you did not hear the general alarm; is

         11          that correct?

         12               A.   What I heard when I got up out of the

         13          bed was the DP operator, Yancy Keplinger,

         14          hollering, "Fire, fire, fire."

         15               Q.   What does a general alarm sound like?

         16               A.   As far as fire alarm?  It's a constant

         17          bell.

         18               Q.   And you never heard that?

         19               A.   I don't recall.
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         20               Q.   Have you ever heard that on this rig?

         21               A.   Yes.

         22               Q.   When was the last time you heard that?

         23               A.   That Sunday prior.

         24               Q.   So it was during the drill?

         25               A.   Yes.
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          1               Q.   Had there ever been an occasion where

          2          the general alarm sounded, but it was not

          3          under the auspices of a drill?

          4               A.   Not while I was on the rig, no.

          5               Q.   Let's talk about the ECR.  Does the

          6          general alarm system have an automated

          7          function whereby if two zones sounded and

          8          activated that both the air and the engine

          9          functions would therefore, be protected from

         10          the general alarm system sensing that two

         11          zones had sounded and activated?

         12               A.   Please repeat that question.  

         13               Q.   I remember it in my head, so I

         14          apologize.  Is the general alarm system

         15          designed such that if two alarms in any one

         16          zone are activated, is sound, then the general

         17          alarm system in the ECR would automatically

         18          shut down the air intake, as well as the

         19          engine itself?
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         20               A.   I don't recall.

         21               Q.   Is that outside, Chief, and I'm not

         22          going to pressure you, is that outside your

         23          experience in training or is there someone

         24          else who knows that, or is that right now you

         25          don't know?
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          1               A.   I just don't recall.  I don't recall

          2          actually how this system actuates when the

          3          engine rooms shut down in that sequence.

          4               Q.   All right.  Well, let me ask you this. 

          5          Do you know anything about -- I know that when

          6          Mr. Gordon was here you guys were talking

          7          about automated versus manual and all that,

          8          but what I'm concerned with is understanding

          9          is there part of the system that you do know

         10          how it functions that actually activates and

         11          actuates the automatic systems in the ECR as

         12          it relates to both air and power?

         13               A.   For shutting down the engines?

         14               Q.   Yes, and for shutting down the air to

         15          the ECR.

         16               A.   Could you explain that a little

         17          further, please?

         18               Q.   We know that there is an air damper

         19          system, correct, in the ECR?
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         20               A.   Correct.

         21               Q.   And what is the purpose of that air

         22          damper system?

         23               A.   To shut down ventilation to the

         24          engine.

         25               Q.   Such as in this case, if gas is
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          1          migrating into the engine room you don't want

          2          that, right?

          3               A.   That's correct.

          4               Q.   So would that be one circumstance

          5          where the air damper system should be shut

          6          down for that circumstance?

          7               A.   It should be, yes.

          8               Q.   And my question is, do you know or are

          9          you aware of an automated system such that the

         10          actual intrusion of gas into the engine room

         11          would cause an automatic shutdown of the air

         12          into the ECR?

         13               A.   Not into the ECR.

         14               Q.   Okay, where?

         15               A.   It should shut down the louvers in the

         16          engine room, if two of those sensors in the

         17          engine room were to go off.

         18               Q.   And is that an automated system where

         19          just the sensing of the gas would do that?
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         20               A.   Yes.

         21               Q.   And what is that system called?

         22               A.   The vessel fire protection system.

         23               Q.   And do you know if that system

         24          malfunctioned in this event?

         25               A.   I have no idea.
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          1               Q.   How about shutting the engines down? 

          2          Is there an automated system that would shut

          3          the engines down automatically if they sensed

          4          gas into the intake?

          5               A.   I do not know.

          6               Q.   The flag state asked you a question

          7          about whether or not the engine exploded, I

          8          believe, if the overspeed device fails.  Do

          9          you recall a question similar to that?

         10               A.   Yes.

         11               Q.   And if this is outside you scope, just

         12          please let me know, but you do know that the

         13          engines did explode, correct?

         14               A.   I was told.

         15               Q.   You don't know though as your own

         16          personal knowledge?

         17               A.   No, I do not.

         18               Q.   Do you know -- the fact that you were

         19          told it exploded, do you know if they did
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         20          explode, how they exploded?

         21               A.   No, I do not. 

         22               Q.   Did you see the back wall of the

         23          engine room where the wall or Engine #3 was

         24          situated?

         25               A.   No, I did not.
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          1               Q.   There is a stack -- you've seen it

          2          before, correct?

          3               A.   I have seen that wall, yes, but I did

          4          not see it after the incident.  

          5               Q.   Okay, thank you.  There are exhaust

          6          stacks coming out of every engine placement

          7          skid; is that correct?

          8               A.   That's correct.  

          9               Q.   Thank you.

         10                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         11                                   Let me have a clarification here. 

         12                    I don't think we have established that

         13                    the engines actually exploded.  There

         14                    was an explosion inside the ECR, but

         15                    not the engine.  So I don't think we

         16                    have established that as a fact yet.

         17                    MR. PENTON:

         18                                   Well, I agree and that's one of the

         19                    things I'm getting at.

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (353 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:18 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         21                                   I guess maybe I misunderstand the

         22                    line  -

         23                    MR. LONDON:

         24                                   His testimony isn't that the

         25                    engines exploded.
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          1                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          2                                   Right, that's what I'm saying.

          3                    MR. PENTON:

          4                                   He said that's what he was told, I

          5                    believe.  That's fine.

          6                    MR. LONDON:

          7                                   He doesn't know that.  Make that

          8                    clear.

          9                    MR. PENTON:

         10                                   I understand that.

         11          BY MR. PENTON:

         12               Q.   Chief, we understand that, at least, I

         13          do, I know you didn't say that.  There's two

         14          issues.  There's the space itself and then

         15          there's the engines.  The person that I guess

         16          we should talk to in the crew about the

         17          mechanical side of the explosion would be

         18          responsible for those engines would be whom?

         19               A.   Are you asking me who would know if
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         20          they exploded or not?

         21               Q.   Yes.  Well, who would know the

         22          mechanics of how they exploded, if they did

         23          explode.  Who on the rig, on that day, if you

         24          know?

         25                    MR. LONDON:
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          1                                   You got me.  What is it --

          2                    MR. PENTON:

          3                                   I understand.

          4          BY MR. PENTON:

          5               Q.   I'm trying to identify the person, if

          6          the Chief doesn't know, who would be the

          7          person on the rig responsible for knowing how

          8          the engines, in fact, mechanically exploded,

          9          if they did explode.  Who would be that

         10          person?

         11                    MR. KOHNKE:

         12                                        I'm not sure what you're asking.

         13                              When you say the engines exploded, are

         14                    you referring to the engines that's an

         15                    ignition source for an explosion or are

         16                    you referring to throwing a rod or a

         17                    piston and the block coming apart?  I'm

         18                    not sure what you're referring to when

         19                    you say the engines exploded.
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         20                              MR. PENTON:

         21                                        Well, we know there was -- let me

         22                              ask you and Ned I understand, and I'm

         23                    trying to get to it maybe ineptly.

         24          BY MR. PENTON:

         25                         Q.   But you heard the engines overspeed,
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          1          did you not? 

          2               A.   No.

          3               Q.   Oh, you didn't.  I'm sorry.  I thought

          4          we wrote down that you -- so you didn't hear

          5          them rev high RPM?

          6               A.   No, sir.  I was in my state room.

          7               Q.   I understand.  Mike Williams' office

          8          is about 50 feet from this area; is it not? 

          9          Is that about right?

         10               A.   What space are you referring to?

         11               Q.   Well, the ECR for one.

         12               A.   The ECR?

         13               Q.   Yes.  If someone heard the engines

         14          overrev, would that be what you would think

         15          would be overspeed, or is that something else

         16          maybe?

         17                    MR. LONDON:

         18                                   That would be speculation, pure

         19                    speculation.
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         20                    MR. PENTON:

         21                                   I'll withdraw then.  We'll ask

         22                    someone else, Chief.

         23          BY MR. PENTON:

         24               Q.   Chief, let me -- this is just a

         25          housekeeping matter.  One of the first
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          1          questions that you were asked from the panel

          2          was about the A-chair.  Do you recall those

          3          questions?

          4               A.   Yes, sir.

          5               Q.   The computer system of the A-chair,

          6          that's not within your purview?  That A-chair

          7          is not?  Is any part of the A-chair within the

          8          electrical purview?

          9               A.   Yes, within the electrical.

         10               Q.   Are you aware of any repetitive

         11          problem, or any problem whatsoever with daily

         12          computer lockups of the A-chair, such that the

         13          pressures that's read at the A-chair could not

         14          be monitored?

         15               A.   I don't -- I don't know as far as

         16          daily or exactly what would have locked up.

         17               Q.   If there were such squawks or such

         18          complaints of maintenance for the A-chair

         19          would that be found in -- is there a
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         20          Transocean forms for --

         21               A.   That would be in the RMS system.

         22               Q.   In the RMS system?

         23               A.   Yes.

         24               Q.   Thank you.  Earlier you testified

         25          about two communication lines that go down to
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          1          the pods, correct?

          2               A.   That's correct.  

          3               Q.   Does the electrical department have

          4          anything to do with those two electrical

          5          cables on the rig?

          6               A.   Yes.

          7               Q.   And what is the role of the electrical

          8          department with respect to those two cables?

          9               A.   When the stack is onboard the vessel,

         10          they're in -- they oversee the megging of

         11          those cables to insure their integrity.

         12               Q.   Do you know if both pods were

         13          functioning on the BOP on April the 20th?

         14               A.   As far as I know, yes, they were.

         15               Q.   Chief, what is a mini-purge system?

         16               A.   A mini-purge system?

         17               Q.   Yes, sir.

         18               A.   It purges a certain space.

         19               Q.   And why does a space need to be
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         20          purged?

         21               A.   To keep any gas or contaminants out of

         22          it.

         23               Q.   So that if gas comes into a space,

         24          such as the ECR engine room, whatever, the gas

         25          would not infiltrate and have the opportunity
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          1          to ignite; is that correct?

          2               A.   That's correct.

          3               Q.   Now, what is a doghouse?

          4               A.   That's another name for a drill shack.

          5               Q.   Was there a mini-purge system on the

          6          BOP control panel  -

          7               A.   Yes.   

          8               Q.   -- in this doghouse?

          9               A.   Yes, there was.

         10               Q.   Did you see the driller's shack or

         11          doghouse when you made it outside from your

         12          state room?  Did you ever visualize it?

         13               A.   No, there was too many flames.  I

         14          couldn't see into the rig floor.

         15               Q.   Do you know whether or not the

         16          doghouse exploded?

         17               A.   I have no idea. 

         18               Q.   It is true that the doghouse did have

         19          a positive air purge system built into the
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         20          panel; is that correct?

         21               A.   That's correct.

         22               Q.   Is it true that the purpose of this

         23          positive air pressure purge system for the

         24          purpose of the doghouse was to keep those gas

         25          fumes out of the doghouse?
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          1               A.   That's correct.

          2               Q.   Are you aware whether or not the mini-

          3          purge system in the driller's shack was

          4          actually functioning that day?

          5               A.   It always functions.  I mean -- the

          6          system that you're referring to for the

          7          driller's shack or the doghouse is essentially

          8          tied in with the air-conditioning system

          9          itself and it -- the fans actually push --

         10          bring in fresh air and purge the room itself. 

         11          So I had no complaints from anyone that I

         12          heard that they did not have any air up there. 

         13          Also, when I was on the rig floor, the space

         14          was nice and cool.  So that would tell me that

         15          the purge system was, in fact, functioning. 

         16               Q.   If the purge was lost in the driller's

         17          shack, what would happen, if anything?

         18               A.   I don't recall the exact -- what would

         19          actually function, but it should shut down
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         20          your computers, your lights and power

         21          receptacles and such.

         22               Q.   And the purpose of that -- the purpose

         23          for the positive air pressure is not only the

         24          gas issue, but also so that you don't have an

         25          ignition source?
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          1               A.   That's correct.

          2               Q.   That goes hand-in-hand, correct?

          3               A.   That's correct.

          4               Q.   Is it true that this mini-purge system

          5          for the BOP control in the doghouse had been

          6          on bypass for almost five years?

          7               A.   That I don't know.

          8               Q.   You don't know that.  Who would be the

          9          person on the rig or on the beach who would

         10          have that information?

         11               A.   I don't know.

         12               Q.   So that would not be something that

         13          the electrical department, meaning your

         14          department, would be responsible for repairing

         15          or maintaining?

         16               A.   Yes, they would be a part in that.

         17               Q.   Yes, sir.

         18               A.   I don't know that the five years -- I

         19          have no idea of that.
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         20               Q.   Well, okay, don't hold me to my five

         21          years, but let me ask you.  On April the 20th,

         22          you were not aware whether or not the mini-

         23          purge system on the BOP panel in the doghouse

         24          was, in fact, on bypass?

         25               A.   I do not know if it was or not.
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          1               Q.   So therefore, you don't know if there

          2          were parts actually on order for the mini-

          3          purge system?

          4               A.   I do not know.

          5               Q.   One final area is the generators.  The

          6          -- and Chief, let me thank you for your

          7          bravery you've shown in trying to get this

          8          generator up.  The generator I want to talk to

          9          you about is the generator you and Mike

         10          Williams tried to pull up on line.  That was a

         11          standby generator, was it not?

         12               A.   That's correct.

         13               Q.   That was not an emergency generator?

         14               A.   That's correct.

         15               Q.   What is an emergency generator?

         16               A.   The emergency generators on this

         17          vessel was Engines 3 and 4 classified as

         18          emergency.

         19               Q.   And what would an emergency generator
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         20          do that a standby generator would not do?

         21               A.   I don't know how to answer that?  Can

         22          you be more specific?

         23               Q.   And as you were talking about

         24          generators in your testimony, I was confused

         25          as to which ones you were talking about, but
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          1          the generator that you tried to start and

          2          could not start and you went through all of

          3          that was a standby generator, correct?

          4               A.   That's correct.

          5               Q.   And that standby generator had to be

          6          manually started?

          7               A.   No, it was automatic, or manual.  

          8               Q.   It was both?

          9               A.   Yes.

         10               Q.   What was the automation system to the

         11          standby generator?

         12               A.   After ten minutes of no power on the

         13          vessel, no other generators starting, the

         14          standby generator would start up.

         15               Q.   And what is that -- does that system

         16          have a name? 

         17               A.   I don't understand the -- that

         18          question.

         19               Q.   What activates, after ten minutes with
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         20          all the other generators down, apparently a

         21          signal has to go to the standby generator to

         22          activate it.

         23               A.   It's on a -- it's on essentially a

         24          timing circuit, per se.

         25               Q.   So when the --
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          1               A.   I don't know of a name.

          2               Q.   All right.  But very simply, when the

          3          other generators go down, there's a timer and

          4          in ten minutes it will come on?  Simply put.

          5               A.   That's if the other 3 and 4 engine do

          6          not come on line and you're still a dead ship.

          7               Q.   And it will only come on line if the

          8          others don't?

          9               A.   That's correct.

         10               Q.   Now, the others did not come on we

         11          know, correct?

         12               A.   That's correct.  

         13               Q.   Do you know why the standby generator

         14          did not come on?

         15               A.   I have no idea.  

         16               Q.   And so I go back to my question and

         17          maybe you still can't answer it, but is there

         18          a difference between the emergency generators

         19          for those two engines that you talked about
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         20          and the standby generator in terms of its

         21          automation or how it functions?

         22               A.   Your emergency engines are controlled

         23          basically by your Simrad system.

         24               Q.   By your what?  I'm sorry.

         25               A.   Simrad system.
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          1               Q.   What is that?

          2               A.   Your vessel control system.  It can be

          3          automatic, full automated, or it can be in a

          4          manual state.  It's all done through the

          5          computers and such.  Your standby generator is

          6          -- it comes off of a system, a timing system,

          7          that will start after ten minutes of the main

          8          engines not coming back online to provide you

          9          with emergency lighting and so forth.

         10               Q.   I see.  So does the standby generator

         11          have a test protocol and test interval?

         12               A.   Yes.

         13               Q.   Do you know what that interval is?

         14               A.   Every week.

         15               Q.   Every week.  How do you cause the

         16          standby generator to come on during a test?

         17               A.   You put it in manual and you start it.

         18               Q.   You just put it in manual and start

         19          it?
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         20               A.   Put it in manual, reset it and push

         21          the start button.

         22               Q.   Is there a way to test the automated

         23          part whereby the other two generators are not

         24          on for ten minutes and it automatically will

         25          come on?
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          1               A.   Not that I'm aware of, unless you want

          2          to go dead ship for ten minutes.

          3               Q.   So there's really no practical way to

          4          test it in real time in real life condition,

          5          that you know of?

          6               A.   That I know of, no.

          7               Q.   I thought maybe there may be some

          8          electrical way to do it, but thank you.  The

          9          standby generator is a 480 volt generator?

         10               A.   That's correct.

         11               Q.   And had that generator powered up, it

         12          would have given the rig fire-fighting pumps,

         13          as well as lighting?

         14               A.   No.

         15               Q.   It wouldn't have?

         16               A.   No, it would not have.

         17               Q.   What would it have given the rig?

         18               A.   It would have given the lighting

         19          circuits.  It also would have powered up a
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         20          start air compressor so that if we needed air

         21          back on the main generators, if they were able

         22          to be started, we could at least get one of

         23          them started.

         24               Q.   So when you were asked in your earlier

         25          testimony whether or not they wanted you to go
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          1          start that generator and you did go do that,

          2          what was the purpose for going back into that

          3          area and trying to start that generator?  What

          4          was the overall purpose?  What would you have

          5          tried to accomplish?  

          6               A.   What I was trying to accomplish was

          7          after I had spoken with Chris Pleasant about

          8          EDSing, my thinking was that if the BOP had

          9          separated, then we would have cut off the

         10          source of the fuel.  At that time, all the

         11          fuel that would be in the riser would burn out

         12          and we were going to -- then we're facing a

         13          fire that we could actually control and put

         14          out.  And to do that, we needed power and we

         15          need fire pumps.  That's why I went to the

         16          standby generator to get it started to get us

         17          more power if we needed the compressors or

         18          whatever to get the main engines started then

         19          it would be online and running.
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         20               Q.   Mr. Kohnke said that he wanted your

         21          testimony now after the fact and I would like

         22          that, too, just on this one final question,

         23          but have you looked back at your job and how

         24          your people do their job and all of the

         25          automation and electrical systems on the rig
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          1          and have you formulized any position or any

          2          information on what you believe happened to

          3          these automated systems, if you know.

          4                    MR. LONDON:

          5                                   I would object to that.  That's far

          6                    too speculative.

          7                    MR. PENTON:

          8                                   Well, it's the same thing Mr.

          9                    Kohnke did.  If you think it's

         10                    speculative and he doesn't want to

         11                    answer.  I mean, he's the chief and I'd

         12                    like to ask --

         13                    MR. LONDON:

         14                                   You're asking him to give an

         15                    opinion as to the ultimate event.  We

         16                    don't want to get into that.  

         17                    MR. KOHNKE:

         18                                   In fairness to Mr. Kohnke, it was a

         19                    predicate to his question, and that was
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         20                    based on what you saw in the moon pool. 

         21                    Now maybe what he saw in the moon pool

         22                    can help him answer it, but I did give

         23                    him that predicate.

         24          BY MR. PENTON:

         25               Q.   Is there anything that you saw that
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          1          could tell us anything about why the automated

          2          systems did not function?

          3                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          4                                   I think that question is more

          5                    appropriate for the Board to ask at the

          6                    end of the --

          7                    MR. PENTON:

          8                                   You're going to ask that question?

          9                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         10                                   We'll I'll ask the question that if

         11                    he has anything that we did not ask.  

         12                              MR. PENTON:

         13                                        I appreciate it.  Thanks.

         14                              CAPT NGUYEN:

         15                                                  BP.       

         16                         MR. GODFREY:

         17                                   Thank you, Captain.  Captain, may I

         18                              proceed?

         19                              CAPT NGUYEN:
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         20                                        Yes.

         21                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         22          BY MR. GODFREY:

         23               Q.   Good morning, Chief.

         24               A.   Good morning.

         25               Q.   My name is Rick Godfrey.  I represent
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          1          BP.  What is your job title?

          2               A.   Chief engineer.

          3               Q.   Who reports to you as chief engineer?

          4               A.   Who reports to me?

          5               Q.   Yes.  When you were the chief engineer

          6          onboard the DEEPWATER HORIZON vessel on April

          7          20, 2010, who reported to you?

          8               A.   The first engineer, mechanical

          9          supervisor, electrical supervisor, materials

         10          coordinator, senior materials coordinator and

         11          senior subsea engineer.

         12               Q.   Did the chief electrician report to

         13          you?

         14               A.   No, sir.  He reports to the electrical

         15          supervisor.

         16               Q.   Did the chief electronic technician

         17          report to you?

         18               A.   No, sir, electrical supervisor.

         19               Q.   Did the subsea supervisors report to
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         20          you?

         21               A.   Not the subsea supervisor, but the

         22          senior subsea did.

         23               Q.   So the senior subsea supervisor who is

         24          overseeing the subsea supervisors, they

         25          reported to you, or he reported to you, the
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          1          senior subsea supervisor?

          2               A.   Yes.

          3               Q.   Would that imply then that you were

          4          ultimately responsible as chief engineer for

          5          the condition of the BOP?

          6               A.   For the CMS manual and the changes

          7          that occurred roughly a year ago, yes.

          8               Q.   Were you responsible for the yellow

          9          pod, ultimately, as chief engineer?

         10               A.   I don't know.

         11               Q.   By the way, do you know was the yellow

         12          pod on the BOP, was that functional, as far as

         13          you knew on the morning of April 20, 2010?

         14               A.   As far as I knew, yes.

         15               Q.   Thank you.  With respect to the A-

         16          chair, the driller's A-chair, prior to April

         17          20, 2010, how many losses of power did the

         18          driller's A-chair have, to your knowledge,

         19          onboard the DEEPWATER HORIZON?
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         20               A.   I do not know that answer.

         21               Q.   Were you aware of any losses of power

         22          prior to April 20, 2010 of the driller's A-

         23          chair onboard the DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         24               A.   I was aware of it locking up.

         25               Q.   How many times were you aware of the
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          1          driller's A-chair locking up on the DEEPWATER

          2          HORIZON prior to April 20, 2010?

          3               A.   I don't recall an exact number.

          4               Q.   More than once?

          5               A.   More than once.

          6               Q.   More than five times?

          7                              MR. LONDON:

          8                                        If you don't know, you don't know.

          9                              THE WITNESS:

         10                                        I don't know.

         11          BY MR. GODFREY:

         12               Q.   More than ten times?

         13                              MR. LONDON:

         14                                        He just said he doesn't know.

         15                              THE WITNESS:

         16                                        I don't know.

         17                    MR. GODFREY:

         18                                   Counsel, you're not testifying,

         19                    your witness is.
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         20                    MR. LONDON:

         21                                   No, I'm not testifying, but I'm

         22                    objecting.  The man's answered the

         23                    question.

         24                    MR. GODFREY:

         25                                   Counsel, you've been coaching the
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          1                    witness all morning.  This hearing is

          2                    to be conducted according to --

          3                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          4                                   Again, Counselor, you can advise

          5                    your witness and if you have any

          6                    objection you can object to me.

          7                    MR. LONDON:

          8                                   I would object to you, Captain. 

          9                    He's answered that he doesn't know. 

         10                    Then he asked him was it more than

         11                    three times; he doesn't know.  Then

         12                    it's more than five times; he doesn't

         13                    know.

         14                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         15                                   Well, his answer to Mr. Gregory

         16                    (SIC) was more than once.  So Mr.

         17                    Gregory (SIC) tried to narrow it down. 

         18                    So we can move on.

         19          BY MR. GODFREY:
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         20               Q.   What does "locking up" mean?

         21               A.   Locking up --

         22               Q.   Yes.

         23               A.   -- as far as the computer?

         24               Q.   Yes.  What does it mean?

         25               A.   Basically the screens would freeze. 
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          1          All the data and such would freeze on the

          2          screen.

          3               Q.   So the driller is sitting in the

          4          drilling shack looking at the computer, right?

          5               A.   Correct.

          6               Q.   And he's monitoring the conditions

          7          down the hole in the well by looking at the

          8          computer screens in the drilling shack, right?

          9               A.   That's correct.

         10               Q.   And if the computer screens lock up

         11          that means that the driller sitting in the

         12          chair has no idea what's going on downhole,

         13          right?

         14               A.   From that chair, yes, but he can

         15          switch over the B-chair.

         16               Q.   So if the driller's in the drilling

         17          chair A-chair and it locks up, he has to go

         18          move to the B-chair --

         19               A.   Yes.
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         20               Q.   -- and activate the system?  

         21               A.   That or either the AD that's sitting

         22          in the chair switches it on.

         23               Q.   How many times, to your knowledge, did

         24          the computer system in the B-chair lock up on

         25          the DEEPWATER HORIZON in the drilling shack
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          1          prior to April 20, 2010?

          2               A.   I have no knowledge of it locking up.

          3               Q.   Anyone ever complain to you that it

          4          locked up?

          5               A.   Not to my knowledge, no.

          6               Q.   Now, you're the chief engineer.  What

          7          did you do prior to April 20, 2010 onboard the

          8          DEEPWATER HORIZON to assist the locking up

          9          computer screen on the driller's A-chair?

         10               A.   We had contacted Hi-Tech Drilling,

         11          NOV.  We also had our technical field support

         12          involved in it.

         13               Q.   Is technical field support home-based

         14          or shore-based?

         15               A.   Yes, sir.

         16               Q.   And did they fix it prior to April 20,

         17          2010, in terms of that computer that was

         18          locking up?

         19               A.   As far as I know it had not locked up
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         20          that day or --

         21               Q.   Prior to April 20, 2010, had they come

         22          out and actually fixed drilling chair A so

         23          that the computer was not supposed to lock up

         24          anymore?

         25               A.   They had replaced hard drives in it.
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          1               Q.   After they replaced the hard drives,

          2          do you recall whether or not the computer

          3          screen on the driller's A-chair continued to

          4          lock up?

          5               A.   No.

          6               Q.   You don't recall?

          7               A.   I don't know that it did.  I don't

          8          recall ever hearing that it had locked up

          9          after the hard drive replacements.

         10               Q.   Fair enough.  How often did you use

         11          shore-side services or home-based services to

         12          repair systems onboard the DEEPWATER HORIZON

         13          prior to April 20, 2010?

         14               A.   Could you be more specific?

         15               Q.   Sure.  I assume you had maintenance

         16          items that you addressed as chief engineer

         17          onboard the DEEPWATER HORIZON prior to April

         18          20, 2010; is that right?

         19               A.   Yes.
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         20               Q.   How often did you call for shore-based

         21          support to conduct or perform the maintenance?

         22               A.   To perform the maintenance?

         23               Q.   Yes, sir.

         24               A.   None.

         25               Q.   Was all the maintenance then under
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          1          your responsibility and supervision?

          2               A.   Technically, yes.

          3               Q.   You testified earlier that the --

          4          after the explosion there were no

          5          communications onboard the DEEPWATER HORIZON. 

          6          Do you recall that?

          7               A.   That's correct. 

          8               Q.   There are no emergency communication

          9          systems that worked after the explosion?

         10               A.   Not to my knowledge, no.

         11               Q.   The radios didn't work?

         12               A.   The handheld VHF radios that myself

         13          and the chief mate tried to get to function

         14          did not function, but the actual base-

         15          stationed radios were functioning.

         16               Q.   Prior to April 20, 2010, do you recall

         17          any loss of power onboard the DEEPWATER

         18          HORIZON?

         19               A.   Prior to April 20th, yes.
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         20               Q.   How many times?

         21               A.   I don't know.

         22               Q.   More than once?

         23               A.   A total blackout, no.

         24               Q.   Partial blackout?

         25               A.   Partial blackout, yes, more than once.
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          1               Q.   How many partial blackouts or losses

          2          of power did the DEEPWATER HORIZON have prior

          3          to April 20, 2010?

          4               A.   I don't know that number.

          5               Q.   No idea?

          6               A.   Two, maybe three.

          7               Q.   Do you know what the mud gas separator

          8          is?

          9               A.   Yes.

         10               Q.   Do you know that it has a diameter on

         11          the pipe of about ten to 12 inches?

         12               A.   I do not know that.

         13               Q.   Do you whether there were any

         14          modifications to the mud gas separator pipe

         15          onboard the DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         16               A.   I do not know.

         17               Q.   Do you know whether the mud gas

         18          separator had a gooseneck pipe?

         19               A.   I do not know.
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         20               Q.   Do you know what a gooseneck pipe is?

         21               A.   I'm not familiar with it, no.

         22               Q.   Did you ever personally inspect the

         23          mud gas separator?

         24               A.   As an electrical supervisor, yes.

         25               Q.   Do you recall whether it had a
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          1          gooseneck pipe, that is a pipe that went like

          2          a goose neck down?

          3               A.   From the de-gaser unit?

          4               Q.   Yeah.

          5               A.   I don't recall.

          6               Q.   Can fire pumps work onboard the

          7          DEEPWATER HORIZON without power?

          8               A.   No.

          9               Q.   And is it correct that the emergency

         10          power, was it in the engine, that's the

         11          emergency power source for the fire pumps?

         12               A.   The fire pumps were located -- the

         13          emergency booster fire pumps were located in

         14          Engine Rooms 1 and 6 on the upper level.

         15               Q.   So if Engine Rooms 1 and 6 were taken

         16          out by the explosion then the DEEPWATER

         17          HORIZON had no ability to fight a fire.  Is

         18          that fair to say?

         19               A.   No.  You could line up your ballast
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         20          pumps and seawater pumps.

         21               Q.   And do they need power to operator?

         22               A.   Yes, sir.

         23               Q.   And where would they get that power

         24          from?

         25               A.   Your main engines.
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          1               Q.   And if the main engines are taken out

          2          by the explosion, can the ballast pumps --

          3               A.   No.

          4               Q.   They can't operate either, right?

          5               A.   No.

          6               Q.   Is it correct then, that after the

          7          explosion onboard the DEEPWATER HORIZON there

          8          was no possible way for the fire suppression

          9          system to work given that the engines, the

         10          main engines, were out?

         11               A.   I do not know that the main engines

         12          were not fully operational or even

         13          operational.  I never made it back there.

         14               Q.   They weren't certainly providing

         15          power to the DEEPWATER HORIZON after the

         16          explosion, were they?

         17               A.   No, they were not.

         18               Q.   So given that the main engines were

         19          not providing power to the DEEPWATER HORIZON
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         20          after the explosion, was it your conclusion

         21          that there was no way to fight the fire after

         22          that explosion? 

         23                       (Witness confers with his counsel.)

         24                              MR. GODFREY:

         25                                        You can answer without your counsel
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          1                              telling you.  He's been testifying all

          2                    through the morning.

          3                    MR. FANNING:

          4                                   Captain, I object to those kinds of

          5                    comments --

          6                              MR. LONDON:

          7                                        Do you have a problem with me

          8                              talking with my client?

          9                    MR. GODFREY:

         10                                   I have a problem after the question

         11                    is asked if you're telling him the

         12                    answer.  Under the rules, this will be

         13                    conducted as if we were in Federal

         14                    District Court and you don't --

         15                    MR. LONDON:

         16                                   Can you hear what I'm saying to my

         17                              client?

         18                    MR. GODFREY:

         19                                   I can see your lips moving.
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         20                    MR. LONDON:

         21                                   Can you know what I'm saying with

         22                    my lips moving?

         23                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         24                                   Counsel, please.

         25                    MR. GODFREY:
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          1                                   Could you order the witness to

          2                    answer without being coached by his

          3                    client, Captain?  We're entitled to

          4                    truthful testimony.  

          5                                   Can you answer the question now,

          6                    Chief?

          7                    THE WITNESS:

          8                                   Can you repeat the question?

          9                    MR. GODFREY:

         10                                   Sure.

         11          BY MR. GODFREY:

         12               Q.   Is it fair to say that since you

         13          observed and knew that you had no power from

         14          the main engines that there was no way for the

         15          fire suppression system onboard the DEEPWATER

         16          HORIZON to operate at the April 20th

         17          explosion?

         18               A.   I do not know.

         19               Q.   Did you ever personally supervise any
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         20          changes to the BOP?

         21               A.   No.  

         22               Q.   Now, you mentioned in answer to one of

         23          my questions a few minutes ago, that there

         24          were changes to the BOP made about a year ago. 

         25          Do you recall that?
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          1               A.   I do not recall that.

          2               Q.   The testimony you gave a few minutes

          3          ago.  Do you recall testifying about changes

          4          to the BOP?

          5               A.   I don't recall mentioning any changes

          6          to a BOP, no.

          7               Q.   Let me rephrase the question then. 

          8          Are you aware of any changes during the time

          9          that you were chief engineer that were made to

         10          the BOP onboard the DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         11               A.   I know there were updates done to it.

         12               Q.   And did those updates involve changing

         13          or modifications to the BOP?

         14               A.   I do not know.

         15               Q.   And what updates to the BOP are you

         16          aware of that took place onboard the DEEPWATER

         17          HORIZON prior to April 20, 2010?

         18               A.   I do not recall.

         19               Q.   You can't give us the name of a single
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         20          update?

         21               A.   I don't know.

         22               Q.   Do you know about whether there was

         23          any maintenance being performed on April 20,

         24          specifically the night of April 20, to the mud

         25          pump pressure safety valve?
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          1               A.   I know they were doing something to

          2          the mud pump, but I do not know what was being

          3          done to it.

          4               Q.   Do you know why they were doing

          5          something to the mud pump pressure safety

          6          valve on the night of April 20, 2010 onboard

          7          the DEEPWATER HORIZON?

          8               A.   I do not know.

          9               Q.   Did you authorize someone to do

         10          something to the mud pump pressure safety

         11          valve onboard the DEEPWATER HORIZON the night

         12          of April 20, 2010?

         13               A.   The mud pump pressure safety valve

         14          side is not under my realm.

         15               Q.   I see.  Are the persons responsible

         16          for performing BOP maintenance, did they

         17          report to you, onboard the DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         18               A.   If you are referring to the senior

         19          subsea engineer, yes.
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         20               Q.   Yes, okay.  Can you tell us what

         21          maintenance was performed onboard the

         22          DEEPWATER HORIZON with respect to the BOP

         23          prior to April 20, 2010?

         24               A.   I don't have that information in front

         25          of me, so no.

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (416 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:18 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      209

          1               Q.   And what information would you be

          2          looking for to have in front of you to give us

          3          the answer?

          4               A.   From the last rig move.

          5               Q.   I see.  Would that be an audit?  

          6               A.   No, sir.

          7               Q.   Would that be something maintained on

          8          shore by Transocean?

          9               A.   Prior to any rig move, we generate a

         10          full checklist of what we're going to do

         11          during that rig move, which also includes

         12          anything to the stack which is also signed off

         13          by BP.  You should have those records.

         14               Q.   Where are the records of the

         15          maintenance that were taking place on the BOP?

         16               A.   I do not know at this point.

         17               Q.   Did you ever test the BOP or supervise

         18          test to the BOP?

         19               A.   No, sir.
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         20               Q.   Do you know what a dead man is?

         21               A.   I know of a dead man, yes.

         22               Q.   Do you an AMF or the dead man function

         23          is on the BOP or the EDS?

         24               A.   I know that when you lose all power

         25          and communication to it that the dead man
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          1          actuates.

          2               Q.   So when you walked by and gave the

          3          testimony that you thought that the EDS had

          4          been functionally separated by the explosion

          5          when you looked into the moon pool that should

          6          have activated the dead man or the AMF

          7          function, right?

          8               A.   Yes, I would believe so.

          9               Q.   Do you know whether that did activate

         10          the AMF function or dead man function?

         11               A.   I have no idea.

         12               Q.   Do you know who runs the BOP tests

         13          that are conducted?

         14               A.   Excuse me; repeat that.

         15               Q.   Do you know who runs the BOP tests

         16          which are conducted onboard the BOP that was

         17          related to the DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         18               A.   Yes.

         19               Q.   Who runs the test?
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         20               A.   Senior subsea.

         21               Q.   Who would that be?

         22               A.   That's either Mark Hay or Owen

         23          McQuarter (phonetic).

         24               Q.   I see.  But you don't run those tests?

         25               A.   No, sir.  It's not my expertise.
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          1               Q.   Fair enough.  You're familiar with the

          2          audits that were done of the rig by BP, right?

          3               A.   The marine assurance audits?

          4               Q.   Yes.

          5               A.   Yes.

          6               Q.   You reviewed them?

          7               A.   I have not reviewed them in some time,

          8          no.

          9               Q.   You reviewed them when you received

         10          them?

         11               A.   Yes.

         12               Q.   They're multi-paged audits, correct?

         13               A.   Yes.  They were very -- very in-depth.

         14               Q.   And they had, in a sense, a punch

         15          list, or a tic list, of things, right?

         16               A.   That's correct.

         17               Q.   And the audits were done once a year,

         18          right?

         19               A.   (No response.)
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         20               Q.   The BP audits were done once a year?

         21               A.   Yes.

         22               Q.   So the last BP audit was dated

         23          September 2009.  Is that what you recall?

         24               A.   Yes.

         25               Q.   Now, in that audit you recall it had
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          1          over 30 pages of punch list items that needed

          2          to be addressed.  Do you recall that?

          3               A.   I don't recall how many pages.  I know

          4          it was a lot.

          5               Q.   How many items from the BP audit, in

          6          September 2009, with respect to equipment had

          7          not been addressed as of April 20, 2010.

          8               A.   I do not know.

          9               Q.   Any idea?

         10               A.   I do not know.

         11               Q.   How many maintenance issues on the BP

         12          assurance audit that was given to you in

         13          September of 2009 had not been addressed or

         14          resolved by the date of the accident on April

         15          20, 2010?

         16               A.   I do not know.  Those forms were sent

         17          to both the asset manager, performance manager

         18          and the BP shore side support.

         19               Q.   Now, the asset manager was a
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         20          Transocean employee?

         21               A.   Yes. 

         22               Q.   Who was the other person that you

         23          mentioned other than BP?

         24               A.   The shore-based BP client.

         25               Q.   Do you recall that on Page 2 of the BP
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          1          audit dated September 2009 that you were

          2          informed that "overdue planned maintenance

          3          considered excess of 390 jobs amounting to

          4          3,545 man hours."  Do you recall that?

          5               A.   Yes, I recall that.

          6               Q.   How many of those 390 jobs amounting

          7          to 3,545 man hours were undertaken and

          8          completed between September 2009, the date of

          9          the rig assurance audit conducted by BP and

         10          April 20, 2010?

         11               A.   I do not have that number, but as I

         12          stated earlier, when this audit was taken we

         13          had just received the RMS upgrade system.  We

         14          went from impact RMS and there were multiple

         15          PMs in there that did not relate to the

         16          DEEPWATER HORIZON.

         17               Q.   Did you conclude then that the 390

         18          jobs, 3,545 man hours, that BP identified as

         19          its belief relating to the DEEPWATER HORIZON,
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         20          in fact, did not relate to the vessel?

         21               A.   I do not know.   

         22               Q.   Let's talk about rig saver

         23          redundancies.  Do you know what rig saver

         24          redundancies are?

         25               A.   Rig saver redundancy, please explain
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          1          that.

          2               Q.   Do you know what a rig saver is?

          3               A.   As far as the engine goes?

          4               Q.   Yes.

          5               A.   Yes.

          6               Q.   Describe it in your own terms.

          7               A.   It's basically a valve that closes to

          8          stop the air flow into the engine.

          9               Q.   And it's designed actually to stop the

         10          flow of gas or explosive fumes into the

         11          engine, right?

         12               A.   It's designed to stop the flow of air

         13          entering the engine.

         14               Q.   Or explosive gases, right?

         15               A.   I would assume that if there was gases

         16          in the air, then yes.

         17               Q.   And it's called a rig saver redundancy

         18          because in addition to the engine trips,

         19          shutting the engine down, it's designed to cut
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         20          off the ignition source, right?

         21               A.   Correct.

         22               Q.   Do you think that if the engines went

         23          overspeed and they broke apart as you

         24          described, do you think there would be sparks

         25          that were generated by that?
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          1               A.   I never described the engines coming

          2          apart.

          3               Q.   I see.  Do you report to Mr. Johnson?

          4               A.   Paul Johnson?

          5               Q.   Yes.

          6               A.   Yes.

          7               Q.   Is he shore-based?

          8               A.   Yes.

          9               Q.   Do you report to Mr. Kent?

         10               A.   James Kent?

         11               Q.   Yes.

         12               A.   Yes.

         13               Q.   Is he shore-based?

         14               A.   Yes, he is.

         15               Q.   Do you get reports about the status of

         16          the BOP from the senior subsea engineer?

         17               A.   I would get e-mails or they'd stop by

         18          the office and give me reports of what was

         19          happening if there was any issues.
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         20               Q.   Did the senior subsea engineer report

         21          to you that there were any issues or problems

         22          with the BOP?

         23               A.   Not to my knowledge, no.

         24               Q.   Are you familiar with Transocean's

         25          Health and Safety Policy Statement?
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          1               A.   Yes.

          2               Q.   And do you agree that you had the

          3          right as a Transocean employee to interrupt or

          4          stop any operation that you thought was unsafe

          5          at anytime?

          6               A.   Yes.

          7               Q.   And you thought you had that power,

          8          right?

          9               A.   I know I have that power.

         10               Q.   With respect to your written witness

         11          statement, the one you gave on April the 21st,

         12          when you wrote that statement, were the

         13          statements you made in that written statement

         14          on April 21st truthful?

         15               A.   Yes.

         16               Q.   So was it truthful that when you wrote

         17          that when you reached the bridge you heard,

         18          "the Captain screaming at Andrea for pushing

         19          the distress button."  Is that a truthful
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         20          statement?

         21                    MR. LONDON:

         22                                   I object to that.  Same objection,

         23                    Captain.  We've gone through this ten

         24                    times today.  I instructed the witness

         25                    not to answer anything specifically
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          1                    questioned on this statement. The

          2                    statement stands for itself.

          3                    MR. GODFREY:

          4                                   Well, there's no basis, Captain,

          5                    with all due respect, to instruct the

          6                    witness not to answer.  I respect his

          7                    right to assert the 5th Amendment, but

          8                    he's not entitled, since this

          9                    proceeding is governed by the same

         10                    proceedings in Federal District Court,

         11                    to instruct the witness not to answer.

         12                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         13                                   I agree with Mr. Gregory (SIC), if

         14                    you would.

         15                    MR. LONDON:

         16                                   I'm still instructing the witness

         17                    not to answer that question.  As we

         18                    discussed --

         19                    CAPT NGUYEN:
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         20                                   Well, you can instruct your witness

         21                    and your witness can talk to me.

         22                    MR. KOHNKE:

         23                                   Your Honor, let me make an

         24                    objection to the relevancy --

         25                    MR. GODFREY:
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          1                                   Excuse me, before Mr. Kohnke jumps

          2                    in.  The Panel has the power of a

          3                    Federal District Court to compel the

          4                    witness to answer unless he asserts his

          5                    5th Amendment.  I'm simply asking the

          6                    witness when he wrote that statement

          7                    was that a truthful statement.

          8                    MR. LONDON:

          9                                   He answered that.

         10                    MR. KOHNKE:

         11                                   Let me --

         12                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         13                                   He didn't answer that.  You

         14                    answered it.  Mr. Bertone, can you

         15                    answer that question?  Was that a

         16                    truthful statement that you provided to

         17                    the Coast Guard investigator?

         18                    THE WITNESS:

         19                                   Yes.
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         20                    MR. KOHNKE:

         21                                   With respect to the statement that

         22                    he was asked about.  That is, whether

         23                    it was truthful.  Whether it's truthful

         24                    or whether it's not truthful, it should

         25                    have some underlying relevance to this
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          1                    proceeding and I submit it does not and

          2                    therefore, I object to the relevance of

          3                    the question.  It has no relevance to

          4                    what we're here for.

          5                    MR. GODFREY:

          6                                   The relevance is it reflects a

          7                    complete loss of command in control

          8                    onboard the bridge at a time when

          9                    they're trying to decide.  They've got

         10                    two explosions and there's an argument

         11                    about whether they are in a distress

         12                    situation or whether to activate the

         13                    EDS.  That's the relevance.

         14                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         15                                   I agree.  Noted.  I note your

         16                    objection.  Mr. Gregory, please

         17                    proceed.

         18                    UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

         19                                   Note my objection.
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         20          BY MR. GODFREY:

         21               Q.   Just so the record is clear, Mr.

         22          Bertone, was it a truthful statement when you

         23          wrote that you heard the Captain screaming to

         24          Andrea for pushing the distress button?

         25                    MR. LONDON:
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          1                                   Objection again.  You asked if the

          2                    entire statement was a truthful

          3                    statement.  Captain, when he rendered

          4                    it at the time with the information

          5                    that he had and what he believed at the

          6                    time, he answered the question three

          7                    times, yes.

          8                    MR. GODFREY:

          9                                   You haven't answered my question,

         10                    sir.

         11                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         12                                   Mr. Gregory (SIC), Mr. Bertone

         13                    already testified to the truthfulness

         14                    of his statement.  If there is a

         15                    clarification or additional

         16                    information you want to solicit, please

         17                    proceed in that direction.

         18                    MR. GODFREY:

         19                                   That's fine.  I wasn't sure I got
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         20                    an answer given the constant

         21                    interruptions by Counsel.

         22          BY MR. GODFREY:

         23               Q.   In the statement, towards the end, it

         24          says, "Captain said leave him, referring to

         25          injured man on gurney."  
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          1                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

          2                                   Same objection.  What does this

          3                    have to do with the cause of the

          4                    explosion?

          5                    MR. GORDON:

          6                                   Because of the incompetence of the

          7                    captain.  And this body has been 

          8                    gathered to determine the cause, which

          9                    there are 11 people dead and this

         10                    witness needs to testify -- 

         11                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         12                                   Counsel, please sit down.  I note

         13                    your objection.

         14                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

         15                                   I'm going to make an objection.

         16                    MR. KOHNKE:

         17                                   I haven't made an objection, so

         18                    I'll let you go first.

         19                    MR. SCHONEKAS:
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         20                                   What the captain does in terms of

         21                    lifesaving has nothing to do with what

         22                    caused this rig to explode.  It's

         23                    rather an attempt to assassinate his

         24                    character in one aspect of what was

         25                    being done where all the lives were at
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          1                    risk.  It has nothing to do with this.

          2                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          3                                   Well, that's your opinion.  Have

          4                    you looked into -- in the convening

          5                    order to me and the guidance that this

          6                    Board is operating under is not only

          7                    for the cause of this casualty, but to

          8                    obtain information to prevent future,

          9                    similar casualties.  So in terms of

         10                    evaluating the competency of

         11                    individuals, yes, that's part of this

         12                    investigation.  So I acknowledge your

         13                    objection, but that's what -- I agree

         14                    with Mr. Gregory (SIC) on this line of

         15                    questioning.  Yes, Mr. Kohnke?

         16                    MR. KOHNKE:

         17                                   Let me make my objection.  If your

         18                    mission is to include the competency of

         19                    the captain, then why didn't you ask
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         20                    the captain that question when he was

         21                    on the stand.  Why didn't one single

         22                    member of the Board ask the question of

         23                    the captain?  You had his statement. 

         24                    You had it the day after.  But no one

         25                    in this room asked the question of the
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          1                    captain as to what were the

          2                    circumstances that would have caused

          3                    him to say what he said if, in fact, he

          4                    said it. You're doing this through the

          5                    back door and that's my objection.

          6                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          7                                   And it's not through the back door. 

          8                    MR. KOHNKE:

          9                                   Why didn't you ask him that

         10                    question when he was here under oath? 

         11                    Can you answer that for me?

         12                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         13                                   The Board asked many questions --

         14                    MR. KOHNKE:

         15                                   But not that question.

         16                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         17                                   Which question is that?

         18                    MR. KOHNKE:

         19                                   "Captain, did you say leave this
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         20                    man --

         21                    MR. GODFREY:

         22                                   Excuse me, excuse me.  Captain --

         23                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         24                                   I understand.  Noted.  Mr. Gregory,

         25                              (SIC) please proceed.
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          1          BY MR. GODFREY:

          2               Q.   Thank you, Captain.  I think I'll

          3          withdraw the question.  Let me just make sure

          4          I understand one thing.  The statement you

          5          gave was --

          6                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

          7                                   Well, if he withdraws the question, 

          8                    you don't need to do it again.

          9                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         10                                   Sir, please.

         11          BY MR. GODFREY:

         12               Q.   Sitting here today, sir, have you had

         13          a chance to review the statement you gave

         14          previously in writing?

         15                       (Witness confers with his counsel.)

         16          BY MR. GODFREY:

         17                         Q.   You can answer that surely without help

         18          from your counsel.

         19                    CAPT NGUYEN:
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         20                                   Mr. Gregory (SIC), please let the

         21                    counsel advise his client.

         22                    MR. LONDON:

         23                                   Captain, as we're on that, I would

         24                    ask that you ask Mr. Gregory just

         25                              to --
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          1                    MR. GODFREY:

          2                                   My name is Godfrey, first of all.

          3                    MR. LONDON:

          4                                   -- well, Mr. Godfrey --

          5                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          6                                   I'm sorry about that.

          7                    MR. GODFREY:

          8                                   That's all right.

          9                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         10                                   That's my fault.

         11                    MR. LONDON:

         12                                   -- to reserve his comments

         13                    concerning my role as counselor here.

         14                    I'm sure if he was sitting here and if

         15                    this was his client, he would have some

         16                    remarks too -- 

         17                    MR. GODFREY:

         18                                   Actually, I wouldn't.

         19                    MR. LONDON:
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         20                                   -- but his constant annotations of

         21                    what I'm saying, what I'm doing for

         22                    whatever purpose he sees, I would

         23                    appreciate if you would admonish --

         24                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         25                                   And I just advised Mr. Godfrey not

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (450 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:19 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      226

          1                    to do that so you can advise your

          2                    client and proceed.

          3                    THE WITNESS:

          4                                   No, I have not reviewed that

          5                    statement today.

          6          BY MR. GODFREY:

          7               Q.   Is there anything in that statement as

          8          far as you know that you'd like to change

          9          sitting here today?

         10               A.   I honestly don't feel anything in that

         11          statement needs to be changed.

         12               Q.   Fair enough.

         13                    MR. GODFREY:

         14                                   Thank you.  No further questions. 

         15                    At an appropriate time I'd like to have

         16                    a sidebar with the Panel because the

         17                    rules, as we understand them, there's

         18                    some things I'd like to raise with the

         19                    Panel about conduct of Counsel.
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         20                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         21                                   Yes, sir.

         22                    MR. GODFREY:

         23                                   Thank you.

         24                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         25                                   Any additional questions from the
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          1                    Board members?

          2                    MR. FANNING:

          3                                   And may I ask when you have the

          4                    sidebar with Mr. Godfrey for all the

          5                    Parties In Interest's counsel to be

          6                    involved in that?

          7                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          8                                   I will consider it.

          9                    MR. FANNING:

         10                                   Thank you.

         11                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         12                                   Mr. Bertone, I have a couple

         13                    questions for you.

         14                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         15          BY CAPT NGUYEN:

         16               Q.   Did you receive any training on your

         17          vessel of the safety management system?

         18               A.   Yes.

         19               Q.   What kind of training?
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         20               A.   As far as the -- the actual like life

         21          boats and such?

         22               Q.   No, the safety management system.

         23               A.   As far as submitting MOCs, REAs, the

         24          RMS system and such, yes.

         25               Q.   Who certifies your vessel safety
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          1          management system? 

          2               A.   I do not know who certified it.

          3               Q.   Is it flag state, is it Coast Guard,

          4          is it MMS, BOE?

          5               A.   I do not know that.

          6               Q.   So what is the principle document or

          7          system that you use to track or to document,

          8          track and follow-up on maintenance and

          9          repairs?

         10               A.   That's the RMS system, rig maintenance

         11          system.

         12               Q.   So how's that -- is that interfaced

         13          with the other system?  Like, for example,

         14          when BP comes onboard to do their maritime

         15          assurance audit, the result of that audit,

         16          does that get rolled into the RMS system so

         17          that you can follow up?

         18               A.   The RMS system does have the

         19          capability to scan and insert those documents. 
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         20          But then we also have jobs for work orders,

         21          per se, for each of the items that need

         22          addressing in RMS.

         23               Q.   The RMS is a stand-alone system?  It

         24          does not get input?  Let's say, for example,

         25          Coast Guard inspector comes onboard your
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          1          vessel to do an inspection and let's say there

          2          were discrepancies.  How do those

          3          discrepancies get processed and followed up?

          4               A.   If the Coast Guard comes out and does

          5          an inspection, he gives us a list of items

          6          then we can create jobs inside of RMS for each

          7          item.

          8               Q.   So with the BP maritime assurance

          9          audit, the discrepancies that would identify,

         10          I would assume that those items --

         11               A.   There's multiple jobs that was created

         12          for those.

         13               Q.   And RMS would tell you when those

         14          items would be overdue?

         15               A.   Yes.  You assign a date to it when you

         16          enter the job.

         17               Q.   So pretty much the RMS is your primary

         18          tool for documenting, tracking and follow up

         19          on the repairs and maintenance?

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (457 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:19 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20               A.   It's used for any maintenance and jobs

         21          for the rig, for the documenting of such like

         22          that.  Another system we used is called -- we

         23          put it in GRS or GMS, which is -- we put it

         24          under what we call a focus item and it

         25          generates a report and it also has a time that
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          1          you have to update and complete all these.

          2               Q.   So when Class Society come onboard

          3          your vessel to do a survey, do they take a

          4          look at your RMS records or do they use their

          5          records and you've got to work off of that

          6          record?

          7               A.   We can pull up anything they want,

          8          that they request through RMS, any maintenance

          9          records.

         10               Q.   Do you remember when was the last

         11          safety management system audit by flag state

         12          recognized organization?

         13               A.   I don't recall.

         14               Q.   Was there one while you were onboard

         15          the vessel?

         16               A.   I don't recall one of those happening

         17          while I was there, no.

         18               Q.   Now, you talked about the RMS that

         19          when it implemented on the HORIZON, it didn't
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         20          cover some items or it had some items that's

         21          not relating to the --

         22               A.   It had duplicates of equipment and

         23          equipment that was not on the vessel itself,

         24          that was pulled from like a bank from multiple

         25          rigs.
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          1               Q.   Was that unusual to you, to implement

          2          such a system onboard such a complex vessel

          3          that is not specifically tailored to the

          4          operation?

          5               A.   I would say, yes, that would be

          6          unusual.

          7               Q.   Is this the only case that you know of

          8          or is there other systems that was implemented

          9          that was not exactly tailored to the HORIZON?

         10               A.   I do not know.

         11               Q.   So the RMS was implemented on other

         12          Transocean vessels, also, to your knowledge?

         13               A.   Yes, fleet wide.

         14               Q.   Was it the same situation that it was

         15          more of a generic program that ship personnel

         16          had to tailor it to their needs?

         17               A.   I do not know how the other vessels

         18          faired in this.  Prior to the RMS, we had what

         19          was called IMPACT, which was another
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         20          maintenance system that we had and they took

         21          all the documentation, all the work orders and

         22          past history and converted it to RMS.  As far

         23          as the PMs and such were concerned, they, I

         24          guess, pulled it from a bank of thousands and

         25          we actually had a lot of PMs   excuse me, a
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          1          lot of PMs in our system that did not even

          2          apply to the vessel and we were constantly

          3          sending out requests to remove them.

          4               Q.   And how responsive was the response?

          5               A.   You always got a response back within

          6          a week's time and then it would be reviewed

          7          throughout the company.

          8               Q.   No, in terms of making changes to the

          9          RMS so that it would fit the system that you

         10          have on the HORIZON. 

         11               A.   It depended on the -- it depended on

         12          the piece of equipment and what you wanted to

         13          change as to how long it would take and how

         14          much approval was required before somebody

         15          would remove it from our system.

         16               Q.   How disruptive was it to go from the

         17          old system to the new system?

         18               A.   It wasn't the easiest.

         19               Q.   So when was it implemented?  When was
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         20          the RMS implemented?

         21               A.   It was implemented back, just prior to

         22          our UWILD in 2009.  It was just prior to the

         23          marine assurance audit by BP.

         24               Q.   How long did it take before -- the

         25          system at the time of the casualty, was it
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          1          pretty much all the bugs had been worked out

          2          in terms of --

          3               A.   Not all the bugs.  I mean, it was a

          4          work in progress.  You have to understand that

          5          there were literally thousands and thousands

          6          of PMs inside this system and as they were

          7          coming due and being generated to the

          8          different crafts, is whenever we were able to

          9          take action on them and request the changes,

         10          the moving -- the removal, and so forth of

         11          them.  We went through as much as we could

         12          just poking through the system, but there was

         13          still -- there were still issues with it.

         14               Q.   Do you think the implementation of the

         15          RMS -- it sounds to me that it was not as

         16          smooth as could be.  Do you think that it

         17          hampered the repair to some of the critical

         18          equipment or maintenance? 

         19               A.   No, sir.
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         20                              CAPT NGUYEN:

         21                                        Is there any other information that

         22                              the Board has not asked you for that

         23                    you would like to offer at this time?

         24                              THE WITNESS:

         25                                        No, sir.
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          1                              CAPT NGUYEN:

          2                                        If we need you to appear before the

          3                              Board or if we have additional

          4                    questions for you, would you make

          5                    yourself available?

          6                              THE WITNESS:

          7                                        Yes, sir.

          8                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          9                                   Thank you, Mr. Bertone.  You are

         10                    dismissed.

         11                    THE WITNESS:

         12                                   Thank you.

         13                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         14                                   The Board will now take a break

         15                    until 1 o'clock.  Thank you.

         16          (Whereupon, a lunch break was taken off the

         17          record.)

         18                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         19                                   The Board will now call Mr. Lance

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (467 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:19 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20                    John with Weatherford.  Mr. John,

         21                    please rise.  Please raise your right

         22                    hand.

         23                    THE WITNESS:

         24                                   (Witness complies.)

         25                              *   *   *   *   *   *
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          1                                      LANCE MOORE JOHN,

          2          after being first duly sworn in the cause,

          3          testified as follows:

          4                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          5                                   Thank you, sir.  Please be seated.

          6                    MR. DYKES:

          7                                   Mr. John, for the record, who do

          8                    you have seated with your today?

          9                    THE WITNESS:

         10                                   Mike Lemoine.

         11                    MR. DYKES:

         12                                   And does he represent you

         13                    personally or is he a Weatherford

         14                    attorney?

         15                    THE WITNESS:

         16                                   A Weatherford attorney.

         17                    MR. DYKES:

         18                                   He's a Weatherford attorney.  Do

         19                    you understand that he represents
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         20                    Weatherford and not yourself?

         21                    THE WITNESS:

         22                                   Correct.

         23                    MR. DYKES:

         24                                   Are you comfortable with him

         25                    sitting at the table with you?
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          1                    THE WITNESS:

          2                                   Yes.

          3                    MR. DYKES:

          4                                   Have you discussed any testimony

          5                    prior to this hearing with anyone else

          6                    other than --

          7                    THE WITNESS:

          8                                   No.

          9                    MR. DYKES:

         10                                   Thank you.

         11                             E X A M I N A T I O N  

         12          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         13               Q.   Mr. John, for the record, can you

         14          please state your full name and spell your

         15          last?

         16               A.   Lance Moore John, J-O-H-N.

         17               Q.   And by whom are you employed, sir?

         18               A.   Weatherford.

         19               Q.   And what exactly does Weatherford do
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         20          on the DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         21               A.   We make up tubular goods.

         22               Q.   I'm sorry.

         23               A.   Run casing, make up drill pipe.

         24               Q.   What position did you hold with

         25          Weatherford at the time of the incident?
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          1               A.   A rig system specialist.

          2               Q.   And as a rig system specialist, what

          3          specifically is your job responsibility?

          4               A.   Making up the casing, tubing or drill

          5          pipe, anything offline.

          6               Q.   Had you had any previous oil and gas

          7          experience prior to this position?

          8               A.   Yes.  I've been in the oilfield 30

          9          years.

         10               Q.   What other positions did you hold,

         11          sir?

         12               A.   Basically, I ran casing all my life.

         13               Q.   Okay.  How long had you been assigned

         14          to the DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         15               A.   February '01.

         16               Q.   And you were on the DEEPWATER HORIZON

         17          solely from February '01?

         18               A.   Correct.

         19               Q.   When did you arrive on the DEEPWATER
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         20          HORIZON prior to April 20th?

         21               A.   It was a week prior.

         22               Q.   The 13th?

         23               A.   Correct.

         24               Q.   At any time throughout the duration of

         25          the well, not just on the production casing,
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          1          was there any problems that you were made

          2          aware of of running casing?

          3               A.   None.

          4               Q.   Were all the casings set at the

          5          desired depths?

          6               A.   As far as I'm aware of.

          7               Q.   On April 20th, can you please give me

          8          the best recollection you have of the morning

          9          of, the day, all the way up to the incident

         10          and your evacuation, sir?

         11               A.   Basically, I woke up that morning -- I

         12          didn't make the conference call that I usually

         13          make because I was doing the casing reports

         14          and that's pretty much what I done all day.

         15               Q.   What conference call is that?

         16               A.   BP's conference call every morning.

         17               Q.   Is that something that occurs daily

         18          that you participate in?

         19               A.   Correct. 
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         20               Q.   Who runs that conference call?

         21               A.   The lead guy on the rig at the time.

         22               Q.   The company man for BP?

         23               A.   Correct.

         24               Q.   Are you familiar with the term "burst

         25          disks"?
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          1               A.   Yes.  I just know of it.  I don't --

          2               Q.   Do you know what its purpose is?

          3               A.   Not really, no.

          4               Q.   Were you involved with the setting of

          5          the burst disks on the 16-inch casing?

          6               A.   I just made them up.  They came out to

          7          the rig already inside a pup joint and we just

          8          screwed it together to run downhole.  As far

          9          as messing with the disk itself, we didn't.

         10               Q.   Do you know whose tool it was?

         11               A.   I have no idea.

         12               Q.   Did you, at any time, look at the

         13          application for permit to drill associated

         14          with this well?

         15               A.   No.

         16               Q.   Do you ever look at the application

         17          for permit to drill?

         18               A.   No. 

         19               Q.   Who ordered you to run the burst disk?
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         20               A.   Pardon?

         21               Q.   Who ordered you to run the casing with

         22          the burst disk on it?

         23               A.   The lead engineers of the well, I

         24          guess.

         25               Q.   BP company men?
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          1               A.   Correct.  I just make it up whatever

          2          they tell me.  I make it up.

          3               Q.   But to your recollection, there were

          4          burst disks run on the 16-inch casing?

          5               A.   Correct.

          6               Q.   Do you know how many?

          7               A.   Three, maybe four of them.  I'm not

          8          sure exactly.

          9               Q.   Do you know if Weatherford's involved

         10          in any type of casing selection, like type,

         11          grade or hole size?

         12               A.   No.

         13               Q.   Do you know at Weatherford if you have

         14          any standards that you recommend to BP?

         15               A.   We don't recommend anything.  We just

         16          make up the pipe.

         17               Q.   Do you know if there were any changes

         18          in the program, the casing program, when you

         19          were at the DEEPWATER HORIZON? 
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         20               A.   None that I'm aware of.

         21               Q.   Were you aware of any last minute

         22          deliveries of 7-inch production casing to the

         23          DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         24               A.   It was already there when I got there.

         25               Q.   Were you involved with running the
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          1          centralizers on the productions casing?

          2               A.   They were already in place.  They come

          3          out bucked on the pipe already.

          4               Q.   Who was in charge of that operation?

          5               A.   I have no idea.  It's done on the

          6          bank.

          7               Q.   How many centralizers were on the

          8          production casing that you ran?

          9               A.   I think four maybe, five.  I don't

         10          know exactly.

         11               Q.   Do you have any records to indicate or

         12          guarantee that it's four or is that just the

         13          best of your knowledge?

         14               A.   I don't have any records, no.  My

         15          computer is on the bottom of the Gulf. 

         16               Q.   Do you know how many centralizers were

         17          actually on the rig, sir?

         18               A.   No, I don't.

         19               Q.   At any time were you aware that the
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         20          possibility of running any more centralizers?

         21               A.   They did mention something possibly

         22          running more.

         23               Q.   Who mentioned that, sir?

         24               A.   Somebody on the rig.  I don't remember

         25          exactly who.
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          1               Q.   BP, Halliburton, Transocean.

          2               A.   It could possibly be BP.

          3               Q.   Do you know who Brian Morel is?

          4               A.   Yes, I know Brian.

          5               Q.   Was Mr. Morel on the rig floor at any

          6          time when you were making up your casing?

          7               A.   I think he came periodically.

          8               Q.   Was Mr. Morel the person that you

          9          assumed to be in charge of the operation or

         10          was it somebody else?

         11               A.   He's one of the engineers of the well. 

         12          That's all I know.

         13               Q.   Have you ever been in a well with a

         14          similar casing design as what you're seeing

         15          over there on the description?

         16               A.   Yes.

         17               Q.   And for which operator?

         18               A.   Um --

         19               Q.   You've only worked on the DEEPWATER
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         20          HORIZON?  I'm sorry for interrupting you.

         21               A.   No, I've been on the HORIZON for nine

         22          years, but I have worked other deep water

         23          projects, also.

         24               Q.   So who else were the operators --

         25               A.   Shell -- Shell runs big bore systems. 

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (484 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:19 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      243

          1          It's mostly Shell and BP and BHP and stuff

          2          like that.

          3               Q.   So cross operator-wise, BP,

          4          Transocean -- I'm sorry, BP, Shell, whoever

          5          the operator was on the rig, you've seen other

          6          casing designs similar to this one?

          7               A.   Yes.

          8               Q.   Do you have anyone while you were

          9          working at Weatherford, while you're making up

         10          the casing, inspect the connections that you

         11          were making to verify that they're good

         12          connections?

         13               A.   We have a thread rep on location which

         14          is usually the connection -- whatever

         15          connection we're running there and also we

         16          have our Jam system that we monitor to make up

         17          torques and turns.

         18               Q.   And did you verify that all the

         19          connections were to your standard?
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         20               A.   Correct.  Well, right away the thread

         21          rep is there also looking at the graph as it's

         22          being -- the connection's being made up.

         23               Q.   And who are the thread reps -- who do

         24          those reps work for, sir?

         25               A.   Whoever makes the connection.  For
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          1          this instance, it was Hydril.

          2               Q.   Do you know what Weatherford equipment

          3          was actually used in this well?

          4               A.   Ugh --

          5               Q.   Reamer shoe?

          6               A.   Reamer shoe, float equipment --

          7               Q.   Float collar?

          8               A.   Yes.

          9               Q.   Float collar was yours.  How about the

         10          darts for the wiper plugs?

         11               A.   I think so.

         12               Q.   Who on the rig for Weatherford is

         13          actually responsible for the operation of

         14          those devices?

         15               A.   Nobody.

         16               Q.   Nobody?

         17               A.   We're not in charge of it.  They just

         18          -- we make it up because it came out there

         19          already pre-bucked.  We just make it up and

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (487 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:19 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20          run it down the hole and then they do their

         21          plug and cement job.  I don't know exactly who

         22          does the plugs or what.

         23               Q.   You obviously know what the term

         24          "float collar" is, correct?

         25               A.   Correct.
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          1               Q.   In the float collar, what pressure

          2          should it take to shear the pins to convert it

          3          from a fill in device to a check?

          4               A.   I have no idea.

          5               Q.   No idea.  Do you know what pressure it

          6          did shear out at?

          7               A.   I have no idea.

          8               Q.   Outside of Brian Morel, was anyone

          9          else from BP on the rig floor monitoring what

         10          you were doing?

         11               A.   Kaluza comes up there periodically and

         12          Vidrine, just depending who's working days and

         13          who's working nights.

         14                    MR. MATHEWS:

         15                                   Thank you, sir.  I don't have no

         16                    further questions.

         17                    MR. McCARROLL:

         18                                   I have a couple of follow-up

         19                    questions.

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (489 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:19 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         21          BY MR. McCARROLL:

         22               Q.  Do you know have many service companies

         23          were involved in running the casing.

         24               A.   We had -- Weatherford; they had

         25          Hydril; they have Allamon.
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          1               Q.   Did you have Blackhawk, sir?

          2               A.   Yes, cement head, correct.

          3               Q.   Did you have Halliburton?

          4               A.   Yes.

          5               Q.   Did you have Schlumberger?

          6               A.   Schlumberger was there, also, yes, on

          7          the rig.

          8               Q.   Did you have Sperry?

          9               A.   Yes.

         10               Q.   Did you have M-I SWACO?

         11               A.   Yes.

         12               Q.   Do you know if the casing was supplied

         13          to BP by Nexen.

         14               A.   I believe I've heard that on the rig,

         15          yes.

         16               Q.   So the 7-inch casing came from Nexen?

         17               A.   As far as I know.

         18               Q.   Do you know who made the cross-over

         19          joint? 
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         20               A.   I have no idea.

         21               Q.   Would you be surprised to find out

         22          it's K&B?

         23               A.   I don't even know who K&B is.

         24               Q.   So with so many different service

         25          companies involved in this operation, wouldn't
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          1          you think there would be someone assigned to

          2          be on the rig floor to be in charge?

          3               A.   They had the BP guys onboard.   

          4               Q.   But were the BP guys on the rig floor

          5          continuously?

          6               A.   No, not that I'm aware of.  If they do

          7          come on the rig floor they stay in the

          8          driller's shack and not actually out on the

          9          rig floor.  So I'm paying attention to what's

         10          going on on the rig floor versus what's going

         11          on behind me.

         12               Q.   So are you in charge of running the

         13          job?

         14               A.   All I'm in charge of is making up the

         15          pipe.

         16               Q.   So each service company is in charge

         17          of their own part --

         18               A.   Correct.

         19               Q.   -- of the operations?
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         20               A.   Correct.

         21               Q.   Did you have any particular problems

         22          with any of the service companies coordinating

         23          with you when you were running your

         24          operations?

         25               A.   None.  None that I've had personally.

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (494 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:19 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      248

          1               Q.   So how does the service companies know

          2          when to be on the rig floor?

          3               A.   They call them.  The driller or

          4          toolpusher   somebody is going to call them

          5          and tell them when they need to be up there.

          6               Q.   Do they attend a morning meeting?

          7               A.   Some of them do.  Like the regular

          8          people that stay onboard, we attend the

          9          conference calls in the morning, but people

         10          that come in and out, sometimes they do;

         11          sometimes they don't.

         12               Q.   How about crew change, do they attend

         13          crew change meetings?

         14               A.   Pretour meetings, yes.

         15               Q.   Would all the service companies attend

         16          the pretour meetings?

         17               A.   They request that we make at least one

         18          pretour meeting a day.

         19               Q.   So from what you saw on the rig floor
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         20          was Brian Morel running the job or was it Mr.

         21          Kaluza or Mr. Vidrine, or you don't know.

         22               A.   I really don't know.  I mean, I don't

         23          know exactly when they were up there or who

         24          was actually taking charge.

         25                    MR. McCARROLL:
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          1                                   Thank you.

          2                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          3          BY MR. DYKES:

          4               Q.   Mr. John, prior to running the casing

          5          job, did you all have a safety meeting or a

          6          JSA meeting prior to the job?

          7               A.   Oh, yes.  

          8               Q.   You did?

          9               A.   Every job.

         10               Q.   Were you using Transocean's THINK plan

         11          or were you using BP's JSA process?

         12               A.   Transocean. 

         13               Q.   Transocean.  Who from BP participated

         14          in that meeting?

         15               A.   I think Bob Kaluza was up there when

         16          we actually started.

         17               Q.   Who ran the meeting?

         18               A.   We each take part, our own part.  Like

         19          the stuff that I do, I go over through there,
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         20          and everything planned, and then Transocean

         21          brings in their part of it.  We just cover our

         22          aspect of the job.

         23               Q.   How many Weatherford personnel were on

         24          the job besides yourself?

         25               A.   This particular job I had a Jam-hand
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          1          and one helper with me and then we had a night

          2          crew the same -- three guys on each tour.

          3               Q.   So when you all are running the casing

          4          is it only Weatherford personnel or do you get

          5          assistance from the Transocean rig floor?

          6               A.   Transocean, and also Hydril is up

          7          there, also, inspecting their connections.

          8               Q.   Who oversees all of that activity?

          9               A.   Different -- I mean, they keep a

         10          senior toolpusher and a toolpusher usually

         11          stays on the rig floor.  The company men

         12          monitor it from their office on their screen

         13          possibly or come up to the rig floor

         14          periodically.

         15                    MR. DYKES:

         16                                   Thank you.

         17                    MR. MATHEWS:

         18                                   I have a follow-up.

         19                              E X A M I N A T I O N

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (499 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:19 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         21               Q.   I have a quick follow-up about the

         22          meeting that you normally participate in.  Did

         23          you participate in the meeting on the 19th?

         24               A.   No, I didn't.

         25               Q.   Did you participate in the meeting on
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          1          the 18th?

          2               A.   We were running pipe, I believe.

          3               Q.   When was the last meeting that you had

          4          participated in, the 7:30, 8 o'clock meeting?

          5               A.   7:30 was the day before we started

          6          running pipe, I believe it was because I left

          7          -- we crew change at 6 in the morning.  So I

          8          had to be on the rig floor for 6 and the

          9          meeting is at 7:30.  So I don't know what took

         10          place then --

         11               Q.   But what was the last meeting that you

         12          took place in with the conference call to BP

         13          at the beach?

         14               A.   The day prior to starting to run the

         15          casing.

         16               Q.   Were you ever made aware of any gas

         17          flow potential or any risk associated with

         18          running the production casing in an 8« inch

         19          hole.
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         20               A.   No.

         21                    MR. MATHEWS:

         22                                   Thank you.

         23                    MR. McCARROLL:

         24                                   I have a quick follow-up, if you

         25                    don't mind.
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          1                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          2          BY MR. McCARROLL:

          3               Q.   Who signed your vendor's ticket when

          4          you get ready to leave?

          5               A.   The company -- lead company man at the

          6          time.

          7               Q.   So BP signs your ticket?

          8               A.   Correct.

          9               Q.   Who requested you to come out to the

         10          rig?  Is it BP or is it Transocean?

         11               A.   BP.

         12               Q.   BP.  So the person that contracts you

         13          to come out and signs your ticket when you're

         14          done is a BP person?

         15               A.   Correct.

         16               Q.   But yet it doesn't seem like the BP

         17          person is full time on the rig floor; is that

         18          correct?

         19               A.   Correct.
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         20                    MR. McCARROLL:

         21                                   Thank you.

         22                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         23                                   Flag state?

         24                    MR. LINSIN:

         25                                   Thank you, Captain.
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          1                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          2          BY MR. LINSIN:

          3               Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Lance.  My name is

          4          name is Greg Linsin and I represent the

          5          Republic of the Marshall Islands, the flag

          6          state for the rig.  I've just got a couple of

          7          questions for you, sir.  You testified about

          8          the burst disks that were in the 16-inch

          9          casing.  Do you recall that, sir?

         10               A.   Right.

         11               Q.   Do you know what the pressure rating

         12          was for those burst disks?

         13               A.   I have no idea.

         14               Q.   Do you know what the pressure rating

         15          was for the 16-inch casings?

         16               A.   None.

         17               Q.   Are you aware, sir, of any difficulty

         18          in getting the float equipment to actuate when

         19          that was attempted on this well?
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         20               A.   I'm not on the rig floor at the time

         21          they do that.  Once we are done making up the

         22          casing we are off the rig floor.

         23               Q.   Did you hear any discussion about

         24          problems in getting those valves to operate?

         25               A.   Not that I -- they said they had
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          1          trouble shifting, but they didn't tell me

          2          exactly what it entailed.

          3               Q.   Do you know how long it took them to

          4          get those activated?

          5               A.   No idea.

          6               Q.   Did you have any role, sir, in the

          7          circulation of the mud once the casing got to

          8          the bottom of the hole?

          9               A.   No, sir.

         10               Q.   Do you know how long the mud was

         11          circulated at that time?

         12               A.   No idea.

         13               Q.   Do you know if it's common for the

         14          burst disks or the ruptured disks to be placed

         15          in a way that they are in communication with

         16          the oil sands in a well?

         17               A.   I have no idea about that.

         18                    MR. LINSIN:

         19                                   I have no further questions.  Thank
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         20                    you, Captain.

         21                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         22                                   MOEX Offshore?

         23                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         24          BY MS. KUCHLER:

         25               Q.   Good afternoon.  I'm Deb Kuchler.  I'm
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          1          here for Anadarko and MOEX Offshore.  I have

          2          just a couple of questions for you.  Are you

          3          aware of a situation a day or two before the

          4          explosion where 7-inch casing had to be backed

          5          out of the hole?

          6               A.   Backed out of the hole?

          7               Q.   Because some of the threads were

          8          galled?  

          9               A.   They weren't galled.  They pulled a

         10          connection out of the box.  The driller picked

         11          up on it.  It pulled the connection.  It's a

         12          wedge-type connection, so when it pulled it

         13          out, it sprung back in and damaged the one

         14          below it so we laid those out and replaced

         15          them with new joints.

         16               Q.   How many joints did you replace?

         17               A.   We had -- one of them was a double, so

         18          we had to lay out the double and we put a

         19          single and we replaced them with new joints.
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         20               Q.   What was the cause of that incident?

         21               A.   The driller, when he slacked off into

         22          the box, slacked off too much and the pipe

         23          fell to the side and he was straightening it

         24          back up and as he was straightening it, is

         25          when he pulled it out of the box.
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          1               Q.   And I take it that you would not have

          2          had any role to play in testing the float

          3          collar; is that right?

          4               A.   None.

          5               Q.   Did you play any part in the negative

          6          test that was done?

          7               A.   No, ma'am.

          8                    MS. KUCHLER:

          9                                   Thank you.

         10                    THE WITNESS:

         11                                   You're welcome.

         12                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         13                                   Thank you, ma'am.  Cameron?

         14                    MR. JONES:

         15                                   No questions, Captain.

         16                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         17                                   Thank you, sir.  Halliburton?

         18                    MR. GODWIN:

         19                                   No questions, Captain.
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         20                    CAPT NGUYEN: 

         21                                   Thank you, sir.  Weatherford, do

         22                    you have a separate counselor?

         23                    MR. LEMOINE:

         24                                   I do, but we have no questions,

         25                    Your Honor.

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (512 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:19 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      257

          1                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          2                                   Thank you.  M-I SWACO?

          3                    MR. EASON:

          4                                   No questions.

          5                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          6                                   Thank you, sir.  Dril--Quip? 

          7                    MR. KAPLAN:

          8                                   No questions, Captain.

          9                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         10                                   Thank you, sir.  Douglas Brown?

         11                    MR. GORDON:

         12                                   No questions, Captain.

         13                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         14                                   Curt Kuchta?

         15                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

         16                                   No questions, Captain.

         17                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         18                                   Thank you.  Jimmy Harrell?

         19                    MR. FANNING:
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         20                                   No questions.  Thank you.

         21                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         22                                   Thank you, sir.  Mike Williams?

         23                    MR. PENTON:

         24                                   No questions, Captain.

         25                    CAPT NGUYEN:

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (514 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:19 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      258

          1                                   Thank you, sir.  BP?

          2                    MS. KARIS:

          3                                   No questions, Captain.

          4                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          5                                   Thank you.  Transocean?

          6                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          7          BY MR. CLEMENTS:

          8               Q.   Good afternoon, sir.  My name is Miles

          9          Clements.  I represent Transocean.  I, too,

         10          will try and be brief with you.  I understood

         11          you to testify in response to questioning that

         12          you participated in a daily phone call during

         13          your service on the DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         14               A.   Correct.

         15               Q.   Who from BP during April of this year,

         16          was on the phone from Houston?

         17               A.   I have no idea exactly who's on the

         18          other side.  It's a conference call.  

         19               Q.   Do you recall any of the names either
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         20          in April or any other time you were on the

         21          DEEPWATER HORIZON?

         22               A.   It just depends who the engineer in

         23          charge of the project is.  It's usually on the

         24          other side, John Guide. 

         25               Q.   Excuse me?   
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          1               A.   John Guide.

          2               Q.   All right.  Was Bob Kaluza one of the

          3          BP company men on the DEEPWATER HORIZON that

          4          you worked with?

          5               A.   He was there, yes, at this time.  He's

          6          not a regular from the rig.

          7               Q.   He was aboard on your last hitch?

          8               A.   Correct.

          9               Q.   How long have you known Bob Kaluza? 

         10               A.   I had met him once prior to him coming

         11          out this hitch.

         12               Q.   Was that on a hitch on the DEEPWATER

         13          HORIZON or just on some other occasion?

         14               A.   On the HORIZON, several years back.

         15               Q.   Do you know whether he was an

         16          experienced DEEPWATER hand?

         17               A.   I have no idea.

         18               Q.   I understand, sir, that you did not

         19          study the application for a drilling permit
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         20          submitted to the MMS.  Did you study the

         21          casing design, at least before this casualty?

         22               A.   No.  All I do is make it up.  They

         23          tell me how much pipe to run and I make it up. 

         24               Q.   I understand, sir.  I take it you

         25          would not study the casing designs of others,
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          1          such as Shell or any of the other companies

          2          you mentioned?

          3               A.   No.

          4               Q.   You don't really know how this casing

          5          design compares to those utilized by other

          6          companies, do you sir?

          7               A.   No.

          8               Q.   I understand that Weatherford is in

          9          the business of furnishing tools and supplies

         10          to offshore rigs.  Are centralizers part of

         11          the equipment that Weatherford typically

         12          furnishes?

         13               A.   It depends on which well -- which

         14          engine, excuse me, and they order it from the

         15          beach, you know, from corporate or wherever

         16          and they send it out.

         17               Q.   It would not be a Weatherford decision

         18          to use -- to utilize centralizers or to

         19          utilize a certain number of centralizers?
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         20               A.   It's whatever they order.

         21               Q.   Got you.  On this occasion, or rather

         22          referencing the time period of April of this

         23          year, was centralizers discussed by BP with

         24          Weatherford, to your knowledge?

         25               A.   Not that I'm aware of.
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          1               Q.   Do you know if BP interfaced with

          2          Weatherford with respect to ordering more

          3          centralizers than those already in service?

          4               A.   They did -- they did order some more. 

          5          They talked about getting them out there, yes.

          6               Q.   Was Weatherford able to locate

          7          centralizers, additional centralizers?

          8               A.   Yes.

          9               Q.   And did they furnish them to the

         10          DEEPWATER HORIZON to your knowledge?

         11               A.   Yes, they did.

         12               Q.   How many?

         13               A.   I have no idea exactly how many.

         14               Q.   When were they furnished?

         15               A.   A couple of days or a day before --

         16          something like that.  

         17               Q.   So additional centralizers were

         18          delivered to the DEEPWATER HORIZON --

         19               A.   Correct.
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         20               Q.   -- prior to this casualty?

         21               A.   Correct.

         22               Q.   Do you know how many, at the time of

         23          this casualty, were actually in use?

         24               A.   Just the ones we ran in the hole.

         25               Q.   Do you know how many were run in the
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          1          hole?

          2               A.   I think there's four or five,

          3          something like that.  I'm not exactly sure.

          4               Q.   In addition to those four or five,

          5          were there other centralizers made available

          6          by Weatherford?

          7               A.   Yes.

          8               Q.   To BP?

          9               A.   Correct.

         10               Q.   And they just weren't used?

         11               A.   Correct.

         12                    MR. CLEMENTS:

         13                                   Thank you, sir.  That's all I have.

         14                              MR. MATHEWS:

         15                                        One last question.

         16                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         17          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         18               Q.   In your written statement you had

         19          indicated that you were in the third party
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         20          office.

         21               A.   Correct.

         22               Q.   Where is that located on the rig?

         23               A.   It is where the fourth crane is at --

         24          right below it, a little bit toward the

         25          forward end, one level below the main deck.
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          1               Q.   Did you have any indication of an

          2          alarm or visual alarm to evacuate the rig or

          3          muster prior to the explosion?

          4               A.   No.

          5                    MR. MATHEWS:

          6                                   Thank you.

          7                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          8                                   Mr. John, thank you very much -- 

          9                    MS. KARIS:

         10                                   Excuse me, Captain, I do have a

         11                              couple of follow-up questions.

         12                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         13                                   Yes, please, go ahead.

         14                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         15          BY MS. KARIS:

         16               Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. John.  My name is

         17          Hariklia Karis.  I represent BP.  I wanted to

         18          ask you a couple of questions in follow-up to

         19          what Transocean's counsel just asked you about
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         20          the centralizers.  First, sir, do you know

         21          whether are different types of centralizers?

         22               A.   Yes.

         23               Q.   Do you know what types of centralizers

         24          were ordered by BP to be sent to the rig?

         25               A.   No.
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          1               Q.   Do you know what type of centralizers

          2          actually arrived on the rig prior to April

          3          20th?

          4               A.   Only the ones that were bucked up on

          5          the pipe -- centralizer subs.

          6               Q.   And do you know whether there were any

          7          other centralizers on the rig other than those

          8          few that you mentioned?

          9               A.   Yes, there was some.

         10               Q.   And do you know what types of

         11          centralizers those other ones that had arrived

         12          on the rig were?

         13               A.   It's just a bow spring-type

         14          centralizer, as far as I'm aware of.

         15               Q.   Had you been involved in any

         16          discussions regarding what types of

         17          centralizers should have been sent to the rig?

         18               A.   No.

         19               Q.   Were you involved in any discussions
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         20          or decisions regarding whether or not certain

         21          centralizers were going to be used?

         22               A.   No.

         23                    MS. KARIS:

         24                                   Thank you, sir.  I have no further

         25                    questions at this time.
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          1                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          2                                   Thank you.

          3                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          4          BY MR. LINSIN:

          5               Q.   Thank you, Captain, and I just have

          6          one follow-up, sir.  You testified, I believe,

          7          about the name of an individual, one of the BP

          8          people that you would talk to from time to

          9          time during the morning conference call.

         10               A.   Correct.

         11               Q.   I had heard his first name was John;

         12          is that correct?

         13               A.   Right.

         14               Q.   What was the last name, sir?

         15               A.   Guide.

         16               Q.   Can you spell that for me?

         17               A.   I'm not exactly sure how he spells it.

         18                    MR. MATHEWS:

         19                                   G-U-I-D-E, John Guide. 
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         20                    MR. LINSIN:

         21                                   Thank you.

         22                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         23                                   Thank you, sir.  Any other follow-

         24                    up from the PIIs?  (No response.)  Mr.

         25                    John, thank you very much for your
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          1                    testimony today.  Are there any

          2                    questions that we didn't ask or any

          3                    information that you would like to

          4                    provide to the Board?

          5                    THE WITNESS:

          6                                   I'm fine.

          7                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          8                                   All right, sir.  Thank you.  If we

          9                    need for you to come back in the

         10                    future, will you make yourself

         11                    available?

         12                    THE WITNESS:

         13                                   YES.

         14                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         15                                   Thank you, sir.  You are dismissed. 

         16                    At this time the Board will call Mr.

         17                    Leo Linder with M-I SWACO. Mr. Linder,

         18                    please raise your right hand.

         19                    THE WITNESS:
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         20                                   (Witness complies.)

         21                              *   *   *   *   *   *

         22                                          LEO LINDER,

         23          after being first duly sworn in the cause,

         24          testified as follows:

         25                    CAPT NGUYEN:
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          1                                   Thank you, sir.  Please be seated.

          2                    MR. DYKES:

          3                                   Mr. Linder, thank you for appearing

          4                    before us today.  For the record, who

          5                    is sitting to your left, please, sir?

          6                    THE WITNESS:

          7                                   Tobin Eason.

          8                    MR. DYKES:

          9                                   And does he represent you

         10                    personally?

         11                    THE WITNESS:

         12                                   No.  He represents my company.

         13                    MR. DYKES:

         14                                   M-I SWACO?

         15                    THE WITNESS:

         16                                   That's right.

         17                    MR. DYKES:

         18                                   Are you comfortable with him

         19                    sitting at the table with you?
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         20                    THE WITNESS:

         21                                   Yes, I am.

         22                    MR. DYKES:

         23                                   Has he discussed your testimony

         24                    here today prior to this meeting?

         25                    THE WITNESS:
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          1                                   Yes.

          2                    MR. DYKES:

          3                                   If you wouldn't mind, what did he

          4                    discuss with you?

          5                    THE WITNESS:

          6                                   To tell the truth.

          7                    MR. DYKES:

          8                                   So you did not prepare anything

          9                    else for this hearing then, other than

         10                    to answer the question?

         11                    THE WITNESS:

         12                                   Not really.

         13                    MR. DYKES:

         14                                   Thank you.

         15                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         16          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         17               Q.   Mr. Linder, for the record, could you

         18          please state your full name and spell your

         19          last?
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         20               A.   My name is Leo Lindner -- Leo Thomas

         21          Lindner.  My last name is spelled L-I-N-D-N-E-

         22          R.

         23               Q.   Thank you.  And by whom are you

         24          employed, sir?

         25               A.   M-I SWACO.
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          1               Q.   What current position do you have with

          2          M-I SWACO?

          3               A.   I'm a drilling fluid specialist.

          4               Q.   How long have you been a drilling

          5          fluid specialist, sir?

          6               A.   I worked for M-I for nine years, six

          7          of which I've worked as a mud engineer, and

          8          three of which I worked as a compliance

          9          engineer.

         10               Q.   A what type of engineer?

         11               A.   A mud engineer -- it's a drilling

         12          fluid specialist, but --

         13               Q.   Can you please briefly describe your

         14          job responsibilities as a drilling fluid

         15          specialist onboard the HORIZON?

         16               A.   As a drilling fluid specialist, we are

         17          really in charge of the properties of the

         18          drilling fluid to make sure that they are

         19          maintained.  We also need to keep up our
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         20          inventory and make sure the rig has what it

         21          needs to drill.  We communicate with the dock

         22          about upcoming needs, that kind of thing.

         23               Q.   Were you the senior M-I guy on the rig

         24          or did you report to someone at M-I on the rig

         25          or did you report directly to BP?
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          1               A.   Well, there's a project engineer in

          2          Houston who I communicate with.  But on the

          3          rig, I reported to the company man -- the BP

          4          company man.

          5               Q.   Had you had any other oilfield

          6          experience prior to your work with M-I SWACO?

          7               A.   I worked briefly as a deckhand for

          8          Zapata Gulf.

          9                    MR. DYKES:

         10                                   Back up one second -- project

         11                    engineer in Houston, is that a BP

         12                    employee or M-I SWACO?

         13                    THE WITNESS:

         14                                   It's an M-I SWACO employee.

         15                    MR. DYKES:

         16                                   Thank you.

         17                    THE WITNESS:

         18                                   Now, BP also has their mud

         19                    specialist who we're in contact with.
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         20          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         21               Q.   That BP mud specialist, it's someone

         22          on the rig or someone on the beach?

         23               A.   Someone on the beach.

         24               Q.   How long have you been assigned to the

         25          DEEPWATER HORIZON?
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          1               A.   Since November 2005, as a drilling

          2          fluid specialist.  I worked as the compliance

          3          engineer in 2003 for roughly a year.

          4               Q.   When did you arrive on the DEEPWATER

          5          HORIZON prior to April 20th?

          6               A.   Two weeks before.

          7               Q.   Had you had any drilling fluid

          8          problems during that duration, sir?

          9               A.   I believe at that time they had just

         10          pumped an LCM pill. They were having lost

         11          circulation problems.  I was instructed to

         12          build another pill so I did so.  But when they

         13          opened up the annular, the losses had stopped

         14          so it didn't need it.

         15               Q.   Can you give me your best recollection

         16          of the morning of the 20th up until you

         17          evacuated the DEEPWATER HORIZON, please?

         18               A.   The day?

         19               Q.   Yes, sir.
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         20               A.   That morning I met with Gordon Jones

         21          for breakfast.  He informed me that they

         22          hadn't lost any drilling fluid while

         23          cementing.  I went to the office and later I

         24          attended the morning call, the 7:30 call. 

         25          Shortly after that, Mr. Bob Kaluza called me
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          1          to his office.  He wanted to go over the

          2          method by which the rig had been doing its

          3          negative test and displacing.  I explained --

          4          I explained it to him.  He seemed satisfied

          5          with it.  Shortly after that, I was called by

          6          Mr. Brian Morel.  We had basically the same

          7          conversation.  He seemed satisfied with it. 

          8          He informed me they were going to be

          9          displacing further down the hole than usual. 

         10          Usually it's 300 feet below the mud line, but

         11          this was going to be at 8367.  I left the

         12          office and I make my calculations.  I type up

         13          a displacement procedure.  By that time, the

         14          drilling crew on tour were just about to get

         15          off so I didn't give out my displacement

         16          procedure to them because they were going to

         17          be off in just a moment.  After Dewey's crew

         18          came on --

         19               Q.   Whose crew?
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         20               A.   Dewey Revette, he's a driller.  I gave

         21          my displacement procedure to the company man,

         22          the driller, the ADs.  I made one for the

         23          derrick man.  I gave one to the mud logger and

         24          made a couple of extra copies for my cohorts

         25          when they would come on -- come on the rig --
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          1          on tour, I mean.  At about 12 o'clock I

          2          understand that they were done with their

          3          positive test.  In order to move forward, we

          4          had to move some drilling fluid off the rig in

          5          order to accommodate the displacement.  I

          6          asked Phil Johnson if he could get -- there

          7          was a crew boat on the port side where the

          8          hose was, if he could move that crew boat off

          9          and get the BANKSTON in so we could start

         10          getting some fluid off.  We had to do that in

         11          order to continue.  He did so.  Roy Kemp, the

         12          derrick man, did his paperwork and started

         13          moving fluid from the rig to the boat.  At

         14          about 3 o'clock the rig was on depth meaning 

         15          they were at 8367 and we had our pre-job

         16          safety meeting where we go over the

         17          displacement procedure.  I went over the

         18          procedure and asked if there were any

         19          questions and if everyone was comfortable with
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         20          the procedure.  And Dewey started to displace

         21          the choke, killing the boost and to spot the

         22          spacer above the upper annular. In spotting

         23          that spacer and close the upper annular, I

         24          understand they lost some fluid and filled the

         25          riser back up. The rig was trying to determine
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          1          exactly what had happened.  They decided to go

          2          ahead and try to do the first negative test. 

          3          I understand they bled off some pressure from

          4          the drill pipe and got fluid back.  They

          5          attempted it again and got fluid back.  At

          6          that point, I called Roy Kemp and told him not

          7          to pump anymore mud to the boat.  This was

          8          around 5 or so.  He pointed out that the sand

          9          traps were still full of mud.  I thought there

         10          was a possibility we could be reversing it

         11          out.  I didn't know.  I wanted to be ready in

         12          case whatever direction we went.  So I asked

         13          him, "Yeah, go ahead and start moving the sand

         14          traps over into the active pits because it was

         15          something we had to do anyway.  At 7:30 or so,

         16          they decided to do another negative test. 

         17          They start performing it and I ask Don Clark,

         18          AD, if it was going all right and he said,

         19          "Yeah, it's going fine."  At that point,
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         20          Gordon Jones and Blair Manuel kind of looked

         21          at me and said, "Go to bed.  We've got this. 

         22          We're tired of looking at you."  So I knock

         23          off and I tried to call my daughter.  The next

         24          day was her birthday so I had to make sure I

         25          got the call in.  At 10 -- sorry, at 8:10, I
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          1          remember looking at the drilling screen.  It's

          2          a common screen that everyone would look at on

          3          the computer and saw that the rig pumps were

          4          pumping.  I thought everything was fine.  I

          5          went to bed and I just remember shortly after

          6          that being woken up hearing the general alarm. 

          7          I get out of bed and my wall disappeared.  I

          8          tried to get dressed as best as I could and

          9          made my way past what was the galley to the

         10          cinema room where the medic was saying we have

         11          to muster in the cinema room.  But an

         12          Oceaneering employee came in and said the

         13          rig's on fire, I think it was Darren Costello,

         14          we need to get out of here.  So we all

         15          mustered at the life boats.  We gave our name

         16          to the AD taking the muster.  As we got into

         17          the life boats, as to what I recall, and 20 or

         18          30 minutes later they launched and got us in

         19          the BANKSTON.
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         20               Q.   Thank you.  Let's go back to the

         21          spacer.  What's the volume of a normal spacer?

         22               A.   200 -- 180 barrels, 200 barrels, in

         23          that category.

         24               Q.   What's the purpose of a spacer?

         25               A.   A spacer is to make a division between
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          1          the seawater that you're displacing with and

          2          the synthetic fluid.  A spacer is usually made

          3          up of water-based mud.

          4               Q.   In the written statement you provided

          5          on the DAMON BANKSTON, you had indicated that

          6          you used a 450 barrel spacer of LCM.  Is that

          7          accurate?

          8               A.   That's correct.

          9               Q.   Why was there such a large spacer?

         10               A.   The day I got to the rig I made the

         11          two LCM pills and Mickey had wanted to use

         12          those instead of trying to build another

         13          spacer.  When we combined the two fluids, we

         14          had a very large spacer.  That was vetted

         15          through BP's environmental people.  The

         16          drilling engineers were involved and the --

         17          our fluid people were involved; their fluid

         18          people were involved.  So that's why we used

         19          so much.
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         20               Q.   I think you also, in that same report,

         21          indicated that it was 16 pounds per gallon?

         22               A.   That is correct.

         23               Q.   Is it common to have a loss

         24          circulation material as a spacer?

         25               A.   Not common.
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          1               Q.   How common is it?

          2               A.   It's an idea we -- I say, we, but the

          3          rig had kicked around if we were in that

          4          position.  We were in different positions.  We

          5          were in similar positions in different wells,

          6          we just never had the opportunity to use it.

          7               Q.   How many wells have you used such a

          8          large spacer on before?  Do you have a working

          9          knowledge of a number?

         10               A.   I don't.

         11               Q.   You made the pill?

         12               A.   Actually, I talked to Gordon Jones and

         13          he folded it over.  He put a little Duovisc in

         14          there.  I had conducted some preliminary tests

         15          to make sure there wasn't going to be anything

         16          strange happen when you mix the pills.  But he

         17          got the derrick man to weight it up and add

         18          what's called Duovisc.  It's a polymer to

         19          thicken it up a bit.
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         20               Q.   Do you know what other materials were

         21          in the pill outside of that?

         22               A.   Outside of the LCM material?  Barite. 

         23          They had to weight it up.  It was 14 pounds,

         24          so they had to weight it up.

         25               Q.   When running a spacer with that type
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          1          of -- I mean, that type of spacer, do you have

          2          any issues with your choke and kill line with

          3          any type of possible clogging or plugging of

          4          the choke and kill lines?

          5               A.   I didn't foresee any issues, no.

          6               Q.   Had anyone indicated to you about the

          7          possibility of that when you were discussing

          8          with your environmental, or your engineers,

          9          your mud specialist at the beach either

         10          between BP or M-I SWACO?

         11               A.   I don't recall any conversation about

         12          that.

         13               Q.   Do you know if M-I SWACO has ever

         14          tested any of that before, any type of LCM

         15          clogs to the choke and kill line and the

         16          effect it may have?

         17               A.   That would clog and kill the choke and

         18          kill line?

         19               Q.   Yes, sir.
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         20               A.   Whether or not there was an actual

         21          test, I don't know that.

         22               Q.   You didn't have any recommended

         23          practices, per se, to say not to run an LCM at

         24          that volume across the choke and kill line,

         25          did you?

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (556 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:20 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      279

          1               A.   None that I'm aware of.

          2               Q.   Are you familiar with the company

          3          Offshore Cleaning Systems?

          4               A.   Yes.

          5               Q.   Do you know why they were on the

          6          DEEPWATER HORIZON the day of the incident?

          7               A.   They were there to clean our pits. 

          8          They had just finished with the column tanks

          9          and they were waiting in order to clean out

         10          the flow line, the gumbo box, shakers, active

         11          pits, reserve pits.

         12               Q.   Did you have direct communication with

         13          the OCS representative or how did they handle

         14          when they were going to do their cleaning

         15          operations?

         16               A.   Usually I would confer with the BP

         17          representative and confirm that it was okay

         18          for them to clean whatever they were going to

         19          clean and tell them to act accordingly.
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         20               Q.   Do you know if anyone met with OCS

         21          representatives from M-I SWACO around 8:15

         22          p.m. to discuss the upcoming cleaning of the

         23          mud pits?

         24               A.   I was asleep at the time.  I don't.

         25               Q.   All right.  Do you know if there was
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          1          any indication from M-I SWACO to get with OCS

          2          to clean the mud pits that evening prior to

          3          you going to bed?

          4               A.   No, not prior to my going to bed.

          5               Q.   Who instructed you to set up the

          6          piping to displace the riser?

          7               A.   The piping?

          8               Q.   Yes, how you were transferring the

          9          fluids from the riser pass the sand traps back

         10          into the pit into the DAMON BANKSTON?

         11               A.   It's just a standard practice is what

         12          we usually did.  

         13               Q.   Can you tell me from the riser where

         14          you go from there?

         15               A.   From the riser, flow line over the

         16          shakers.  The sand traps were bypassed.  They

         17          were going down the ditch directly to the

         18          active pits and from the active pits they were

         19          being pumped to the boat.  Now they were being
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         20          pumped to the boat prior to the first negative

         21          test.  So after that I don't know.  I went to

         22          bed after the -- I wasn't up for the actual

         23          displacement of the riser.

         24               Q.   Who is normally in charge in the

         25          displacement?
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          1               A.   In charge of the displacement?

          2               Q.   The operation itself.

          3               A.   The operation itself.  Ultimately, BP

          4          would be.

          5               Q.   Outside of the sand traps was anything

          6          else bypassed?

          7               A.   Not to my knowledge.

          8               Q.   Who was monitoring the returns to the

          9          DEEPWATER HORIZON for volume control?

         10               A.   Sperry Sun was on the rig and part of

         11          the mud logger's position is to --

         12               Q.   Cathleenia Willis or Joseph Keith?

         13               A.   Cathleenia Willis was on during the

         14          day.  She would have knocked off.  Of course,

         15          actually I didn't see her knock off.  But they

         16          usually change out at 5, and Joseph would have

         17          come on.

         18               Q.   How are they actually monitoring the

         19          fluids?
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         20               A.   They have sensors and they have their

         21          screens.

         22               Q.   Is it difficult -- I know difficult is

         23          a word that's up to my discretion, but is it

         24          possible -- let me ask you this first.  Is it

         25          possible to monitor fluid from the riser,
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          1          across the well rig and back to the DAMON

          2          BANKSTON?

          3               A.   I'm not a mud logger so I couldn't

          4          really answer that one. 

          5               Q.   Is it a safe practice or unsafe

          6          practice to displace the riser, transfer

          7          fluids across the rig and then back to the

          8          DAMON BANKSTON at the same time?

          9                    MR. EASON:

         10                                   Mr. Mathews, are you talking about

         11                    from M-I's perspective?

         12                    MR. MATHEWS:

         13                                   Yes, sir.  M-I's perspective.

         14                    MR. EASON:

         15                                   Thank you, sir.

         16                              THE WITNESS:

         17                                        Um --

         18          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         19               Q.   Have you ever been on a rig that it
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         20          had done that before?

         21               A.   I understand it's a pretty common

         22          practice.

         23               Q.   Common as to the Transocean rigs or

         24          all rigs?

         25               A.   The rigs that I've been on before
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          1          weren't Transocean rigs.

          2               Q.   What other rigs were those, sir?

          3               A.   I was on a Rowan rig where we had to,

          4          of course, sometimes you are handcuffed by how

          5          much space you have.  So you have to pump some

          6          to the boat.  I know like in our position and

          7          to spot that spacer, we were in the same

          8          position.  We only had so many pits to fill.

          9               Q.   Also provided I believe one of those

         10          documents up there to be the procedure that

         11          your referenced earlier.  Can you testify that

         12          that's the correct procedure and it's Bates

         13          number BP-HZN-MBI00133083?

         14               A.   That's correct.

         15               Q.   When did you prepare that one?

         16               A.   Right after my conversation with Mr.

         17          Morel.

         18               Q.   There were two notes of interest I

         19          want to highlight.  One was before displacing
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         20          to seawater conductor THINK drill with all? 

         21          Who is all?

         22               A.   The rig crew, the mud loggers, the M-I

         23          SWACO people and, of course, BP.

         24               Q.   Now, was that a task specific THINK

         25          drill or a generic THINK drill under
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          1          Transocean's HSE policy? 

          2               A.   (No response.)

          3               Q.   Do you know what a task specific THINK

          4          drill is?

          5               A.   I've heard the term, yes.  But I don't

          6          know the distinction -- I don't know which one

          7          would be --

          8               Q.   Task specific would be specific to the

          9          riser and the issues that you would have or

         10          potential safety issues that you may have.

         11               A.   Again, I don't know how to categorize

         12          it.

         13               Q.   And I think on the very bottom it also

         14          says, "A good communication will be necessary

         15          to accomplish a successful displacement.  If

         16          you are not sure, stop and ask."  Is that

         17          accurate?

         18               A.   That's right.

         19               Q.   Do you know if that was done?
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         20               A.   It was a standard policy so during the

         21          -- when we went over the displacement

         22          procedure there weren't any concerns brought

         23          up.

         24               Q.   Do you know if Ms. Cathleenia Willis,

         25          at any time, indicated to the assistant
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          1          driller that she could not monitor the

          2          displacement back to the boat?

          3               A.   I didn't hear that conversation.

          4               Q.   If she did, would you think the drill

          5          would have stopped?

          6                    MR. EASON:

          7                                   Objection.  Speculation.  If you

          8                    can answer the question, go ahead and

          9                    answer it.

         10                    THE WITNESS:

         11                                   We would have stopped and

         12                    considered, sure.  I say "we," I mean,

         13                    that concern would have been vetted up

         14                    through BP down to everyone else.

         15          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         16               Q.   Earlier you said the drill crew had

         17          participated in the THINK drill.  Does that

         18          include the assistant driller?

         19               A.   Yes.  They were on the rig floor when
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         20          he had the discussion.

         21               Q.   Earlier you had indicated that it was

         22          not also -- it's a practice to displace and

         23          transfer and offload to a vessel as a possible

         24          industry-wide issue.  At any time did you have

         25          any concerns performing that while you were
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          1          doing it?

          2               A.   Predicated on a good negative test, I

          3          didn't.

          4               Q.   And what is a good negative test?

          5               A.   Where you don't have any pressure up

          6          the kill.  Of course, I'm not an expert on

          7          what constitutes a good negative test.  But

          8          it's my rudimentary understanding.

          9               Q.   But you were under the impression at

         10          the DEEPWATER HORIZON you had a good negative

         11          test at the time this was taking place?

         12               A.   Under the impression, I had trust in

         13          the rig making that decision.  I wouldn't have

         14          gone to bed.

         15               Q.   At any time in your duration on the

         16          DEEPWATER HORIZON, have you or anybody from M-

         17          I SWACO use a stop work obligation?

         18               A.   I'm sure they have --

         19                         Q.    Have you?
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         20                         A.    I can't recall right off the top of 

         21          my head, but we fill out plenty START cards on

         22          people doing operations.  I can't recall one

         23          off the top of my head.

         24                    MR. MATHEWS:

         25                                   Thank you.  I have no further
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          1                    questions.

          2                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          3          BY MR. McCARROLL:

          4               Q.   Can I ask you just a couple follow-up

          5          questions on the spacer and the displacement. 

          6          If you're displacing the spacer, which is 16

          7          pounds with saltwater; is that correct?

          8               A.   Right.  They would pump spacer then

          9          chase it with saltwater.

         10               Q.   And above the spacer is 14-pound mud?

         11               A.   That's correct, synthetic fluid,

         12          right.

         13               Q.   When you're pumping the saltwater

         14          around behind the 16-pound mud, with the LCM

         15          material in it, do you think they would mix

         16          and you would get some sort of mixing zone

         17          there?

         18               A.   Not going down the pipe, but coming up

         19          the annular, they would mix.
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         20               Q.   If you have some sort of mixing zone

         21          between the 16 pound and the saltwater and

         22          you've got to get that 16 pound above your

         23          BOPs in order to do a good negative test,

         24          could the mixing zone then affect the negative

         25          test?
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          1               A.   In my opinion, I don't want to

          2          represent my company --

          3               Q.   That's correct.  Thank you.

          4               A.   They would still be able to accomplish

          5          a good negative test with a mixture.

          6               Q.   Wouldn't the mixing zone tend to lead

          7          toward U-tubing a little bit?

          8               A.   Yes.  But again, this is my opinion,

          9          every time you do a negative test you get some

         10          kind of U-tubing affect, not actually every

         11          time.  It's been my, and again, I have a

         12          rudimentary and I haven't been a witness to

         13          that many negative tests, but there is that

         14          tendency to U-tube to some degree.

         15               Q.   I'll just follow-up on that real

         16          quick.  If you get all the 14-pound mud in the

         17          spacer above the BOPs and you close the BOPs,

         18          I believe that would eliminate the attempt to

         19          U-tube.  In your opinion, is that correct?
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         20               A.   If, like you pointed out, there's some

         21          fluid that's not completely seawater, it would

         22          create some kind of U-tube effect.  But

         23          ideally -- ideally, the idea is that you get

         24          it above the upper annular and you have an

         25          actual seawater gradient all the way to 38, 67
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          1          in this particular case.

          2               Q.   Just one other question.  If you close

          3          in your BOPs and you have a mixing zone, then

          4          you would have some of this barite mixture

          5          across the BOPs?

          6               A.   I would suppose so, yeah.

          7               Q.   And barite is --

          8               A.   You're talking about that barite

          9          mixture, but there would be a number of other

         10          things --

         11               Q.   Right.  Is barite a very abrasive

         12          material?

         13               A.   Not as abrasive as Ferrox which is

         14          another weighty material, but -- actually,

         15          it's a pretty soft mineral, is my

         16          understanding.

         17               Q.   I'm sorry.  I didn't get your answer. 

         18          Is it an abrasive material or not?

         19               A.   Compared to what in particular?
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         20               Q.   Whatever is normally in drilling

         21          fluid.

         22               A.   Barite is pretty much in all drilling

         23          fluid, but like calcium carbon is another soft

         24          material that we used a lot of. I don't know

         25          if I answered your question.
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          1               Q.   Let me rephrase it.  If you have your

          2          BOPs there and you have a barite mixture

          3          across it, could that damage the rubber

          4          elements in your BOPs when you're trying to do

          5          a negative test or any kind of pressure test.

          6               A.   Damage the rubber elements?  I --

          7                    MR. EASON:

          8                                   I object to the content of the

          9                    question.  It calls for expertise.  The

         10                    foundation hasn't been laid, Mr.

         11                    McCarroll.  As to his, I don't think

         12                    he's here to testify as an expert.  He

         13                    can answer the question.  I'm not

         14                    telling him not to answer the question. 

         15                    I'm just pointing out the fact that

         16                    you're asking a question that I think

         17                    an expert would be required to answer

         18                    it.

         19          BY MR. McCARROLL:
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         20               Q.   Let me rephrase it then.  If you're

         21          pumping a displacement job and you're lining

         22          up the job, would you want to line up your job

         23          to leave barite across your BOPs?

         24               A.   In this particular case, I would think

         25          that little bit could be negligible.  That
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          1          amount of the mixture would be negligible and

          2          wouldn't be a problem.

          3               Q.   I'm just talking about a generic job. 

          4          In just pumping a generic job, would you want

          5          to pump the job so you'd have barite across

          6          your BOPs or not.

          7               A.   The way you're saying barite as if

          8          there's a huge plug right there.  And of

          9          course, it would migrate down in that seawater

         10          so it's not going to stay -- stick there right

         11          below the wellhead.  So I don't really know

         12          how to answer that.

         13               Q.   I'll withdraw the question.  Thank

         14          you.

         15                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         16                                   Flag state?

         17                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         18          BY MR. LINSIN:

         19               Q.   Thank you, Captain.  Good afternoon,
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         20          Mr. Linder.  My name is Greg Linsin.  I

         21          represent the Republic of the Marshall

         22          Islands.  I have just a couple of questions

         23          for you, sir.  You testified about the process

         24          for monitoring the volume of the mud coming

         25          out of the hole during the displacement and I
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          1          believe that you said that there was a monitor

          2          that was used for, to read the data for that

          3          monitoring; is that correct?

          4               A.   I understand that Sperry Sun has its

          5          monitoring and also Transocean has its

          6          monitor.

          7               Q.   Do you know where that data is

          8          captured?

          9               A.   I'm afraid I don't.

         10               Q.   Do you know if that data is

         11          transmitted shoreside.

         12               A.   I'm not an expert on what Sperry Sun

         13          transmits so I can't say.

         14               Q.   Do you know, sir, how the system was

         15          lined up prior to the second negative test

         16          that was run on April 20th?

         17               A.   I'm afraid I don't.  How it was lined

         18          up?

         19               Q.   Yes, sir.
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         20               A.   You mean -- when you say "the 

         21          system" --

         22               Q.   Well, do you know whether there was

         23          seawater in the drill pipe or the choke line

         24          or the kill line prior to that second negative

         25          test?
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          1               A.   I don't know it as a fact, but it was

          2          supposed to be.

          3               Q.   In all three of them?

          4               A.   Kill line, choke line and drill pipe?

          5               Q.   Yes, sir.

          6               A.   Well, and also in the annulus up to

          7          the -- from 8367 to the wellhead was supposed

          8          to be seawater.

          9               Q.   Did you have any concerns on April

         10          20th about the pumping of the mud to the DAMON

         11          BANKSTON?

         12               A.   I didn't.

         13               Q.   And you said that was a procedure you

         14          have witnessed on a fairly regular basis in

         15          the past; is that correct?

         16               A.   Yes.  

         17               Q.   To your knowledge, when that has been

         18          done previously, has that created any problems

         19          in the monitoring of the volume of mud that is
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         20          actually coming out of the hole?

         21               A.   I couldn't -- I couldn't say.

         22               Q.   You don't know?

         23                         A.    I don't know.

         24                    MR. LINSIN:

         25                                   Thank you.  No further questions.
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          1                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          2                                   Halliburton?

          3                    MR. GODWIN:

          4                                   Halliburton has no questions,

          5                    Captain.  Weatherford?

          6                    MR. LEMOINE:

          7                                   No questions, Captain.

          8                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          9                                   Thank you, sir.  M-I SWACO?

         10                    MR. EASON:

         11                                   No questions, Captain.

         12                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         13                                   Thank you, sir.  Dril--Quip?

         14                    MR. KAPLAN:

         15                                   No questions.

         16                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         17                                   Douglas Brown?

         18                    MR. GORDON:

         19                                   No questions.
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         20                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         21                                   Thank you.  Curt Kuchta?

         22                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

         23                                   No questions.

         24                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         25                                   Thank you, sir.  Jimmy Harrell?
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          1                    MR. FANNING:

          2                                   No questions.

          3                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          4                                   Mike Williams?

          5                    MR. PENTON:

          6                                   Just a couple, Captain.

          7                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          8          BY MR. PENTON:

          9               Q.   Captain, I'm Ronnie Penton and I

         10          represent Mike Williams.  I have a couple

         11          questions for you.  How standard in the

         12          industry, at least in your experience, is a

         13          450 barrel spacer?

         14               A.   I'd say, just from my experience, it's

         15          not standard.

         16               Q.   That's not standard industry

         17          practice, is it?

         18               A.   No.

         19               Q.   Why is that?

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (589 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:20 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20                              MR. EASON:

         21                                        Go on and answer the questions as

         22                              best you can.

         23                              MR. PENTON:

         24                                        Sure, if you can.

         25                              MR. EASON:
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          1                                        If you can.

          2                              THE WITNESS:

          3                                        Just as a rule of thumb, you need

          4                              roughly 200 barrels is what we try to

          5                    pump -- 200 to 180.  To make that

          6                    distinction between the seawater and

          7                    the synthetic fluid? 

          8          BY MR. PENTON:

          9               Q.   Yes.

         10               A.   Any more than that wouldn't be called

         11          for.  It would be unmerited to make more of

         12          it.

         13               Q.   Maybe I missed it.  Who specified that

         14          size of spacer?

         15               A.   That size of spacer?

         16               Q.   Yes.

         17               A.   Ultimately it was vetted through BP so

         18          they gave the go-ahead to use it.

         19               Q.   It was vetted through BP, but did you

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (591 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:20 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20          or someone with your company recommend it?

         21               A.   Recommend it?  Like I said before, the

         22          idea to use an LCM spacer had been kicked

         23          around before in the same circumstance when we

         24          had LCM spacers left on -- not spacers, pills. 

         25          And I remember having a conversation with

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (592 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:20 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      297

          1          Murray Sepulvado about what we could do with

          2          it.  But that was very early on in the hitch. 

          3          As the hitch progressed and got more -- we got

          4          closer to the point, we started asking

          5          questions whether or not we could do this to

          6          BP.  And that's how it came to be.

          7               Q.   Well, when you say, "what we could do

          8          with it," what do you mean?

          9               A.   Use it as a spacer.

         10               Q.   Why was it of such a great amount to

         11          begin with?

         12               A.   Because there were two different

         13          pills, roughly 180 barrels a piece.

         14               Q.   So you put them together?

         15               A.   Yes.

         16               Q.   And I appreciate your answer, but

         17          maybe it was a poorly formed questions, but

         18          who made that decision?

         19               A.   The decision was made by BP to use it.
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         20               Q.   Did you recommend it or someone from

         21          your company recommend it?

         22               A.   Again, I broached the subject with

         23          him.  It wasn't an idea that I came up with

         24          so, I mean, it was an idea that was just in

         25          the air and we talked about.
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          1               Q.   Well, was it a joint idea between

          2          yourself and BP?

          3                    MR. EASON:

          4                                   Captain, at this point, I'd object. 

          5                    He's answered this question three times

          6                    and at this point --

          7                    MR. PENTON:

          8                                   I haven't gotten an answer,

          9                    Captain.  I'm trying to work with the

         10                    witness to get an answer on if it was a

         11                    joint effort on behalf of this witness,

         12                    as well as BP, or were the other

         13                    parties involved in that process.

         14                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         15                                   He can answer that, but I think you

         16                    stated your question so he can answer

         17                    that question, please.

         18                    THE WITNESS:

         19                                   Is it a joint decision like did I
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         20                    have a say in it?

         21          BY MR. PENTON:

         22               Q.   Yes.

         23               A.   Or M-I SWACO had a say in it. 

         24          Ultimately, that decision was BP's decision.

         25               Q.   Ultimately it was their decision?
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          1               A.   Yes.

          2               Q.   But you were involved in that

          3          decision?

          4               A.   Yes.

          5               Q.   Now, why is such a large pill not

          6          recommended or not normally used?

          7                    MR. EASON:

          8                                   Let me object --

          9                    MR. PENTON:

         10                                   I'm sorry.  I can't hear your

         11                    objection.  I'm sorry.

         12                    MR. EASON:

         13                                   Ronnie, you used the word

         14                    "recommended" in that question.  I'd

         15                    just object to that use.

         16          BY MR. PENTON:

         17               Q.   You testified that such a large volume

         18          of spacer is not standard industry practice. 

         19          And so I'm asking, I guess the question is why
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         20          is it not the standard industry practice such

         21          a large pill?

         22               A.   Well the pill, depending on the size,

         23          a large pill would do the same job as a

         24          smaller pill.  So why make a 400 barrel pill

         25          if you don't have the fluid already ready, as
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          1          opposed to just taking the 200 barrel pill. 

          2          But we had these two fluids already made.

          3               Q.   So was it more driven by the idea that

          4          you already had that made up and you used it?

          5               A.   Well, I didn't but --

          6               Q.   I understand.

          7               A.   I understand.  But yes, we had the

          8          product there and BP wanted to use it.

          9               Q.   Tell me, if you know, what types of

         10          difficulties or complications may be visited

         11          on the well conditions with such a large pill,

         12          if you know.

         13               A.   If I know?

         14                    MR. SCAFF:

         15                                   Objection, Captain.  This witness

         16                    is not here to testify as an expert and

         17                    I believe he's asking him to speculate

         18                    as to wellbore conditions and it's

         19                    beyond his personal knowledge. 
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         20                    MR. PENTON:

         21                                   And, Captain, if he knows.  He's

         22                    the drilling fluid specialist.  That's

         23                    what this is, drilling fluid, if he

         24                    knows.

         25                              MR. SCAFF:
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          1                                        It's used at the surface --

          2                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          3                                   Yes, sir.  I agree with the M-I

          4                    SWACO adviser.

          5          BY MR. PENTON:

          6               Q.   Do you know -- I'll try to rephrase

          7          and get by that, okay?  Do you know if this

          8          450 barrel spacer caused complications in the

          9          well condition that they were dealing with

         10          that evening?

         11                    MR. SCAFF:

         12                                   Again, Captain, that calls for an

         13                    expert opinion.  It's beyond the scope

         14                    of Mr. Lindner's personal knowledge and

         15                    what he's here to testify to under

         16                    oath.  

         17                    MR. PENTON:

         18                                   I believe the witness could say

         19                    that.  I mean, he's the one involved in

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (601 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:20 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20                    this.  I don't know who else I can ask

         21                    that question to.

         22                    MR. EASON:

         23                                   He's here as a fact witness,

         24                    Captain.

         25                    MR. PENTON:
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          1                                   I'm asking a fact question.

          2                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          3                                   I understand.  You can testify to

          4                    that or part of the question is to your

          5                    qualification as a fluid specialist. 

          6                    So if it's related to your knowledge

          7                    and skills that you should have in

          8                    carrying out a position, you can answer

          9                    the question.  It doesn't have to be

         10                    fact-related to this particular

         11                    casualty or this particular case.  It

         12                    could be an assessment of your

         13                    qualification and if it relates to your

         14                    qualification you can answer.  If 

         15                              not -- 

         16                    THE WITNESS:

         17                                   One may need to be an engineer in

         18                    order to answer that question and I'm

         19                    not qualified as an engineer.
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         20                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         21                                   All right.  That's clear.

         22          BY MR. PENTON:

         23               Q.   Thank you, sir.  Did SWACO have

         24          anybody onboard that was an engineer that

         25          could --
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          1               A.   Actually held an engineering degree

          2          and was certified?

          3               Q.   Say that again.  I'm sorry.

          4               A.   Actually held an engineering degree

          5          and was a certified engineer?

          6               Q.   Okay.

          7               A.   I'm asking.  Is that what you mean by

          8          an engineer?

          9               Q.   Yes.

         10               A.   No.  There was no M-I SWACO that had

         11          an engineering degree unless Blair Manuel held

         12          one.  I didn't ask him, but I don't think so.

         13               Q.   Do you know if this 450 barrel spacer

         14          might have increased the hydrostatic pressure

         15          in the kill line?

         16                    MR. SCAFF:

         17                                   Again, Captain, same issue with

         18                    this question.  He's asking for an

         19                    expert opinion and a speculative
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         20                    answers.  Do you know if it might have

         21                    happened.  It apparently calls for

         22                    speculation.

         23                    MR. PENTON:

         24                                   Captain, this is not a

         25                    hypothetical.  This is the drilling
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          1                    fluid specialist on this rig and a very

          2                    large spacer that is not industry

          3                    practice was used.  And I'm asking a

          4                    very specific question whether a large

          5                    spacer like that would increase the

          6                    hydrostatic pressure.  If he doesn't

          7                    know it, he doesn't know it.

          8                    MR. SCAFF:

          9                                   This witness has his personal

         10                    recollection to what happened on the

         11                    HORIZON.  He does not have all the

         12                    data; he does not have all the facts. 

         13                    It's impossible for him to have

         14                    sufficient information to offer an

         15                    opinion on that issue and I object to

         16                    it.

         17                    MR. PENTON:

         18                                   Your objection is noted.  Let me

         19                    ask a question.
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         20          BY MR. PENTON:

         21               Q.   Do you have general understanding of

         22          well control concepts?

         23               A.   Only the most general, yes.

         24               Q.   Only the most general.  Do you fully

         25          understand the whole concept of weight in a

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (608 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:20 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      305

          1          hole, with your mud weight and hydrostatic

          2          pressure?

          3               A.   Well, when you say understand, I mean,

          4          I have like a complete command of hydrostatic

          5          pressures in the -- no, I don't have a

          6          complete command of it.

          7                    MR. DYKES:

          8                                   I don't think he's fully qualified

          9                    to answer your question.

         10                    MR. PENTON:

         11                                   Okay.

         12          BY MR. PENTON:

         13               Q.   Well, I was leaning to a negative test

         14          question, but I'll just pass it.  I think

         15          that's the foundation -- I had one more area

         16          of inquiry.  It may be one; it may be two

         17          questions.  But I appreciate your testimony. 

         18          With respect to this routing of the returns

         19          overboard, did you say that prior to the
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         20          negative test that they were offloading the

         21          returns to the DAMON BANKSTON; is that

         22          correct?

         23               A.   That is correct.

         24               Q.   And you explained the routing, but you

         25          were kind of far from the mike and I couldn't
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          1          really hear it.  Could you please, real

          2          quickly, tell me that?  The routing -- I'm

          3          talking about before the negative test.

          4               A.   Before the negative test?

          5               Q.   Yes.

          6               A.   Up the riser, the flow line, over the

          7          shakers bypassing the sand traps to the active

          8          pits where it was pumped to the boat.

          9               Q.   Now, is there a flow meter in that

         10          chain between the riser and the boat?

         11               A.   Yes.

         12               Q.   Where is that flow meter at?

         13               A.   I don't exactly know.  I understand

         14          that it's in the flow line coming from the --

         15               Q.   Have you seen --

         16               A.   I've never seen it or --

         17               Q.   Have you seen documents that would

         18          tell us that there was a flow meter leading

         19          the returns from the riser to the DAMON
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         20          BANKSTON?

         21               A.   Have I seen documents?  You mean

         22          the --

         23               Q.   Do you have knowledge, whether it be

         24          documents or conversations --

         25               A.   There was that Sperry Sun document
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          1          that was plastered on the internet, and I

          2          believe, of course, I'm not very good at

          3          reading the logs, but, I believe, gallons per

          4          minute were on it.  But I didn't study it in

          5          detail or anything.

          6               Q.   So is what you understand that there

          7          was a flow meter, correct? 

          8               A.   Yes.

          9               Q.   But you don't have a direct

         10          understanding from an operational standpoint? 

         11          In other words, you didn't interface with it?

         12               A.   That's a fair assessment, yes.

         13               Q.   Let me ask you, if there wasn't a flow

         14          meter, would have had a comment about that?  I

         15          mean, did you?  I mean, if there was not a

         16          flow meter -- let me rephrase.  Prior to the

         17          routing of the returns to the DAMON BANKSTON,

         18          was a flow meter ever discussed by anyone on

         19          the rig?
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         20               A.   I don't remember a discussion about

         21          the flow meter.  

         22               Q.   Do you understand or have general

         23          knowledge of the importance of measuring the

         24          returns?

         25                    MR. EASON:
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          1                                   Once again, it goes to well

          2                    control, Your Honor -- Captain.

          3                    MR. PENTON:

          4                                   Well, general knowledge is what

          5                    I've just -- general knowledge.  I'm

          6                    not trying to push him too far.  I'm

          7                    just trying to put my toes in the water

          8                    here.

          9                              MR. DYKES:

         10                                        It's a fair question.

         11                    THE WITNESS:

         12                                   Yes.

         13          BY MR. PENTON:

         14               Q.   There was a discussion?

         15               A.   No.  You asked if I understood the

         16          need to measure the returns?

         17               Q.   Yes.

         18               A.   Certainly a steady state of drilling,

         19          yes.
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         20               Q.   You have a general well control

         21          knowledge to allow you to do your job then?

         22               A.   Yes.

         23               Q.   You understand flow-in, flow-out and

         24          pit gain are critical measurements, correct?

         25               A.   I understand this, yes.
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          1                    MR. PENTON:

          2                                   That's all I have, sir.  Thank you.

          3                    MR: DYKES:

          4                                   I've got a couple of follow-up

          5                    questions.

          6                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          7          BY MR. DYKES:

          8               Q.   You had a 450 barrel loss circulation

          9          material pill that you had combined out of two

         10          separate pills.  So take an average, if you

         11          have two, you have two 225 barrel pills,

         12          originally?

         13               A.   I don't remember exactly what the pit

         14          volumes were, but yes.

         15               Q.   Somewhere in that ballpark?

         16               A.   Somewhere in that ballpark.

         17               Q.   Why didn't you only use one and just

         18          dump the other one overboard?

         19               A.   We couldn't dump overboard because of
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         20          the way BP -- well, and this is, I'm speaking

         21          for BP.  This is my understanding of it.  That

         22          according to the RECRA Act, they couldn't just

         23          discharge something that hadn't been

         24          circulated through the well, the wellhead --

         25               Q.   The wellbore?
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          1               A.   -- because it wouldn't be an exempt

          2          waste.

          3               Q.   So to be in compliance with the

          4          National Pollution Discharge Elimination

          5          System requirements, also known as the NPDES?

          6               A.   I don't know that, plus I am not an

          7          environmental lawyer, but I thought the RECRA

          8          Act was different than the NPDES.  But it is

          9          an environmental act from what I understand.

         10               Q.   So the fluid has to come in contact

         11          with the wellbore before it can be discharged

         12          overboard.

         13               A.   In order to be considered an exempted

         14          waste, right.  And that, of course, it can't

         15          be a synthetic fluid.  That's beyond the pale

         16          but a water based -- if you're going to dump a

         17          water based thing, you couldn't just build it

         18          in your pit and dump it.

         19               Q.   But you can build it in your pits,
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         20          pump it down the hole, take it right back up

         21          the backside and dump it overboard?

         22               A.   If you use it for something.

         23               Q.   So even though common practice is 180

         24          to 200 barrel spacer, we can combine this, an

         25          uncommon practice, and pump it to get through
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          1          an environmental requirement that you can't

          2          just make it and dump it, you have to pump it

          3          down the hole and bring it back up?

          4               A.   That's --

          5               Q.   I'm just trying to understand.  If you

          6          had two separate pills --

          7               A.   Yes.

          8               Q.   -- why just -- why not just pump one

          9          and get rid of the other.  And you're telling

         10          me because you can't because of either RECRA

         11          or the NPDES requirements.

         12                    MR. EASON:

         13                                   Mr. Dykes, I'm not telling him not

         14                    to answer the question, but he answered

         15                    it previously by stating that BP made

         16                    that decision.

         17          BY MR. DYKES:

         18               Q.   But I'm trying to make sure I

         19          understand the issue here.  And it's because
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         20          to meet the requirements for an exempt waste,

         21          or exempt discharge, it's got to come in

         22          contact with the wellbore.  It's got to be

         23          used.

         24               A.   Circulated through the well, yes.

         25                    MR. DYKES:
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          1                                   Thank you.

          2                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          3                                   BP?

          4                    BY MS. KARIS:

          5                                   No questions at this time.

          6                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          7                                   Thank you, ma'am.  Transocean?

          8                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          9          BY MR. KOHNKE:

         10               Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Lindner.

         11               A.   Good afternoon.

         12               Q.   I'm Ned Kohnke.  I represent

         13          Transocean and I have just one quick area to

         14          cover.  And it's about the -- after the 7:30

         15          conference call or telephone call that you

         16          said you participated in, you said you were

         17          called to the office by Bob Kaluza; is that

         18          correct?

         19               A.   That's correct.
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         20               Q.   And I thought you said he wanted to go

         21          over the negative tests with you.

         22               A.   Well, how we'd been displacing and

         23          conducting the negative test.  The particulars

         24          of the negative test, I don't know.  I just

         25          know the general idea.
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          1               Q.   And I understand that negative testing

          2          is not your forte, but in terms of the

          3          conversation, was he telling you how they were

          4          going to line up this negative test and what

          5          he wanted from you?  Is that what the

          6          conversation was about?

          7               A.   I briefly explained to him how the rig

          8          had been conducting their negative tests and

          9          he just wanted -- Bob wasn't the regular

         10          company man on the HORIZON.

         11               Q.   And can you tell us how did the rig

         12          regularly or typically do a negative test, did

         13          you then explain to him?

         14               A.   Right.  In, I guess, the last few

         15          months, we'd been using a particular method

         16          where we would displace choke, kill and boost

         17          with seawater, pump the spacer down the drill

         18          pipe, up the annulus and above the upper

         19          annular, and close that upper annular.  And
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         20          then the rig would conduct a negative test.  I

         21          don't know how, you know, what they had to

         22          bleed off or what exactly they did, but

         23          getting it in that position I understood.

         24               Q.   And then you said a short while later

         25          you received a phone call from Brian Morel?
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          1               A.   That's correct.

          2               Q.   What was that phone call about?

          3               A.   Basically, the same thing.  He wanted

          4          to just confirm how the rig had been doing the

          5          negative test.

          6               Q.   And about what time did the phone call

          7          to Brian Morel finish?

          8               A.   Actually, he called me.  He paged me,

          9          I believe or he called the office.  I'm not

         10          sure which and I went down there to his

         11          office.  This was a face-to-face meeting.  And

         12          how long did the conversation last?

         13               Q.   Yes.

         14               A.   A handful of minutes.  It wasn't very

         15          long.

         16               Q.   Well, what I meant to say is when did

         17          it finish, about what time of day?

         18               A.   It had to be -- well, he left the rig

         19          at 11.  So it had to be prior to that, but I
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         20          don't recall exactly.

         21               Q.   Prior to displacing?

         22               A.   Yes, it was prior to displacing until

         23          that afternoon.

         24                    MR. KOHNKE:

         25                                   Thank you, sir.  That's all.
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          1                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          2                                   Thank you, sir.  Anadarko?

          3          

          4                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          5          BY MR. KIRBY:

          6               Q.   Hello, Mr. Lindner.  My name is Ky

          7          Kirby and I represent Anadarko and Moex

          8          Offshore.  You were testifying a moment ago in

          9          response to Mr. Kohnke's questions about the

         10          conversation you had with Mr. Kaluza about how

         11          the rig was normally doing its negative

         12          testing, correct?

         13               A.   Yes.

         14               Q.   What's the difference between the

         15          negative testing that you described to Mr.

         16          Kaluza and what was actually done, as you

         17          understand it?

         18               A.   As I understand it.  Well, the only

         19          thing I can think of is that when the rig,
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         20          when they closed the upper annular, there was

         21          some fluid that fell from the riser.  I know

         22          they had to fill the riser.  But that wasn't

         23          -- that wasn't in the plan.

         24               Q.   You testified earlier that one of the

         25          unusual aspects of the displacement here was
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          1          down to 83 --

          2               A.   67.  That's true, yes.

          3               Q.   Right, and --

          4               A.   Because usually it's 300 feet below

          5          the mud line and 8367 is much further down

          6          than usual.

          7               Q.   And when you say usual, is that what

          8          the rig was usually doing, the 300 below mud

          9          line and not --

         10               A.   As a general, yes.  300 feet below the

         11          mud line was pretty typical -- 

         12               Q.   That's another difference, correct?

         13               A.   It is.

         14               Q.   So what was your understanding of why

         15          Mr. Kaluza was asking you how the rig does a

         16          negative test.  Did you see any approved tests

         17          from BP at all?

         18               A.   An approved test?  I didn't see an

         19          approved test from BP and I don't know what
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         20          Mr. Kaluza's state of mind was.  So I don't

         21          know why he asking that.

         22               Q.   Just curiosity maybe?

         23                    MR. EASON:

         24                                   I'm going to object to the

         25                    speculation.  Already asked and
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          1                    answered.

          2                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          3                                   I agree with M-I SWACO.

          4          BY MS. KIRBY:

          5               Q.   Did you hold yourself out as a

          6          negative testing expert to Mr. Kaluza?

          7               A.   Not at all.

          8               Q.   Did he tell you why he was asking you

          9          versus anyone else?

         10               A.   No.

         11               Q.   The two pills that you testified were

         12          used, was one mixed on that day, April 20th?

         13               A.   If I recall correctly, it was prior. 

         14          It was prior to -- it could have been earlier

         15          that morning like 1 o'clock.

         16               Q.   And the other one?

         17               A.   Oh, you mean like mixed together --

         18          those two pills mixed together?

         19               Q.   No.  You had two pills, correct?  How
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         20          old was the one pill; how old was the other

         21          pill?

         22               A.   Both pills were mixed two weeks prior

         23          to the event.

         24               Q.   Was there any Form-A-Set material in

         25          either of the pills?
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          1               A.   Form-A-Set, yes.  One pill was Form-A-

          2          Set; one was Form-A-Squeeze.

          3               Q.   And was there any Form-A-Squeeze test?

          4               A.   Yes.

          5               Q.   There was.  Tell us, please, what the

          6          purpose of Form-A-Squeeze is.

          7               A.   Form-A-Squeeze -- it's a material that

          8          compresses against the porous surface and

          9          dewaters, leaving the plug.

         10               Q.   So it's a loss -- what they call a --

         11               A.   It's a loss circulation pill.

         12               Q.   So when you start losing mud while

         13          you're drilling and it's because your

         14          formation is breaking down, you put the Form-

         15          A-Squeeze in there so that it will essentially

         16          fill up that spot and hold it tight; is that

         17          right?

         18               A.   That is what its purpose, yes.

         19               Q.   So it hardens, in other words?
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         20               A.   It dewaters.  That means the water

         21          phase gets shoved into the formation and the

         22          Form-A-Squeeze material creates a plug so the

         23          whole pill itself does not harden.

         24               Q.   And Form-A-Set, what does it do?

         25               A.   Form-A-Set does if you add what's
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          1          called an accelerant.  It causes the pill to

          2          cross link, which was not added.  

          3               Q.   So the accelerant was not added?

          4               A.   The accelerant was not added.

          5               Q.   So you had a Form-A-Squeeze pill,

          6          true?

          7               A.   True.

          8               Q.   Mixed two weeks earlier, correct?

          9               A.   Yes.

         10               Q.   And you had a Form-A-Set pill mixed

         11          two weeks earlier, correct?

         12               A.   Uh-huh (affirmative response).

         13               Q.   And no one wanted to have to keep

         14          either one of those pills, correct?

         15               A.   Yes.

         16               Q.   And who was it --

         17               A.   Well, again --

         18               Q.   Who was it that didn't want to keep

         19          those pills?
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         20               A.   It's BP.

         21               Q.   BP told you it did not want to keep

         22          the pills?

         23               A.   They didn't want to have to dispose of

         24          them, yes.

         25               Q.   If you didn't use the pills, you
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          1          testified before that if you used them

          2          downhole, then you could have an exemption as

          3          drilling fluid, right?

          4               A.   As an exempt waste, from what I

          5          understand.

          6               Q.   What if you hadn't used them that way,

          7          what would have had -- what would the rig have

          8          had to do --

          9               A.   We would have had -- I wouldn't know

         10          exactly where they would have to send it.  I

         11          presume Newport does disposal so it would have

         12          had to be disposed of.

         13               Q.   Hazardous waste disposal, right?

         14               A.   Yes.

         15               Q.   When these pills are, either one or

         16          both, when they're mixed, do they have a milky

         17          fluid, milky white fluid look?

         18               A.   A milky white fluid, but it looked

         19          like a gray drilling fluid.
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         20               Q.   Like a what?  A gray?

         21               A.   Gray.

         22               Q.   Have you ever heard anybody

         23          characterize it as looking like snot?

         24               A.   It wasn't quite snotty.

         25               Q.   But it was close?
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          1               A.   It was thick.  It was thick, but it

          2          was still fluid.

          3               Q.   So it was very viscous?

          4               A.   Yes.

          5               Q.   And really the only reason for putting

          6          those two pills down there was just to get rid

          7          of them; is that your understanding?

          8                    MR. EASON:

          9                                   Objection.  If you know the answer

         10                    to the question.

         11                    THE WITNESS:

         12                                   To my knowledge -- well, it filled

         13                    a function that we needed a spacer.  We

         14                    then had to build another one without

         15                    it.

         16          BY MS. KIRBY:

         17               Q.   Are these two materials, the Form-A-

         18          Squeeze and the Form-A-Set, are they

         19          specifically designed for application of
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         20          spacers?

         21               A.   No.

         22               Q.   But it was felt that this would be

         23          alright in this instance?

         24                    MR. EASON

         25                                   Let me object to the form as to who
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          1                    made that decision and "it was felt",

          2                    you can answer the question?

          3                    MS. KIRBY:

          4                                   I can't hear either.

          5                    MR. EASON:

          6                                   I was objecting to the question

          7                    because she said "if it was felt"

          8                    implying that Mr. Lindner made that

          9                    decision.

         10                              MS. KIRBY:

         11                                        I'll rephrase.

         12          BY MS. KIRBY:

         13               Q.   Did someone tell you that nonetheless

         14          it would be safe to use it for this

         15          application?

         16               A.   I remember seeing one e-mail from the

         17          BP mud specialist saying it would be okay.

         18               Q.   And who was that?

         19               A.   His name is John Lebleu.
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         20               Q.   John Lebleu.  And who was that e-mail

         21          to?

         22               A.   I don't remember exactly who was

         23          copied on it, but I know I was because I saw

         24          it.

         25               Q.   When was that e-mail copied to you,
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          1          what date?

          2               A.   I can't recall -- I can't recall at

          3          the moment what day it was.

          4               Q.   It wasn't the day of the event?

          5               A.   It was prior to the day of the event.

          6               Q.   Did you have a general sense, one day,

          7          two days, three days?

          8               A.   My general sense is that it was prior

          9          to the  20th.  It would have to be a few days

         10          before that because we had to get everybody

         11          onboard before we did such a thing.

         12               Q.   Who specifically at BP said it would

         13          be okay to use the spacer above the mud

         14          specialist?

         15               A.   Um --

         16               Q.   To use this type of spacer?

         17               A.   I thought I just answered that.

         18               Q.   You said mud specialist, right?

         19               A.   Oh, yes.
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         20               Q.   Anybody besides that at BP.

         21               A.   That it would be okay?

         22               Q.   Yes.  Who else was on the e-mail?

         23               A.   It was just generally, I believe the

         24          drilling engineers were on it; BPs

         25          environmental people were on it; Doyle Maxie
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          1          was copied and I -- well, I say I, the mud

          2          engineers.  There could have been other people

          3          there, but I can't quite recall who was on the

          4          list.

          5               Q.   Can you remember any names?

          6               A.   Not specifically and I don't remember

          7          quite exactly what names were on it.

          8               Q.   The Form-A-Set, does it set up more

          9          quickly with heat or cold; does it matter?

         10               A.   Heat matters.

         11               Q.   Heat matters.  So the hotter it is

         12          the --

         13               A.   Well, again with the accelerant in it. 

         14          It would need the accelerant in order for it

         15          to function.

         16               Q.   So it doesn't have that setting

         17          property without the accelerant at all?

         18               A.   Not to my knowledge.

         19               Q.   Now, you said that you designed the
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         20          displacement program, right?

         21               A.   Yes.  I typed up the calculations.  We

         22          use a pretty much -- pretty much the same

         23          form, but I typed up the strokes.

         24               Q.   When you design the displacement

         25          program, you have to know a little bit
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          1          something about how much you are going to use

          2          the spacer, right, the volumes?

          3               A.   Uh-huh (affirmative response).

          4               Q.   So you already knew, before you

          5          designed the displacement program, what -- you 

          6          were going to use 400 and some-odd barrels,

          7          right?

          8               A.   Yes.

          9               Q.   And you designed that program on the

         10          20th, is that what you said?

         11               A.   At that point, we didn't know whether

         12          we were going to displace.  I understand BP is

         13          waiting to hear -- I think dispensation was

         14          the word I heard as to whether or not they

         15          could displace 300 feet below the mud line or

         16          8367.

         17               Q.   And what did you understand the reason

         18          to be for the 8367?

         19               A.   I'm afraid I don't know. 
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         20               Q.   You never understood that?

         21               A.   No.

         22               Q.   You said that you did not expect that

         23          you would be putting spacer across the blow-

         24          out preventer?

         25               A.   It wasn't -- it wasn't what we were
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          1          planning.

          2               Q.   It wasn't what you were planning.  Did

          3          you think there was a risk, given how much

          4          more you were pumping?

          5               A.   At some point you're going to run that

          6          spacer across the BOP anyway in order to

          7          displace so --

          8               Q.   But were you planning to start there? 

          9          Were you planning to put the bottom of your

         10          spacer there?  How far down did you want the

         11          bottom of your spacer to go?

         12               A.   Above the upper annular.  When I say

         13          up --

         14               Q.   Above the upper annular.  But you knew

         15          there was a risk that it would go across the

         16          BOP, right?

         17               A.   A risk -- any spacer would have to go

         18          across the BOP to displace the hole.

         19               Q.   Did the pumps shut down other than the
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         20          time you -- I think testified that you told

         21          people to shut the pumps down at what, 5 -- 5

         22          o'clock?

         23                              MR. EASON:

         24                                        Could you clarify that?

         25                              THE WITNESS:
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          1                                        You mean the rig pumps --

          2          BY MS. KIRBY:

          3               Q.   Yes.

          4               A.   -- or are you talking about the mixing

          5          pumps to the boat?

          6               Q.   Oh, is that what you were talking

          7          about the mixing pumps? 

          8               A.   I was talking about the mixing pumps

          9          to the boat, not the rig pumps.

         10               Q.   And you started to see spacer coming

         11          out, is that what was happening?

         12               A.   No, no, no.

         13               Q.   Why did you stop the pump?

         14               A.   No, no.  Can I explain?

         15               Q.   Go ahead.

         16               A.   The rig pumps pump on the well.  The

         17          mixing pumps transfer mud to the boat.  I

         18          asked Roy Kemp to stop transferring mud to the

         19          boat.  And as far as seeing the spacer, I
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         20          wasn't up actually when they displaced the

         21          riser.

         22               Q.   So you didn't actually see it?

         23               A.   No, I did not.

         24               Q.   You asked them to stop displacing the

         25          mud to the DAMON BANKSTON?
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          1               A.   I asked them to stop pumping the mud

          2          from the pits.

          3               Q.   Did they actually stop, as far as you

          4          know?

          5               A.   As far as I know, yes.

          6               Q.   How do you believe that they could

          7          monitor for losses or gains when they were

          8          displacing mud at the same time?

          9               A.   It was necessary for us to do that in

         10          order to get ready for the other displacement. 

         11          Spotting the pill was just preparing for the

         12          first negative test.  The displacement would

         13          come later.

         14               Q.   I understand.  But my question is

         15          really pretty small.  How do you think they

         16          could monitor for gains or losses if they are

         17          displacing mud off the boat at the same time?

         18               A.   I don't know.

         19               Q.   They can't, to your knowledge; is that
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         20          right?

         21               A.   I don't know.

         22               Q.   The negative test that was done, did

         23          it come to your attention that there was 1,400

         24          psi in the drill pipe?

         25               A.   I had overhead that.
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          1               Q.   And what was your reaction to that?

          2               A.   I wasn't frightened.  I was of the

          3          mind that the rig would come to the right

          4          conclusion about what was causing that

          5          pressure.

          6               Q.   You were of the mind that they would

          7          find the right solution, is that what you

          8          said?

          9               A.   Yes.

         10               Q.   So they'd figure it out, that's what

         11          you were thinking?

         12               A.   Yes. 

         13               Q.   But the 1,400, that meant something

         14          was wrong to you; is that right?

         15               A.   I can't speculate.  It certainly

         16          indicated something could be wrong.  I didn't

         17          have all the facts to my knowledge, nor do I

         18          have a very extensive understanding of well

         19          control.  So...
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         20               Q.   You testified earlier that you

         21          understood a successful test was no pressure,

         22          right?

         23               A.   Right.

         24               Q.   And in this case there was 1,400 on

         25          one and zero on the other right?
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          1               A.   That's right.

          2               Q.   And have you been around to see a lot

          3          of negative tests?

          4               A.   I've seen a few, but -- yes, I've seen

          5          a few.

          6               Q.   And this one was off; is that fair to

          7          say?

          8               A.   I couldn't make that determination.  I

          9          don't know what was off and what wasn't.

         10               Q.   Did you hear anybody providing a

         11          reason that sounded like a good explanation to

         12          decide the test was okay?

         13               A.   I didn't hear one.

         14               Q.   Did you hear something like a bladder

         15          effect or some strange explanation?

         16               A.   I didn't -- I didn't hear that, no.

         17               Q.   Have you ever heard of a bladder

         18          effect?

         19               A.   No, I have not heard of a bladder
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         20          effect.

         21               Q.   It sounds like you were about to tell

         22          me, but you've heard of something else?

         23               A.   No, but I haven't heard of the bladder

         24          effect.

         25               Q.   I think I'm about done.  Let me just
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          1          double check here.  Who was it that told you

          2          -- I'm sorry, the way to get the mud out of

          3          the riser to the flow line and then over to

          4          the DAMON BANKSTON.  Who told you to do that? 

          5          I didn't get that.

          6               A.   Who told me to do it?

          7               Q.   Right.

          8               A.   It's the way we've done it.  I don't

          9          ever remember specifically being told, but it

         10          was the conventional way of --

         11               Q.   Can you tell me was it BP, was it

         12          someone from Transocean?

         13               A.   I mean ultimately, it would be BP that

         14          would at least give the tacit authority to do

         15          so.

         16               Q.   Do you know how much of the material,

         17          whether it's Form-A-Set or anything else, was

         18          bled off after they saw the 1,400 psi?

         19               A.   I don't have direct knowledge of that.
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         20               Q.   You don't?

         21               A.   No.

         22               Q.   Have you had occasion to talk to

         23          anyone outside the presence of counsel about

         24          the use of these two different pills and how

         25          any role that might have contributed to what
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          1          occurred, outside of the presence of counsel.

          2                    MR. EASON:

          3                                        It's also calling for well control

          4                              expertise.

          5                              CAPT NGUYEN:

          6                                   You don't have to answer that

          7                    question.

          8                    THE WITNESS:

          9                                   I don't know.

         10                    MS. KIRBY:

         11                                   You don't know.  I have no more. 

         12                    Thank you.

         13                              MR. GORDON:

         14                                        Captain, I just have one question.

         15                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         16                                   Hold on for a minute.  If Doug

         17                    Brown has a question, let me just go

         18                    down the list again to be fair. 

         19                    Cameron?
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         20                    MR. JONES:

         21                                   No questions, Captain.

         22                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         23                                   Sure.  Halliburton?

         24                    MR. GODWIN:

         25                                   No questions, Captain.
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          1                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          2                                   Yes, sir.  Weatherford?

          3                    MR. LEMOINE:

          4                                   No questions, Captain.

          5                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          6                                   M-I SWACO?

          7                    MR. EASON:

          8                                   No questions.

          9                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         10                                   Thanks.  Dril--Quip?

         11                    MR. KAPLAN:

         12                                   No questions.

         13                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         14                                   Thank you, sir.  Douglas Brown?

         15                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         16          BY MR. GORDON:

         17               Q.   Steve Gordon.  Can you tell me did you

         18          think that the BANKSTON was receiving mud

         19          until -- for instance, you got out of bed?
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         20               A.   Are you asking --

         21                    MR. EASON:

         22                                   Do you understand the question?  I

         23                    think it's awfully vague.  Because you

         24                    said they stopped pumping around 4:30. 

         25                    He was in bed after 7:30 --
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          1          BY MR. GORDON:

          2               Q.   When do you think the BANKSTON stopped

          3          receiving any type of fluid, what time?

          4               A.   At the time of the event, I didn't

          5          know -- well, when did it stop receiving

          6          fluid?

          7               Q.   Yes, sir.

          8               A.   At 5, 4:30, 5 o'clock, something like

          9          that.

         10                    MR. GORDON:

         11                                   That's it.  Thank you.

         12                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         13                                   Thank you, sir.  Curt Kuchta?

         14                    MR. SCHONEKAS:

         15                                   No questions.

         16                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         17                                   Thank you.  Jimmy Harrell?

         18                    MR. FANNING:

         19                                   No, thank you.
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         20                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         21                                   Mike Williams?

         22                    MR. PENTON:

         23                                   No questions, Captain.

         24                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         25                                   BP?
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          1                    MS. KARIS:

          2                                   Yes, we have a few.

          3                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          4          BY MS. KARIS:

          5               Q.   Good afternoon, sir.  Hariklia Karis

          6          for BP.  I have a few follow-up questions in

          7          light of the testimony you just gave.  I want

          8          to first talk about the procedures, the M-I

          9          SWACO procedures that you provided to BP

         10          called a displacement procedure that I believe

         11          Mr. Mathews asked you about previously.  Those

         12          are M-I SWACO's procedures, correct?

         13               A.   These are procedures that have been

         14          okayed by BP, but yes, we recommend those

         15          procedures.

         16               Q.   And I want to be clear.  SWACO

         17          recommended those procedures, correct?

         18               A.   Yes.

         19               Q.   SWACO --
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         20               A.   Wait, wait.  As opposed to like how we

         21          were going to do the negative test?

         22               Q.   No, in terms of recommending the

         23          displacement procedures that were on the

         24          documents that Mr. Mathews provided you with.

         25               A.   But yeah, the displacement procedure
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          1          calls for a way of doing the negative test

          2          that was prompted by BP.  So when you say it's

          3          M-I's procedure, it's M-I's procedure as far

          4          as calculating strokes and doing what BP

          5          wanted to do.

          6               Q.   Let's break that up a little then. 

          7          One of the things that's in here is the

          8          recommendation to use 425 barrels for spacer,

          9          correct?

         10               A.   Yes.

         11               Q.   And that recommendation, to use 425

         12          barrels for the spacer, was that SWACO's

         13          recommendation?

         14               A.   Only SWACO's --

         15               Q.   Was SWACO the one that initially

         16          proposed using 425 barrels as part of the

         17          spacer?

         18               A.   I really don't know how to answer

         19          that.
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         20               Q.   You don't know how to answer it

         21          because you don't know whether SWACO was the

         22          one that proposed using 425 barrels for a

         23          spacer?

         24               A.   The idea to use the LCM pill as a

         25          spacer was something -- I don't know exactly
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          1          where the idea came from.   

          2               Q.   I see.  Now, do you know who Maxie

          3          Doyle is?

          4               A.   Doyle Maxie.

          5               Q.   I'm sorry, Doyle Maxie?

          6               A.   Yes.

          7               Q.   And do you know whether Doyle Maxie

          8          originally proposed using the 425 barrels?

          9               A.   I don't.

         10               Q.   Now, you testified earlier that you

         11          believe that Mr. Lebleu at BP gave some kind

         12          of go-ahead.  Do you recall that?

         13               A.   Yes.

         14               Q.   Were you involved in those

         15          discussions?

         16               A.   I believe I sent an e-mail and asked

         17          the environmental people if this was going to

         18          be okay.  At the prompting of BP, I sent that

         19          e-mail and I believe his response was he
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         20          didn't see a problem with it.

         21               Q.   So let me go back to my question.  The

         22          communications from Mr. Lebleu that you

         23          referenced earlier, did it say go ahead, as

         24          you indicated previously when you testified?

         25               A.   I believe if he says, "There's no
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          1          problem with this," that's a go ahead.

          2               Q.   Have you seen that e-mail recently?

          3               A.   No, I haven't.

          4               Q.   And do you know whether in that e-mail

          5          Mr. Lebleu is responding to Doyle Maxie's

          6          proposal to use that spacer and to use it as a

          7          buffer between the reliant system and the

          8          seawater and to discharge it overboard once it

          9          has been circulated through the wellbore?

         10                    MR. EASON:

         11                                   Objection.  He just testified he

         12                    never saw the e-mail in question.

         13          BY MS. KARIS:

         14               Q.   I believe he testified he saw that e-

         15          mail.

         16               A.   That one.  But --

         17               Q.   In that same e-mail?

         18               A.   That same e-mail?

         19               Q.   Yes.
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         20               A.   I don't recall the whole e-mail, I

         21          guess.

         22               Q.   You don't recall whether it was Doyle

         23          Maxie that actually recommended and proposed

         24          the use of that 425 barrel spacer; is that

         25          correct?
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          1               A.   I really don't recall.

          2               Q.   And do you recall whether, in fact, if

          3          Doyle -- excuse me, Mr. Doyle was the one that

          4          agreed that 425 barrels should be used as part

          5          of this displacement procedure?

          6               A.   I believe Doyle had an understanding

          7          of what was going on and gave his okay with

          8          it.

          9               Q.   So just to be clear, Doyle is with

         10          SWACO, correct?

         11               A.   It's with M-I SWACO.  

         12               Q.   M-I SWACO, excuse me.  Correct?

         13               A.   Yes.

         14               Q.   And Mr. Doyle gave his go ahead before

         15          you put that procedure in the negative

         16          displacement procedure that you provided to

         17          BP, correct?

         18                    MR. EASON:

         19                                   Objection.  The term negative and
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         20                    displacement used in the same

         21                    phraseology. They are two different

         22                    things.  The negative test versus

         23                    displacement procedure.

         24                    MS. KARIS:

         25                                   Sir, do you understand the

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (678 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:21 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

                                                                      340

          1                    question?  If you don't, I apologize. 

          2                    I can rephrase it.

          3                    THE WITNESS:

          4                                   Please rephrase it.

          5                    MS. KARIS:

          6                                   Sure.

          7          BY MR. KARIS:

          8               Q.   After this communication with Mr.

          9          Doyle in which he gave the go ahead for the

         10          425 barrels, did you then provide a document

         11          on SWACO's letterhead to BP titled, "Reliant

         12          displacement procedure?"

         13               A.   Are you saying Doyle gave the go ahead

         14          in that question?

         15               Q.   I did. 

         16               A.   Well, M-I doesn't give the go ahead on

         17          the rig.  Ultimately, all go aheads go from BP

         18          down.

         19               Q.   I'm talking about before you provided
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         20          BP with the reliant displacement procedure

         21          that Mr. Mathews had you look at previously

         22          and Mr. Doyle --

         23               A.   Right. But I'm making a distinction

         24          and within your question you're implying that

         25          Doyle Maxie had the say as to what to use for
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          1          the displacer and I don't think he has that

          2          authority.

          3               Q.   I thought you told me previously that

          4          Mr. Doyle and Mr. Lebleu had communicated and

          5          Mr. Doyle was aware and agreed to the 425

          6          barrels.

          7               A.   That's different from saying he gave

          8          the go ahead.  That's different than saying

          9          that he determined what was going to happen.

         10               Q.   Let me rephrase.  After Mr. Doyle

         11          agreed to the 425 barrel spacer that is

         12          proposed by him in his e-mail, after that, is

         13          that when provided to BP the displacement

         14          procedure that is in this exhibit.

         15               A.   The displacement procedure came after

         16          that.

         17               Q.   Now, did you ever discuss a concern or

         18          a disagreement with using a 425 barrel spacer?

         19               A.   No.
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         20               Q.   Did you ever have any discussions with

         21          Mr. Doyle in which he agreed to using a 425

         22          barrel spacer?

         23               A.   I can't recall the exact day we had a

         24          conversation, but as a project engineer I

         25          talked with him pretty much every day and I'm
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          1          sure the topic came up.

          2               Q.   And I may have misspoken.  What I

          3          intended to ask you is whether Mr. Doyle ever

          4          expressed to you any disagreement --

          5               A.   No.

          6               Q.   -- with the proposal to use 425

          7          barrels as a spacer?

          8               A.   Not that I recall.

          9               Q.   At any time through the evening of

         10          April 20th of 2010, did you ever communicate to

         11          anyone at BP a disagreement about using 425

         12          barrels as a spacer?

         13               A.   No.

         14               Q.   I want to talk about something

         15          different now.  You also talked about the

         16          offloading procedure that was being used,

         17          correct?  Do you recall that?

         18               A.   Yes.

         19               Q.   And I believe the words that you used
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         20          were that BP had tacit authority.  Do you

         21          recall using that phrase?

         22               A.   Tacit authority?

         23               Q.   Yes.

         24               A.   Did I say tacit authority?

         25                              MR. EASON:
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          1                                        If you remember, you remember.

          2          BY MS. KARIS:

          3               Q.   If you recall.

          4               A.   Well, a tacit authority -- are you

          5          sure that's the phrase that I used?

          6               Q.   Well, let's back up then.  Regardless

          7          of whether you used that phrase, did you have

          8          an understanding as to whose proposal it was

          9          to use the offloading procedure that was being

         10          used that night?

         11               A.   Did I have the understanding of whose

         12          offloading procedure?

         13               Q.   Yes.

         14                    MR. SCAFF:

         15                                   When you say, "that night," could

         16                    you narrow it down --

         17          BY MR. KARIS:

         18               Q.   Sure, the offloading that was taking

         19          place during the negative testing that you
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         20          referenced earlier in response to counsel for

         21          Anadarko's questions.

         22               A.   When I went over the displacement

         23          procedure, there was a BP representative there

         24          and there was no objection to it.  We actually

         25          had to make room in our pits to accommodate
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          1          the rest of the displacement.  

          2               Q.   What other company's representatives

          3          were there during these discussions?

          4               A.   Sperry Sun, Transocean, M-I, BP and I

          5          don't recall any other at this point.

          6               Q.   And which company's personnel is

          7          carrying out this procedure for the offloading

          8          directly?

          9               A.   Well, actually we'll write the

         10          displacement procedure, but Transocean will do

         11          the actual work.

         12               Q.   And did anybody from Transocean

         13          express that they disagreed with this

         14          procedure that you referenced?

         15               A.   No.

         16               Q.   Do you know which company's employees

         17          are charged with monitoring the returns for

         18          the displacement procedure.

         19               A.   Sperry Sun on Mud loggers and that's
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         20          part of their role.

         21               Q.   And is Transocean's personnel charged

         22          with watching those monitors?

         23               A.   They also have monitors on the rig

         24          floor. 

         25               Q.   And is it your understanding that
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          1          these flow meters that you reference, that

          2          those meters are to be monitored by

          3          Transocean's personnel?

          4               A.   I'm not sure whose obligation it falls

          5          to.

          6                    MS. KARIS:

          7                                   Fair enough.  Thank you.  No

          8                    further questions.

          9                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         10                                   Thank you very much.  Any follow-up

         11                    questions for the PIIs?

         12                    MS. KIRBY:

         13                                   Briefly.

         14                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         15                                   Yes, ma'am.

         16                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         17          BY MS. KIRBY:

         18               Q.   Mr. Lindner, you said that you had

         19          them stop the offloading at 5 p.m.; is that
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         20          right?

         21               A.   Around that time.  I didn't look at my

         22          watch and do it.  I didn't look at my watch,

         23          when I called Roy, but it's around then.

         24               Q.   And you did that because you thought

         25          they might have to reverse out.
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          1               A.   If that were, if that were to happen

          2          we would have had to actually bring mud back

          3          from the boat and to send any more mud to the

          4          boat would have -- I wanted to be able to go

          5          in either direction.

          6               Q.   Explain to us what you understand

          7          about why there might be a need to reverse

          8          out.

          9               A.   The upper annular didn't hold and it

         10          lost some fluid.  I understand that they had

         11          some pressures that weren't normal.  So I was

         12          kind of hedging my bets.  I didn't know -- I

         13          didn't know what steps were going be taken

         14          next.

         15               Q.   So you were worried about all of that

         16          pressure that you were seeing?

         17                    MR. EASON:

         18                                   Objection.  Conclusion reached by

         19                    counsel.  You can answer the question.
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         20                    THE WITNESS:

         21                                   Well, I wasn't worried in that

         22                    sense but I knew that we had perhaps a

         23                    divergent path here and I didn't know

         24                    which direction to take.  I mean, I

         25                    want to be prepared for it.  If I were
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          1                    worried -- I wasn't worried at the

          2                    time.

          3          BY MS. KIRBY:

          4               Q.   And the displacement program that you

          5          wrote when you wrote the part about the

          6          negative testing, that comes out of a

          7          conversation with who?

          8               A.   Like the negative testing -- my role

          9          in this, in the negative test, is really to

         10          get into position to conduct a negative test. 

         11          I don't know what valves are going to close or

         12          what pressure they're going to bleed off.  So

         13          really the displacement features only covers

         14          up to the point where they conduct a negative

         15          test.

         16               Q.   And so someone told you this is how

         17          we're going to do it.  We're going to displace

         18          first and then we're going to perform the

         19          negative test?
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         20               A.   Right.

         21               Q.   And do you recall who told you that?

         22               A.   It was the BP company representative. 

         23          Well, this was the method that he brought to

         24          the rig and we had used it several times.  And

         25          it worked very well.  It was exceptional on
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          1          the rig and so we used it -- I say we used it,

          2          but the rig used it in this particular case.

          3               Q.   And this BP company representative was

          4          who?  Which one?

          5               A.   Murray Sepulvado.

          6               Q.   And he was on the rig or was he on the

          7          phone?

          8               A.   Murray Sepulvado wasn't on the rig. 

          9          He wasn't on the phone.  He didn't say, "This

         10          is how you're going to do it," but he's the

         11          one who brought the method over.

         12               Q.   Oh, I see.

         13               A.   Really when Mr. Kaluza called me and

         14          he wanted to know how the rig was doing at

         15          this particular thing and also Brian Morel. 

         16          So...

         17               Q.   And had you been privy to any e-mails

         18          where independently BP was sending around what

         19          its negative test was going to consist of?
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         20               A.   I wasn't privy to them.

         21                    MS. KIRBY:

         22                                   I have no further questions.

         23                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         24          BY MR. MATHEWS:

         25               Q.   Mr. Linder, you just indicated that
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          1          you were going to probably reverse back to the

          2          well because you --

          3               A.   I didn't say probably.  I said there

          4          was a possibility.

          5               Q.   Possibility, excuse me.  But I think

          6          your exact words were the upper annular was

          7          not holding?

          8               A.   You know, the fluid level fell in the

          9          riser.  It may be an assumption on my part

         10          that that's where the -- that that didn't

         11          hold.

         12               Q.   Did anyone else take note to that or

         13          was it only you?

         14               A.   No, I wasn't the only one to take note

         15          of that.

         16               Q.   Who else took note of that?

         17               A.   Transocean.

         18               Q.   Who from Transocean?  Was it the

         19          toolpusher, driller?
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         20               A.   They were all aware of it.  

         21               Q.   Was there any discussion about

         22          continuing forward with the upper annular not

         23          holding?

         24               A.   I wasn't -- I wasn't involved in that

         25          discussion and I don't know that -- I don't
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          1          know that there was a discussion on it.

          2               Q.   And lastly, why would Mr. Sepulvado

          3          encourage or take this practice of displacing

          4          and offloading to the rig?  Was it an issue of

          5          efficiency?

          6                    MR. EASON:

          7                                   If you know the answer -- You can't

          8                    speak for him.

          9                    THE WITNESS:

         10                                   Right.  In this particular case,

         11                    the pumping to the boat was not Mr.

         12                    Sepulvado's position.  How we were

         13                    going to conduct the negative test --

         14                    how the rig was going to conduct the

         15                    negative test, displacing with seawater

         16                    and spotting the spacer.  The pumping

         17                    to the boat was just something the rig

         18                    did.

         19          BY MR. MATHEWS:
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         20               Q.   Does displacing the riser while

         21          offloading to the DAMON BANKSTON increase rig

         22          efficiency?

         23               A.   Yes.

         24                    MR. MATHEWS:

         25                                   Thank you.
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          1                              E X A M I N A T I O N

          2          BY MR. McCARROLL:

          3               Q.   Can I follow up with just a couple of

          4          quick questions on the LCM pill.  I know we've

          5          been through it a couple of times, but I just

          6          want to make sure it's clear.  If you didn't

          7          use the LCM pill for displacement, then what

          8          happened to it?

          9               A.   It would have to be sent in for

         10          disposal, is my understanding.

         11               Q.   Would it be sent in similar to the

         12          mud?  It would be put in the same boat as mud

         13          was being put on now like the BANKSTON?

         14               A.   Probably not like the BANKSTON since

         15          she had synthetic on her and I don't think she

         16          had any empty pits.  So it would have had to

         17          have been another boat.

         18               Q.   You'd have to get another boat out to

         19          dispose of the LCM pill?

file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt (701 of 731) [08/10/2010 2:27:21 PM]



file:////d08ms-yeunoslb3/Unitshares/Hearing_records/Transcripts/Session_3_19-23Jul10/7-19-10.txt

         20               A.   Probably -- if we didn't have another

         21          one at our beck.  I don't recall we having

         22          another boat at our beck at the rig.  I say

         23          our beck, at the rig's services.

         24               Q.   And I may be outside your expertise

         25          here, but would you have to have a boat and
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          1          clean the pits after so there would be some

          2          sort of inconvenience, some special

          3          arrangement?

          4               A.   A water based -- well again, I'm not

          5          sure exactly what that process would be.  I

          6          couldn't responsibly --

          7               Q.  It sounds like LCM pill is pretty

          8          complicated chemically.

          9               A.   I'm not a chemist.  I'm not a chemist

         10          so I'm not going to say whether it --

         11               Q.   But you do know how to mix one, right?

         12               A.   What's that?

         13               Q.   You know how to mix one, right?

         14               A.   Yes, sir.

         15               Q.   And when you mix one kind of what goes

         16          into it?  I mean, just a short recipe.

         17               A.   Well, the Form-A-Set, would just be

         18          water, barite.  The Form-A-Set AK is a kind of

         19          polymer.
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         20                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         21                                   Before you answer that question I

         22                    just want to make sure that, John, that

         23                    it isn't proprietary information that

         24                    you don't want to disclose.  I just

         25                    want to caution you on that.  That's
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          1                    all.

          2                    THE WITNESS:

          3                                   There are sacks of Form-A-Set AK

          4                    that go into it, water, barite, and

          5                    Duovisc. The accelerant is, of course,

          6                    not an add-in so you need to pump it

          7                    right before you pump it.  Form-A-

          8                    Squeeze -- sacks of Form-A-Squeeze,

          9                    water, barite.  So those are the

         10                    constituents of making those two pills. 

         11                    For the Form-A-Set, depending on what

         12                    the temperature is going to be, you may

         13                    also have to add a retarder.

         14                              MR. McCARROLL:

         15                                        Thank you.

         16                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         17                                   Halliburton?

         18                    MR. GODWIN:

         19                                   Thank you, Captain.
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         20          BY MR. GODWIN:

         21               Q.   My name is Don Godwin.  I represent

         22          Halliburton.  In terms of the displacement, do

         23          you know was the Transocean flowout sensor

         24          bypassed?

         25               A.   I don't know.  Are you talking about
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          1          when they were spotting the spacer or at what

          2          point --

          3               Q.   At the time that they were displacing,

          4          before it was going to the boat?

          5               A.   I don't think it was bypassed, no.

          6               Q.   You do not think it was bypassed?

          7               A.   I really don't know.  When we were

          8          spotting the spacer, I believe there was still

          9          a reading from the gallons per minutes out.

         10               Q.   Have you seen the data to verify what

         11          you just said or are you guessing?

         12               A.   If I recall correctly, the screen on

         13          the rig floor, I thought I saw, of course, it

         14          was the rig floor.  I wasn't looking at the

         15          Sperry-Sun screen so you caught me off-guard

         16          there.  I can't testify as to whether it was

         17          bypassed or not.

         18               Q.   Okay, sir.  How about with regard to

         19          the Sperry flowout sensor.  Was the returns
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         20          that were coming back, were they also might

         21          being bypassed through the Sperry sensor

         22          there?

         23               A.   I don't know.  Are you talking about

         24          the gallons per minute out --

         25               Q.   Right. 
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          1               A.   -- and then the sensor is, I

          2          understand, in the flow line.

          3               Q.   Prior going to the boat --

          4               A.   Prior going to the boat --

          5               Q.   -- was the Sperry flowout sensor being

          6          bypassed?

          7               A.   If it's in the flow line, there's no

          8          way to bypass that.

          9               Q.   Have you seen any data to suggest that

         10          it was in the flow line?

         11               A.   I don't know.

         12               Q.   Okay, sir.  How about the mud pit

         13          sensors?  The volumes that were coming back,

         14          they were not going through the mud pits were

         15          they?

         16               A.   Not going through mud pits?

         17               Q.   Right.

         18               A.   Volumes that were going back were

         19          going through the mud pits.
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         20               Q.   They were?

         21               A.   Then going to the boat.  In spotting

         22          the spacer, prior to the first negative 

         23          test --

         24               Q.   Right.

         25               A.   -- the flow line shakers, bypassing
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          1          the sand traps to the mud pits to the boat.

          2               Q.   Have you seen anything, any data to

          3          suggest to you that the volumes that were

          4          going through the mud pit, as you say, were

          5          being monitored?

          6               A.   No, I haven't seen any data.

          7               Q.   Thank you, sir.  So if the Sperry

          8          flowout sensor was being bypassed there would

          9          be no way for the mud logger to monitor the

         10          returns, would there?  Would you agree with

         11          that?

         12               A.   If the sensor was bypassed?  No, there

         13          wouldn't be a way.

         14               Q.   For the mud logger to monitor?

         15               A.   Right.

         16                    MR. GODWIN:

         17                                   Thank you, sir.  Thank you,

         18                    Captain.

         19                    CAPT NGUYEN:
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         20                                   Thank you.  Douglas Brown?

         21                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         22          BY MR. GORDON:

         23               Q.   Could you please tell me the people's

         24          names at Transocean that had knowledge about

         25          the upper annular having perhaps not holding?
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          1               A.   Dewey Revette, Wyman Wheeler --

          2               Q.   I'm sorry?

          3               A.   Wyman Wheeler -- you asked for

          4          Transocean, right?

          5               Q.   Yes, sir.

          6               A.   The ADs on tour: Don Clark, Steve

          7          Curtis -- Transocean person, I can't really

          8          recall anyone right now -- recall anyone

          9          else -- 

         10                         Q.   Miles Ezell?

         11                         A.   Miles -- oh, oh, Randy Ezell.

         12                         Q.   Yes, sir.

         13                         A.   I don't think he was there when it

         14          happened so he would have been secondhand.

         15               Q.   Do you know if he was told?

         16               A.   I don't -- I don't know it.

         17               Q.   How long did you work on your rig?

         18               A.   Roughly 4« -- 4« years.

         19               Q.   If they followed the standard
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         20          operating procedures that you were used to

         21          would Mr. Ezell have been told about that?

         22                    MR. SCAFF:

         23                                   I would object to that. Who's they

         24                    and whose procedures are you talking

         25                    about?  Can you rephrase the question.
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          1                              MR. GORDON:

          2                                        Yes, sir.

          3          BY MR. GORDON:

          4               Q.   In your four years of working on the

          5          DEEPWATER HORIZON if Transocean had been

          6          following its standard operating procedures

          7          regarding the transmission of communication,

          8          do you feel that Mr. Ezell would have been

          9          told about that problem that you noticed with

         10          the upper annulars not holding?

         11               A.   I'm not an expert on Transocean's --

         12                    MR. KOHNKE:

         13                                   Logical people know the answer. 

         14                    Thank you.

         15          BY MR. GORDON:

         16               Q.   If you don't know, you don't know.

         17               A.   I don't know.

         18               Q.   Do you know if Mr. Harrell was told?

         19               A.   I don't know.
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         20               Q.   What other company's people, if you

         21          know, were told about this?

         22               A.   I don't know.

         23               Q.   Do you know if any communications were

         24          relayed to the shore regarding this?

         25               A.   I don't know.
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          1               Q.   Did you send any communications back

          2          to the mainland regarding this?

          3               A.   I did not contact, no.

          4               Q.   Sorry for the loss of your two

          5          friends.

          6               A.   Well, it was 11.

          7               Q.   I understand, yes, sir.

          8                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          9                                   Thank you, Mr. Gordon.  Mr. Linder,

         10                    thank you very much for your

         11                    cooperation.  I know it's been a long

         12                    afternoon.  Any questions -- Oh, Flag

         13                    state?

         14                              E X A M I N A T I O N

         15          BY MR. LINSIN:

         16               Q.   Thank you, Captain.  Just a brief

         17          follow-up.  Mr. Lindner, you testified, sir,

         18          if I understand correctly, that a Form-A-Set

         19          pill was combed with a Form-A-Squeeze pill to
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         20          make this spacer; is that correct?

         21               A.   Correct.

         22               Q.   Is that standard practice to combine

         23          those two different types of spacers?

         24               A.   It's not something we've ever done

         25          before.
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          1               Q.   Do you know what the chemical

          2          consequences are of combining those two

          3          spacers?

          4               A.   I ran a pilot test on both spacers,

          5          mixing them, and ran the rheology.  It didn't

          6          set up.  I kept the sample overnight to see if

          7          it would do anything and it didn't.  Other

          8          than as opposed to something done in our

          9          office or technical people, I'm not aware of

         10          that.

         11               Q.   What was the volume of the sample that

         12          you ran?

         13               A.   A gallon of each, mixing the two.

         14               Q.   And based on the mixing of a gallon of

         15          each, you didn't see any consequences; is that

         16          correct?

         17               A.   I didn't see anything -- I didn't see

         18          it setting up or anything.

         19               Q.   It didn't set up?
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         20               A.   Right.

         21                    MR. LINSIN:

         22                                   Thank you.  Nothing further, sir.

         23                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         24                                   Thank you, sir.  Again, thank you

         25                    very much for your cooperation.  It's
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          1                    been a long afternoon.

          2                    THE WITNESS:

          3                                   Captain, I appreciate it.

          4                    CAPT NGUYEN:

          5                                   Is there any question that we

          6                    didn't ask or any information that you

          7                    would like to provide to the Board at

          8                    this time?

          9                    THE WITNESS:

         10                                   I really have nothing at this time.

         11                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         12                                   If we need for you to come back --

         13                    THE WITNESS:

         14                                   I'll be here.

         15                    CAPT NGUYEN:

         16                                   I appreciate it.  Thank you, sir. 

         17                    You are dismissed.

         18                                        We will take a fifteen minute break 

         19                              until 3:30.  Thank you.
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         20          (Whereupon a short break was taken off the

         21          record.)

         22                              CAPT NGUYEN:

         23                                        For your information, we have not

         24                              been able to locate the next witness. 

         25                    So, therefore, we are going to adjourn
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          1                    the hearing for this afternoon and we

          2                    will restart tomorrow morning at 8:00. 

          3                    Thank you.

          4          

          5                              *   *   *   *   *   *

          6          (Whereupon, the hearing was adjourned at 3:45

          7          p.m.)

          8          

          9          

         10          

         11          

         12          

         13          

         14          

         15          

         16          

         17          

         18          

         19          
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         20          

         21          

         22          

         23          

         24          

         25          
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          1          

          2                          R E P O R T E R ' S   P A G E

          3                    I, DOROTHY N. GROS, Certified Court

          4          Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana,

          5          the officer, as defined in Rule 28 of the

          6          Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and/or

          7          Article 1434(B) of the Louisiana Code of Civil

          8          Procedure, before who this sworn testimony was

          9          taken, do hereby state on the Record:

         10                    That due to the interaction in the

         11          spontaneous discourse of this proceeding,

         12          dashes (--) have been used to indicate pauses,

         13          changes in thought, and/or talk overs; that

         14          same is the proper method for a Court

         15          Reporter's transcription of proceeding, and

         16          that the dashes (--) do not indicate that

         17          words or phrases have been left out of this

         18          transcript;

         19                    That any words and/or names which could
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         20          not be verified through references material

         21          have been denoted with the phrase

         22          "(phonetic)".

         23          

         24          

         25                       __________________________________
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          1                                DOROTHY N. GROS, CCR

          2          

          3                              C E R T I F I C A T E

          4          

          5                    I, Dorothy N. Gros, Certified Court

          6          Reporter, in and for the State of Louisiana,

          7          authorized by the laws of said State to

          8          administer oaths and to take the depositions

          9          of witnesses, hereby certify that the

         10          foregoing matter was taken before me at the

         11          time and place herein above stated; the matter

         12          being reported by me and thereafter

         13          transcribed under my supervision; that the

         14          foregoing pages contain a true and correct

         15          transcription of the matter as thus given to

         16          the best of my ability and understanding.

         17          

         18                    I further certify that I am not of

         19          counsel nor related to any of the parties to
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         20          this cause, and that I am in no wise

         21          interested in the result of said cause.

         22          

         23          

         24          

         25          
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          1                        _________________________________

          2                                 DOROTHY N. GROS, CCR 

          3   

          4   

          5   

          6   

          7   

          8   

          9   

         10   

         11   

         12   

         13   

         14   

         15   

         16   

         17   

         18   

         19   
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         20   

         21   

         22   

         23   

         24   

         25   
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